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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”), and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) specialise in the production and distribution
of instant noodles and beverages in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). The Group started its instant noodle business in 1992, and
expanded into instant food business and beverage business in 1996.
In March 2012, the Group further expanded its beverage business by
forming a strategic alliance with PepsiCo for the beverage business in
the PRC. The Company exclusively manufactures, bottles, packages,
distributes and sells PepsiCo soft drinks in the PRC. The Group’s main
business segments have established leading market shares in the PRC's
food industry. According to AC Nielsen December 2021 data, based
on sales volume, in 2021, the Group was the market leader in instant
noodles and ready-to-drink teas (incl. milk tea), having gained 45.7%
and 43.4% market shares, respectively. In the overall juice drink market,
the Group gained 18.9% market share, ranked No.2. According
to GlobalData December 2021 data, based on sales volume, Pepsi
carbonated soft drinks had 33.1% market share and held a second
position. After years of hard work and accumulation, “Master Kong”
has become one of the best-known brands among consumers in the
PRC.

Being a leading brand in the fast moving consumer goods industry,
Master Kong has to hold the industry responsibility of food safety
and quality guarantee. The Group constantly builds and improves
management system, establishes risk prevention management system,
implements entire control over food safety and ensures product quality
and safety. We will constantly strive for product quality and food safety,
as well as provide consumers with safe, tasty and healthy food products.

The Group distributed its products throughout the PRC through
its extensive sales network consisting of 340 sales offices and 341
warehouses serving 80,726 wholesalers and 256,567 direct retailers
as of 31 December 2021. This extensive sales network is a significant
contributor to the Group’s leading market position and it enables the
Group to introduce new products rapidly and effectively.

The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
in February 1996. Market capitalisation as at 31 December 2021 was
US$11.6 billion. The Company is a constituent stock of Morgan Stanley
Capital International (MSCI) China Index and Hang Seng China (Hong
Kong-listed) 100 Index.

Focused on food manufacture, sales and distribution business, the
Group will continue to strengthen its logistics and sales network in the
PRC with target of becoming “The largest Group for Chinese Instant
Food & Beverage in the World”.
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Financial Summary

BZE12A31BLEFE

For the years ended 31 December

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000  RMB’000  RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
I 25 Revenue 74,082,292 67,617,835 61,978,158 60,685,645 58,953,788
B R AT A Profit before taxation 5,808,643 6,531,912 5,411,596 3,979,334 3,392,736
18 Taxation (1,424,976) (1,958,228) (1,693,374) (1,250,565) (1,137,368)
REEHH Profit for the year 4,383,667 4,573,684 3,718,222 2,728,769 2,255,368

i tepeaeal Profit attributable to:
RARRE Owners of the Company 3,802,482 4,062,263 3,330,981 2,463,321 1,819,077
DHIRFE R Non-controlling interests 581,185 511,421 387,241 265,448 436,291
RNE R Profit for the year 4,383,667 4,573,684 3,718,222 2,728,769 2,255,368
[d5) Dividends 3,802,482 4,062,263 3,330,981 2,463,321 909,539
AR ARES ARE7 ARES ARED
RMB cents @ RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents  RMB cents

FIREF Earnings per share
BN Basic 67.57 72.23 59.25 43.85 32.45
BE Diluted 67.51 72.15 59.20 43.77 32.42
EemEER 03
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W12R31H
As at 31 December

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

ANRBTT  ANREFT ANREEFT AREFT AREFT

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

REUEEHE Investment properties 1,807,100 1,771,700 1,771,500 1,119,000 1,106,000
mE - HBEREE Property, plant and equipment 21,510,028 = 21,934571 23,013,991 24,927,630 28,014,779
EREEE Right-of-use assets 3,691,741 3,804,456 4,025,124 — —
THELEE Prepaid lease payments — — — 3,570,367 3,730,767
BERNAER Interest in an associate 94,847 94,802 139,537 127,725 120,568
BENAER Interest in joint venture 625,163 627,031 889,065 698,743 660,691
EWEE Intangible assets 155,970 165,668 183,409 186,458 162,936
HitERBAE Other non-current assets 6,757,633 4,431,860 2,499,236 1,465,275 1,362,410
FRE(BE)EE Net current (liabilities) assets (4,158,264) 1,629,302  (2,869,623)  (2,977,064)  (5,038,644)
EnBakE Non-current liabilities (8,075,718)  (9,720,007)  (6,606,132)  (5,505,703)  (7,825,463)
FEE Net assets 22,408,500 | 24,739,383 23,046,107 23,612,431 22,294,044
BT A Issued capital 235,633 235,422 235,401 235,204 235,053
[ Reserves 18,424,343 = 20877302 19,343,173 19418272 18,177,026
DHRFE R Non-controlling interests 3,748524 = 3,626,659 3,467,533 3,958,955 3,881,965
R RS Total equity 22,408,500 = 24,739,383 23,046,107 23,612,431 22,294,044
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Sales Network

F3AF Shihezi £%& Changchun

FK3E Tianjin

% B Qingdao
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Beverage Business
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
#qE e HgE HE HqE
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
& EFT Sales Office 369 369 371 365 340
& E Warehouse 92 108 182 236 341
#Z 887 Wholesale 35,163 28,415 36,186 47,898 80,726
B ZEM Direct Retailer 129,449 140,779 185,789 210,366 256,567
BT A# Employee 56,995 54,210 58,182 60,654 62,107
4 E 4R Production Line 676 613 604 584 570
£ EEM Production Centre 118 103 88 86 78
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With an aim to build Master Kong into a comprehensive “China National
Brand” of food and beverage, we have kept on taking “Catering to
Consumer Needs” as the first priority and placed high emphasis on
long-term development while remaining true to our original aspiration
of “Promoting Chinese Food & Beverage Culture”.

Facing heightened market volatility in 2021, our Group has pressed
ahead by continually executing the business strategy of “Consolidate,
Reform and Develop”. Remarkable performance has been made as a
result of our concentrated efforts in optimizing product-mix, promoting
digital transformation, offering better consumer services, and carrying
out win-win cooperation with partners.

Food safety and sustainable development remain our top priorities. We
have both supervised the quality of food ingredients and kept full track
of the production process. Products featuring low fat, low sugar and low
salt have been launched as our attempt to help build a “Healthy China”.
In addition, we have been devoting ourselves to the undertakings of
public welfare, disaster relief and epidemic containment, playing a part
in addressing issues relating to agriculture, rural areas and the well-
being of farmers, and backing up the cause of sports. In response to
China’s “Carbon Peaking and Carbon Neutrality” goal, Master Kong
has completed carbon footprint verification, and vigorously promoted
energy conservation and emission reduction. Noticeably, we have
become a participant of the United Nations Global Compact.

Looking ahead in 2022 amid enormous market uncertainties, we the
Board will continue to provide effective oversight of the Management,
and prompt them to lead Master Kong to meet challenges more actively
and drive long-term values for customers. More importantly, | would
like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to all
fellow members of the Board, the management team, employees and
customers for their support over the years.

Wei Hong-Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, China
28 March, 2022
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Group Structure
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Note: This chart illustrates TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.'s
direct or indirect proportion of ownership interest of its Principal Subsidiaries.
* represents direct translation of registered name in Chinese.
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

In 2021, China registered a growth of 8.1% in GDP, accompanied by
an urbanization rate of 64.7% and an enlarged size of the middle class.
Despite the rapid development in online channels, the sharp rise in the
price of raw materials has posed great challenges to the industry. In
a nutshell, the demand in the instant noodles segment has gradually
returned to normal levels and the demand in the beverage segment has
kept a steady growth trend.

Over the past year, the Group, by continually executing the business
strategy of “Consolidate, Reform and Develop”, further explored the
mass consumer markets, tapped into the high-end markets targeting
at the middle class, and laid out the markets in new rural areas. The
Group's total revenue in 2021 reached RMB 74.082 billion, a year-on-
year increase of 9.56%. Specifically, revenue from the instant noodles
segment declined by 3.60% and the beverage segment increased by
20.18% year on year. The gross profit margin of 2021 dropped to
30.39%, a decrease of 2.78 percentage points compared with that
of 2020. The ratio of distribution costs to revenue recorded a slight
increase of 0.27 percentage points to 21.20% year on year. EBITDA
went down by 10.37% to RMB 8.390 billion year on year. Due to the
decrement in gross margin along with the increase in distribution costs,
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company fell by 6.39% to
RMB 3.802 billion and basic earnings per share declined by RMB 4.66
cents to RMB 67.57 cents.
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Instant Noodles Business

As shown in the Nielsen's data, the sales volume of overall instant
noodles market in 2021 fell by 4.0% compared with that of 2020, with
a year-on-year decrease of 2.7% in sales value. Yet a steady increasing
trend of the two indicators has been kept if taking the figures over the
past two years into consideration. Throughout the year, Master Kong
held a market share of 45.7% and 48.0% respectively in sales volume
and sales value, both ranking first in the market.

In 2021, the Group’s revenue from the instant noodles segment
reached RMB 28.448 billion, a year-on-year decrease of 3.60% (up
by 12.44% compared with that of 2019), which made up 38.40% of
the total revenue. Due to the rising price of raw materials and shift in
product-mix, the gross margin of instant noodles dropped to 24.36%,
down by 4.94 percentage points year on year. The profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company in the instant noodles segment went
down by 26.67% to RMB 2.004 billion as a result of the rising price of
raw materials and the decline in revenue.

High-priced Noodles

The instant noodles segment continued to promote its core products in
the high-priced noodles market, and carried out a marketing strategy
focusing on young consumers through multi-sized and multi-flavored
products, thus keeping its brand vigorous. At the same time, the
segment grasped the market of large-sized products. To be specific,
“Roasted Beef Noodles” highlighted communication with young
consumers and promoted its brand goodwill by choosing Lay Zhang as
its spokesperson and cooperating with the variety show “IN CHINA".
“Hot Beef Noodles” attracted young consumers through IP collaboration
with “Game for Peace”. The prevalent “Rattan Pepper Beef Noodles”
expanded its fans group though IP collaboration with the domestic
animation, “Douro Mainland”, and unfolded a blind box campaign to
improve the re-purchase rate. Meanwhile, the newly launched “Tomato
Egg Beef Noodles” and “Korean Spicy Beef Noodles” have been well
received among the public. “Master Kong BIG Bucket/Packet” grasped
the market opportunity to meet needs of consumers for large-sized
products and achieved sustained growth in sales. For the convenience
of consumers, innovative and consumer-friendly water filters have been
applied in “Master Kong Dried Noodles”.

B EER
2021 Annual Report ¥



BB E NN | Management Discussion and Analysis

Bl
FRIES ] R

)
L}

ELRE T

T 3

W

TRl
. x Q i ', ;,

¥i

e

12 BHEZERERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.




B EeiRE

FERLZERE - ZAORNE W, HBEHh
Ed mETEEABENE  BEXR
BAEFENFR - [IFREDIATIERE —K
Wi lARRTBRETS  HEBERR
ERA e R LEmHRA AR BAHKS
FOKRD AT 548 - 2021 F10 A B B4R &
(BRSO ETT I RREAFTAEZ - B
RaB - FASERBFIETAD KRR
ACHREEY  BEFESL  HHAE
SEHEAH - BomE @ EMEIHE
CEEMRRBLAOK - EHENERES
RS LE ARHEBRE - EHIREM
BHAHE] A LEHHOKIEALE
D] - REHMEZEBRRLR  KE -
FPi\EZnER  EEMEESHEES
[BERSBE I = AR R ] -

C-:_'F-::'; ey
‘Il" ,‘Ira:-I
L _.--"""-‘

R

EREWEDH | Management Discussion and Analysis

Premium Noodles/Super-premium Noodles

In line with the needs of the middle class for upgraded consumption
and quality life, the instant noodles segment continued to put premium
and super-premium products with various flavors and sizes into market.
Committed to the concept of “Proficiency in Every Type of Soups”,
“Soup Chef” opened up the market of premium instant noodles and
offered noodles with five kinds of high-end flavorful broths, each
serving as a best representative of Chinese-style, Japanese-style and
Hong-Kong-style cuisines, which led to rapid growth in sales. To
improve its brand awareness, the segment collaborated with the variety
show “Call Me by Fire” in October 2021 and the spokesperson Nathan
Scott Lee. In addition, digital tools were used to push up foretaste
promotional activities as well as to attract young students and white-
collar workers. With an aim to diversify its sizes and flavors, the super-
premium noodles, “Express Chef's Noodles” newly launched a dry
noodles version in addition to its previous bowl noodles and self-
heating noodles, and offered noodles with new flavors, namely “Spiced
Shredded Chicken with Sesame Sauce Noodles” and “Thai Tom Yum
Noodles”. Notably, the “Express Chef's Noodles” series expanded its
popularity in office, household and outdoors occasions, which allows
high-profiled consumers to “Enjoy the Express Chef's Noodles at

Anytime and Anywhere”.
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Mid-priced Noodles/Snack Noodles

The mid-priced noodles were tailor-made for consumers in township
and rural areas valuing cost-effectiveness. “Rattan Pepper Beef Noodles”
came out to meet customers’ demand for new flavors, apart from which
the large-sized “50% Plus” was also released for those who favor
satiety at the best price. The snack noodles “Flavored and Crunchy”
series were dedicated to attract students and snack lovers, while newly
launched, namely “Rattan Pepper Chicken Chop Noodles” managed to
increase its brand awareness through IP cooperation with “Luo Tianyi”
and corresponding card collecting activities, accompanied by publicity
activities on new media platforms like Bilibili and Weibo.

Beverage Business

Nielsen’s data suggested that the sales volume and sales value of China’s
beverage industry’ in 2021 grew by 8.8% and 10.1% respectively year
on year. In terms of sales volume, Master Kong had the largest market
share of 43.4% in ready-to-drink (RTD) tea segment (including milk
tea), a second largest market share of 18.9% in juice segment, a market
share of 6.8% in bottled water segment and a second largest market
share of 12.1% in RTD coffee segment.

! RKEHTERBE NIRRT - %% - BEK - B - BERECH - Dhaesel - SENE SRR - BDERMNYE -

! The categories in the beverage industry include RTD tea (excluding milk tea), milk tea, bottled water, juice, carbonated soft drink,

functional drink, traditional Asian drink and RTD coffee.

14 EHEZERERAR
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In 2021, the overall revenue of the Group from the beverage business
reached RMB 44.802 billion, a year-on-year increase of 20.18%, which
accounted for 60.48% of the Group’s total revenue. During the period,
the gross margin of the beverage business dropped by 2.11 percentage
points to 33.83% because of the rising price of raw materials and shift
in product-mix. Thanks to the increase of revenue and the decrease of
sales to distribution cost ratio, the profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company for beverage business reached RMB 1.837 billion, up by
15.27% year on year.

RTD Tea

The RTD tea segment gained popularity in the mass market with its
core products and launched products of various flavors and sizes to
fit diverse needs of younger consumers under different consumption
occasions, thus ensuring Master Kong's leading position in the RTD tea
market. The “Master Kong Ice Tea” series, characterized by multiple
flavors, became synonymous with youth and fashion, and the tropical
flavor in particular, caught on among the ACGN lovers. To meet
consumer needs for taste and health, the Group released the “Sugar-
free Ice Tea”, which was all the rage and yielded high sales upon its
debut. The “Jasmine” series went down very well with the young
consumers through a microfilm “Jasmine Only for You”, as well as IP
cooperation with Shanghai Disneyland, and other online and offline
promotional activities. Via selecting the Millennials’ favorite stars as the
spokespersons and advancing cooperation with hot IPs, the “Green
Tea"” series continued to enhance its brand image of “Fresh, Vigorous
and Rich in Tea Polyphenol” and stimulated substantial sales growth.
The “Master Kong Peach Oolong Tea"” series established an aromatic
and palateful brand image and fittingly fed the thirst for fruit tea of the
new generation of urban consumers. In addition, the Group innovatively
launched its fifth largest tea brand of the “Master Kong Plum Green
Tea" series, which blended the green tea with green plums.
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Pepsi’s bottled carbonated soft drink segment was devoted to offering
products with new flavors and categories. Themed on “Bring Happiness
Home", Pepsi joined hands with Mirinda and 7UP to launch the
“Auspicious Beast Series Can” and other festival-related products to
match the consumption occasions during CNY. The kicking off of “Pepsi
White Peach and Oolong Flavor” and “Pepsi Osmanthus Flavor” made
the Chinese Style a nationwide hit. Moreover, the segment continued
to diversify its “Pepsi No Sugar” series by upgrading its packaging and
flavors. More precisely, the debut of “Pepsi Lime Flavor” resulted in
ever-increasing sales; and thanks to its release, together with Pepsi
regular and raspberry flavors, the segment occupied a bigger share
in the sugar-free market. The “Passion Fruit & Pineapple Mix Flavor”
remained well received among the public. The “Passion Fruit &
Pineapple Mix Flavor” of Mirinda remained well received among the
public. The launch of “Mirinda Juice Bubble Drink” pushed Mirinda to
seize the mid-to-high-end market. All the packaging of the “7UP" series
were upgraded and constant efforts were placed on the promotion of
“7UP Moji7o Grapefruit Flavor” via IP cooperation. The “Bubly Sparkling
Water"” rolled out in 2021 as a major star product of the sparkling water
series, which addressed consumers’ upgraded needs for no sugar, no
calorie, and no fat. To spread a positive brand philosophy, the segment
geared its efforts towards promoting the visual symbol of smile on the
“Bubly Sparkling Water".

Juices

The segment capitalized on the multi-size and multi-flavor features of
juice products and made it to develop juices of Chinese and Western
styles yet underlying the culture of Chinese Style Drinks with Meal. The
“Rock Candy Pear” series remained to be characterized by a therapeutic
brand image of constant moisture provider and its consumption
occasions, mainly for smoothing and moistening the throat, were also
elaborated. “The Traditional Drink Sweet-Sour Plum Juice” integrated
modern juice-making process into Chinese classic drink, whose effects
of quenching thirst and cleansing palate were widely promoted
and magnified. The Western-style juice “Master Kong Juices” series
centered on tasty fruits to build an optimistic and joyful brand image.
“NutriLight Fruits”, based on its main flavor of honey and grapefruit,
went with other flavored products including “Mango Flavor Drink”
and “Peach Flavor Drink” to draw the attention of consumer groups.
The “Tropicana” series focused on mixed fruit flavors, and “Tropicana
100%" series actively seized the market of 100% juice (ambient) by
means of promotion in mass-market retailers and convenience stores.
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Bottled Water

The bottled water segment continued to satisfy different consumer
needs with products of various sizes and prices. In addition, it placed
a high emphasis on cultivating consumers’ indoor drinking habits,
preferentially offering large and small packages, and stimulating more
household consumption demands. The economical product “Master
Kong Bottled Drinking Water”, with the world-renowned volleyball
player and coach Lang Ping as its spokesperson, conveyed a brand
image of “The Best Choice for Reassurance and Health” and thus
establishing itself as a national brand featuring affordable prices. In
terms of the mid-priced ones, the “Drink Boiled Water” stuck to the
positioning of mild, safe and sweet water, and adhered to a competitive
strategy of boiled water differentiation. Targeting at young consumers,
the segment offered "“Drink Boiled Water” with multiple sizes to spur
household consumption needs. The “Aquafina” series, with an aim to
let consumers “Enjoy the Purity”, enhanced its popularity through both
online and offline marketing activities. The segment rolled out the soda
water series in July 2021, which satisfied consumer needs with a variety
of flavors and sizes. The high-end “Han Yang Quan” was relaunched
with an upgraded packaging and managed to strengthen its positioning
of ”“Being Natural, Precious, and Nutritious”, thus catering to the
growing needs of the middle class for higher-quality drinking water.

Coffee Drinks/Functional Drinks/Probiotics

The “Bernachon Coffee” series focused on the markets typified by
the Yangtze River Delta, the Pearl River Delta, Beijing and Sichuan.
Starbucks ambient RTD coffee launched new flavor and restaged
packaging for bottled Frappuccino. And mainly driven by the newly
launched “Starbucks Select”, overall sales registered encouraging
results. Apart from fitting various sports occasions, the functional drink
“Gatorade” series enriched its categories by launching the sugar-
free vitamin electrolyte beverage “Gatorade No Sugar”, as a proactive
move to tap into the health drinks market. The “Wei Chuan Ambient
Probiotics Drink” series gained a strong foothold in the Yangtze River
Delta. Besides, the lactobacillus beverage “Xiao Lao Duo Duo” was
repackaged to strengthen its fresh, fat-free and healthy product image.
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The Group, with “Cash Is King” as its long-held overall strategy, has
been characterized by proficient control of capital expenditures and
effective promotion of asset-light and asset activation, which is expected
to generate stable net cash inflows. In 2021, the net cash inflow from
the Group’s operating activities amounted to RMB 5.418 billion, and the
net cash outflow from investing activities reached RMB 4.044 billion. In
the meantime, the Group bolstered asset-light and asset activation and
boasted a net cash inflow of RMB 474 million.

The Group continued to maintain a sound financial structure through
effective control on the balances of account receivables, account
payables, as well as inventories, and featured abundant cash in hand.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group's total cash at bank and on
hand arrived at RMB 21.961 billion, a decrease of RMB 1.905 billion
compared with that of 31 December 2020. The Group's interest-bearing
borrowings reached RMB 13.662 billion, a reduction of RMB 35 million
from 31 December 2020 to 31 December 2021. Net cash totaled RMB
8.299 billion, declining by RMB 1.870 billion compared with that of
31 December 2020. The Group’s proportion of the total borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies and Renminbi, at the end of 2021,
reported a change from 89% against 11% at the end of 2020 to
96% against 4%. And the proportion between the Group's long-term
borrowings and short-term borrowings reached 46% against 54%,
compared with 57% against 43% at the end of 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's total assets and total liabilities
stood at RMB 60.309 billion and RMB 37.901 billion respectively, down
by RMB 1.222 billion and up by RMB 1.109 billion respectively from 31
December 2020. Meanwhile, the debt ratio of the Group increased by
3.05 percentage points to 62.84% compared with that of 31 December
2020. The gearing ratio® went up from -48.17% as of 31 December
2020 to -44.48% as of 31 December 2021.

During 2021, the exchange rate of US dollars against Renminbi fell by
2.23%. The fluctuation in exchange rates resulted in the generation
of realized and unrealized exchange gain, amounting to RMB 36.031
million in the Group’s income statement.
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As of 31 December 2021, the Group takes long-term time deposits into
consideration when calculating gearing ratio because management believes
that this calculation basis reflects the capital structure of the Group more
accurately. As a result of the above changes, the comparative figures presented
have been restated to conform to current year’s presentation.

HZ2021F12A318  KEBETAH
62,107 A ©

The Group had 62,107 employees as of 31 December, 2021.
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In 2021, the Group continued to promote organizational reform based
on the underlying principle of “All for Developing Business”, established
an efficient and integrated human resources system, and provided
sustainable talents and organizational capabilities. The Management
Training Center has been established to build structured training
method based on the competency models of employees at all levels. In
addition, the Group has carried out digital transformation to empower
the management digitally and systematically. By doing so, Master
Kong managed to set up a scientific mechanism for talent selection,
cultivation and development.
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Moreover, the Group, in order to explore a model that can “Promote
Integration of Industry and Education and Cultivate Talents through
Cooperation between Schools and Enterprises”, has partnered with
35 higher education institutions and 78 vocational schools across
China. Facing uncertain epidemic situations, Master Kong resorted
to both online and offline channels for talent introduction and
recruited graduates through various approaches, including various
campus campaigns, job fairs and cross-regional caree talks. In terms of
partnership with the vocational schools, the Group has set up “Ordered
Class of Master Kong” to help further the study on a long-term talent
training mode based on college-enterprise cooperation.

Master Kong has been dedicated to building Industry-University-
Research platforms with international influence, mainly through all-
round strategic cooperation with top universities at home and abroad.
2021 marked the inclusion of a new strategic partner, Tsinghua
University, with whom the Group has engaged in numerous talent
development projects. Besides, the Group has deepened cooperation
with Peking University in multiple fields, such as in medical and
agricultural, new structural economics and management. Furthermore,
the Group has formulated new long-term cooperation projects with
Waseda University and finalized the cooperation project on big data
with the Wharton School and JD.
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The year of 2022 will continue to be full of challenges and opportunities.
Despite the fact that China’s economy is expected to register a stable
performance with good growth momentum, the food and beverage
industry will inevitably face difficulties brought by uncertainties of the
international situation and the rising price of raw materials.

Looking ahead, the Group, by adhering to its “Consolidate, Reform
and Develop” strategy, will continue enhancing its brand reputation
by complying with the trend of consumption segmentation and
channel diversification. Specifically, the Group will keep on launching
instant noodles products with various flavors, sizes and prices. While
in terms of the beverage segment, the Group will sustain its efforts in
concentrating on major flagship products as well as accelerating product
mix adjustment. By doing so, Master Kong will push itself to satisfy
diversified consumer needs under different consumption occasions.
Considering the escalating price of the raw materials, the Group will
resort to more feasible and practical business strategies to boost steady
sales growth.

The Group will unswervingly advance digital and intelligent
transformation and build an intelligent manufacturing system and
logistics system to improve operation and supply chain efficiency. Also,
based on the underlying principle of “All for Developing Business”, the
Group will carry out organizational reform, improve talent management
and optimize organizational competence. Constant efforts will also
be directed at the comprehensive implementation of the green and
low-carbon development philosophy, which involves promoting
energy conservation, water conservation, plastic reduction and carbon
reduction, thus doing its bit to realize China’s sustainable development
while satisfying consumer needs in their pursuit of a better life.

With the mission of “Promoting Chinese Food & Beverage Culture” and
the aim to stand firm in China’s food and beverage markets, the Group
will keep on regarding meeting consumer needs as its first priority

"

and “Food Safety” as the cornerstone, and following the long-held
concept of “Cash Is King” for Master Kong's stable operation and the
industry’s sustainable development. Leveraging professional competence
and advanced equipment, the Group will forge ahead to build itself
into a comprehensive “China National Brand” of food and beverage

trustworthy for the government, partners and consumers.
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This report aims to formulate the performance of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (“Master Kong”, “the Company” or “We")
in environmental, social and governance (the “ESG”) in 2021 for
readers. For information regarding the governance section, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report as incorporated in this
annual report.

Report Preparation Standards

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guidelines of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Report Scope

Organizational scope of the report: Unless otherwise stated, the
organizational scope of this report covers the main office areas
and regular operating plants of Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. in China, including the headquarters of Master Kong, the
Instant Noodles Business, the Master Kong Beverages Business,
the Pepsi Beverages Business and the Bakery Business, covering
the Company’s major ESG management policies and performance,
with no significant changes from the previous year.

Time frame of the report: unless otherwise stated, the time frame
of the report is 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Reporting Principles

This report focuses on the Company's ESG philosophy and
commitment, and reports on our specific practices and key
achievements in the ESG area. This report adheres to the following
reporting principles:

Materiality: This report has been prepared by identifying key
stakeholders and their ESG issues of concern and making targeted
disclosures in the report based on the relative level of importance
of their issues of concern.
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Quantitative: This report uses quantitative information to present
environmental and social Key Performance Indicators(KPIs). The
measures, methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools,
and sources of conversion factors used for the KPIs in this report
are described where applicable.

Consistency: The information disclosed in this report follows
the same statistical methodology as previous years and individual
changes have been explained to ensure consistency.

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for
ESG governance and disclosure. In 2021, the Company has
upgraded the former Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
to the Sustainable Development Committee to assist the Board
in guiding and monitoring the development and implementation
of the Group’s environmental, social and governance efforts. The
Sustainable Development Committee is chaired by the Chairman
and CEO of the Company, with members of the Operating
Committee as members.

The Company has been exploring and refining its performance
in the ESG area by integrating ESG management principles
and strategies into the Company’s daily management system
through extensive and in-depth communication with various
stakeholders through various channels. In 2021, the Company
complied with ESG-related laws and regulations in its operations
and integrated ESG management into its strategic development
and daily operations. The Company has reviewed the results of
its substantive ESG assessment, and the Board and Sustainability
Committee are actively managing and highlighting in this report
the management practices and performance on key ESG issues.

During the reporting period, the Company has set environmental
development goals to better review and manage the Company's
environmental impact, and the Company’s Board and
Sustainability Committee will regularly review and conduct reviews
on the achievement of the ESG goals.
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Master Kong Sustainable Development Concept

With the mission of “Promoting Chinese Food & Beverage
Culture” and the vision of “Being the Most Respected
Food & Beverage Company “, Master Kong upholds the
sustainable development concept of “Keep Our Nature
Green”, communicates closely with stakeholders and
actively fulfils its social responsibility. We continue to explore
and refine our performance in the areas of environmental,
social and governance (hereinafter referred to as “ESG"),
and are committed to sharing our corporate values with
our stakeholders to enhance social well-being and enjoy
“LIFE + DELICACY" together with our stakeholders. Master
Kong believes that “sustainable development is good
development”. In 2021, in line with the country’s “New
Vision of Development” and the “14th Five-Year Plan”, we
have adopted “Healthy China”, “Focus on Food Safety”
and “Sustainable Development” as our annual corporate
priorities, and have carried out a series of activities focusing
on food safety, nutrition and health, and energy saving and
emission reduction.

We are constantly exploring the actual needs of society,
combining the fundamental demands of stakeholders with
the characteristics of our own industry, making food safety,
product responsibility, energy saving and environmental
protection, win-win partnership and corporate contribution
as the five core tasks of ESG, actively leveraging our
industrial strengths and increasing our investment in order
to continue to make innovative contributions in the field of
corporate sustainable development
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Founding on brand integrity,
seeking product innovation,
meeting the needs of market
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BIRRER  BEZBHRE -
BERETARRK
Focusing on environmental
protection management,
advocating green development,
benefiting today and tomorrow

MERZMES  TohEDL
EIETHEER
Remembering the food safety vision,
faithful to the original corporate
values, looking forward to the
development of the industry

ENERAE  EESESR W/n'Win Partnefs“\os
NERAE  BEBRESE Ol) I =
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Small actions ending up as a great
blessing, spreading love, holding

BEFUARE  EFUERE
HAdSEE
Sticking to people oriented belief,
growing hand in hand with partners,
creating social values together
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Join the United Nations Global Compact (UNGC) After being
selected as one of the outstanding cases in the China Corporate
Sustainable Development Report released by the United Nations
Development Programme (UNDP) in 2020, in May 2021, Master
Kong joined the UNGC as a member company, committing to the
ten principles of the Global Compact, based on the United Nations
conventions and covering the areas of human rights, labour standards,
environment and anti-corruption, to further expand the Company’s
sustainable development impact. We will use our membership of the
UNGC as an important opportunity to hold ourselves to more stringent
standards and seize the opportunity for sustainable development.

N J
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ESG Governance Structure and Actions

In 2021,
Social Responsibility Committee to the Sustainable

Master Kong upgraded the former Corporate

Development Committee. The Sustainable Development
Committee is chaired by the Chairman and CEO of the
Company, with members of the Operating Committee
as members, and comprises four working groups:
Beverage Resources, Instant Noodle Resources, Product
Development, and Communication. The Committee guides
work implementation and performance evaluation on the
basis of a clear corporate ESG strategy and development
direction, regularly deliberates and makes decisions on work
objectives, report disclosure and related material matters, and
reports on work progress to the Board of Directors. Each
working group continues to promote the implementation
of relevant projects in accordance with its annual work
plan and reports regularly to the Sustainable Development
Committee and the Company’s senior management on the
progress of its work.

° Beverage Resources Working Group: Focusing on
plastic reduction and packaging management, the
Working Group actively promotes special projects for
beverage PET bottle weight reduction, light weight
bottle caps and paper straw replacement.

o Instant Noodle Resource Working Group: Focusing
on water conservation, energy saving and emission
reduction management, the Working Group focuses
on promoting special projects such as oil boiler
waste gas recovery, boiler emission reduction and
water recycling to improve the Company’s energy
management.

° Product Development Working Group: Focusing
on the development and expansion of healthy and
nutritious products, the Working Group actively
promotes research projects on salt reduction, sugar
reduction, fat reduction and nutritional fortification to
meet consumers’ needs for nutrition and health.
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o Communication Working Group: Focusing on
enhancing the Company's sustainable development
impact, the Working Group works with various
working groups to organize activities such as healthy
diet promotion and healthy research cooperation from
the perspective of food safety, healthy China and
sustainable development, and continues to promote
the Comprehensive Carbon Inventory Project.

At the same time, Master Kong is gradually promoting
the “business-owned” ESG management model, further
leveraging the strengths of each business industry,
enhancing the relevance and practicability of ESG
management, and making continuous efforts to implement
the sustainable development concept of “Keep Our Nature
Green”.

Sustainable Development Actions and Performance

In 2021, we carried out the following main actions and
achieved the corresponding results.

Join authoritative international sustainable
development advocacy organization:

o In May 2021, we joined the United Nations Global
Compact (UNGC) as a member company, committing
to corporate responsibility and the ten principles of
the Global Compact.

Carry out the Comprehensive Carbon Inventory Project:

o Conducted the first comprehensive carbon inventory
including Scope 3 (upstream and downstream of
the product value chain) among domestic food and
beverage companies to identify the major carbon
footprints of each of Master Kong's businesses and
various products, and completed the setting of the
Company's carbon emission baseline and medium-
and long-term carbon reduction targets.

28 ERMEZRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.




R

R g REIARTRE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ETEEERBERERRS Share the results of undertaking a green low
carbon transformation:

ot

202111 A &

N o In November 2021, we participated in the
T%@Ei}ﬁﬁ “COP26 Green Low-Carbon Economy
%':(E\OP% Ziﬁ;ﬂiﬁ Transformation” Roundtable Forum at the
ﬁm%ﬁ)@%ﬂhw% ‘ Fourth China International Import Expo to share
7 F R E w8 E our latest achievements in driving the green low-
LT ii é A carbon transformation up and down the industry
B 98 2L ) B3 R PR chain and the challenges and opportunities we
KR B Rt IR B B

encountered on the road to scientific carbon
reduction.

BENEOPREAE o

1

FUfE DEEEECoP26 4 Rk B [FRigiiis
"COP26 Green Low-Carbon Economy Transformation” Forum at the Fourth China International Import Expo
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SIEITRHREENHER Lead the industry to work together for sustainable

B development:

e 2021 12A XBHF e In December 2021, we were invited to attend the
B KB #E 2021 China Entrepreneurs Boao Forum”, organized
1 E P E92021 F B 1 by China’s state news agency Xinhua News Agency,
XRXBEERE] WEE and delivered a keynote speech at the main forum,
MIB EEITERES K pledging to play a leading role in leading the industry
HEIGEEEER - 5|E and industry chain to promote green, low-carbon and
ITHEREE LR ES sustainable development.

BEKAFEER

FRENMEZBHET2021 R E ¥R BERE R%5
Master Kong was Invited to Attend the “2021 China Entrepreneurs Boao Forum”
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Gain social recognition:

In May 2021, the Company was awarded the 3rd
ISEE Outstanding Excellence Innovation Practice
Award by FOODAILY for its sustainable development
case of “Cooperative innovation among industry-
collegeinstitute, Create a wind vane for food health
ESG in the post-epidemic era”.

In August 2021, Master Kong placed two empty
PET bottle recycling machines at Shanghai Disney
Resort and participated in the new “Disney Sorting
and Reinvention Wonder Walk” at Shanghai Disney
Resort; in October of the same year, it was awarded
the “the Award for Best Society (S) Case” at the
2021 Cailianshe-ESG Summit for its PET sustainable
development project.

BRAN{E PET I R5/& 3 R 18 B S [ PRI 2 ESG A fE AL & (5) F M5
Master Kong's PET Sustainable Development Project Wins “the Award for Best Society (s) Case”
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o In December 2021, the Company was awarded Hong
Kong Corporate Governance & ESG Excellence Awards
by the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies
(CHKLC) and Centre for Corporate Governance and
Financial Policy School of Business, Hong Kong Baptist
University, becoming the first food and beverage
company to receive this award in many years.
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=T

RIEVAEIRIE - & REIR(ESG) FMiE
Master Kong Received Corporate Governance & ESG Excellence Awards

4.

Stakeholder Communication and Key Issues Materiality
Assessment

Through continuous communication with various
stakeholders through various channels, Master Kong
actively understands the expectations and requirements
of our stakeholders and strives to meet their needs in a
practical manner while developing our business. In 2021,
we reviewed and confirmed the level of importance of
each key ESG issue to our business development and to our
stakeholders.



BRRERBREE
Shareholders
and Investors

BT
Employees

BHE(EEF)
Distributors
(including
customers)

AIER
Suppliers

BRFREEKE
Government
and Agencies

HERAR
Communities and
the Public

EREEHA#E
Universities
and Research
Institutions
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Descriptions of Stakeholders

HRAMEETAERE BFRENBEAIMIEA
Domestic and overseas legitimate equity and debt
investors to Master Kong

HLERADEZ T E RS EE [ J 5 E RS H R AN (F 2
BHIAE

Personnel who sign a formal employment
agreement with the Company and who serve the
Company in a regular basis

BELERMEET S REEROBE  HHE
B

Companies, stores or individual businesses that
legally distributing various branded products of
Master Kong

RRAE S EHEEEYE  BHRBALAMS
B - Bk ERE P

Companies, stores or individual businesses
that legally supplying production materials,
accessories and office supplies to Master Kong

5 BFRP I R R - B BR R BEE
ZEEHE

Food, taxation, environmental protection, safety
and other authorities; local governments; the SFC
and other regulatory agencies

BEREN S AR EREN SRS - BRE - B
AR R EAEEEN S

Newspapers, TV stations, Internet companies and
other media agencies that have established legal
partnerships with Master Kong

BEMMAMARE  HEAR - EIFENERE
Local communities, the public, non profit
organizations, etc.

BERENE R A ERERAOAE -
i

Universities, colleges and research institutes
partnering with Master Kong

B HRAEH

M ERARRE DT RO BRSO e

BEREEELX

Communication Channels
and Responses

REAE® bEFH  EELE  BES
General meetings of shareholders,
annual reports, interim reports, results
announcements, roadshows, etc.

BT BAE BIHI BIFMW-
REABTIME
Staff activities, staff congress, staff
training, staff manuals, corporate
publications, etc.

EmRE - TERAF  TRAERAEEH
5%

Product exhibitions, industry survies,
customer service hotlines and satisfaction
survies, etc.

PRABREGE  BRSERXH  JRED

% o
Open bidding meetings, strategic
cooperation negotiations, exchanges and

visits, etc.

ERERF - ANE - BERBT - FEEE
=

Field visits, official correspondences, policy
implementation, information disclosure,
etc.

ELEGH  XEEE  FeEREHE
Business interviews, cultural promotion,
featured activities, etc.

HEES BETEREES R84
BEEXRE

Community activities, employee volunteer
activities, public welfare activities, social
cause support, etc.

BERETE  B1EE e 2R
MR & FIR B &

Recruitment presentations, training
programs, seminars, academic exchanges
and cooperative research projects

Stakeholder Expectations and Responses

FRAR AR
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S High

SNEBRTAE (HFSABRE A EE M)
External assessment (materiality to stakeholders)

K Low P (HEBHTE) i
Internal assessment (impact on the business) = g
ESGRAR BN EE KT
Level of Importance of key ESG Issues
C RROEMERERE %= IV. FROM PEACE OF MIND TO NUTRITION AND HEALTH,

[E#MR ZHEE] ENJOY “LIFE + DELICACY”

1. RMT2ERRER 1.  Food Safety Control and Construction
BElLEFRERR L D With the corporate mission of “Promoting Chinese Food
¥Fm EAERRRETEA & Beverage Culture”, Master Kong regards food safety as
NEZAK  ERETF(REAR its foundation and strictly abides by the Food Safety Law
HAFEBRRBRELEEXTEAR of the People’s Republic of China, the Product Quality Law
HREELEEX))EMEAE of the People’s Republic of China and other relevant laws
B RAHRERTERRE and regulations. With a zero-tolerance attitude towards
RAMBEE » BREHEEHE food safety risks, our professional capabilities and advanced
FHEEE U MAmE JRE equipment ensure the quality of our products from farm
HERIEBEENERME to fork with “quality of space product”, ensuring “Food
REEBEIBERLENZR] - Safety” for consumers.
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We believe that food safety is the foundation of our

business and that consumers’ trust in our brands is based on

food safety. We continue to enhance our risk management,

improve the ethics and professionalism of our staff and

strengthen our product process management to achieve

conscientious business. We believe that building a “Peaceful

China” requires a high level of food safety assurance. In this

connection, we have been making continuous efforts in the

following areas to raise the standard of Master Kong's food

safety management to the highest level.

Increase investment in the area of food safety.
Master Kong has invested RMB500 million in the
establishment of the Innovation R&D Centre, which
has been accredited by China National Accreditation
Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS), with
over 1,500 food safety monitoring indicators and
over 3.5 million tests per year. At the same time,
the Company's food safety and quality control team
has grown to over 1,800 staff, who monitor the
whole process of the industry chain through external
inspection of raw material suppliers, food safety
assessment inspection, incoming inspection of raw
materials, process inspection, factory inspection of
finished products, and market sampling of products.

Improve the internal food safety management
system. The Company has actively introduced external
consultancy resources to strengthen the authority of
Food Safety Centre laboratory data, strengthen the
basic skills of frontline monitoring staff, increase the
frequency of monitoring product quality indicators,
establish a product quality sampling system with a
three-tier layout of Food Safety Centre/China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment/
factory inspection rooms, and focus on strengthening
the upgrade and stable operation of the food safety/
quality management system.
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Launch the food safety publicity month campaign.
For the eighth consecutive year, Master Kong
launched the food safety publicity month campaign
with the main theme of “Reduce Waste, Build
Prevention and Keep Safety”. All staff participated in
the campaign, carrying out more than 500 internal
and external food safety promotion campaigns and
holding food safety-related examinations to actively
respond to and implement the Central Government’s
“Food safety main responsibility year action” and the
General Administration of Market Supervision’s call to
"“oppose food waste”.

2021 FEMMERBLZE2EBARBEARS
2021 Master Kong Food Safety Promotion Month Launching Ceremony
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Promote the “Food Safety Science Popularization
Public Welfare Line”. Master Kong is highly
concerned about the science popularization of food
safety among young people and children, and has
organized “Food Safety Open Classes in Primary and
Secondary Schools” to help young people learn about
food safety in a fun and relaxed atmosphere; and
held “Food Safety Science Popularization Challenge
Quiz"” to present food safety knowledge in a fun
and competitive form, with a total of over 4 million
respondents. At the “How to Safeguard Food Safety
for Minors Sub-forum” held during the National Food
Safety Week 2021, Master Kong discussed the issue of
food safety for minors with all sectors of the society,
and mobilized upstream and downstream partners
to work together to strengthen the defence of food
safety for minors through technology empowerment
and technology sharing.
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Promote the digitalization of food safety. Master
Kong has continued to improve the full traceability
system, and through continuous system renovation
and technological refinement, the execution
effectiveness of the food safety traceability system has
been continuously enhanced to achieve transparent
management of the flow of raw materials and finished
products. Through cooperation with suppliers and
customers and under the guidance of professional
institutions, the Company has strengthened the
upstream and downstream traceability of products
and launched pilot applications. In addition, Master
Kong has successively planned and launched digital
information systems such as Laboratory Information
Management System (LIMS), Product Lifecycle
Management (PLM) and Business Intelligence (Bl) and
other digital information systems to further implement
and deepen information management.

External cooperation to improve social food
safety governance. Based on Master Kong's
industry status and advanced food safety technology,
the Company was approved to set up Shanghai
Instant Food Engineering Technology Research
Center to undertake food safety testing, research
and development, scientific training and provide
authoritative and impartial third-party services to the
society. Relying on this platform, Master Kong makes
use of quality academic resources at home and abroad
to promote high-end research and development of
food safety technology and the transformation of
R&D results, and actively provides useful references
for the formulation and updating of national food
safety standards. The Company’s Innovation R&D
Center was recognized as a Foreign-funded R&D
Center by the Shanghai Municipal Commission of
Commerce. Master Kong and Shanghai Jiao Tong
University and other universities continue to carry
out industrialised research cooperation on food
safety and product application development, and
cooperate with the National Institute for Nutrition
and Health Chinese Center for Disease Control and
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Prevention, Jiangnan University and Nankai University
on food safety to help improve the level of food safety
governance in society. In addition, the Company also
actively participated in the formulation of a number
of standards by the Chinese Institute of Food Science
and Technology/China Beverage Industry Association,
State Administration for Market Regulation and China
National Center for Food Safety Risk Assessment
(CFSA). There were no recalls of products and services
for safety and health reasons during the year.

Emphasis on food safety talents training. We
select outstanding graduates from key universities
across the country with a major in food and strive to
develop complex industry talents. At the same time,
we recruit quality control managers from factories
across the country and provide them with special
training in areas such as food safety standards and
regulations, analysis and testing, risk monitoring and
assessment auditing, and guide staff in the production
and supply chain departments and quality control
departments of each business to implement the “food
safety first” concept in their work, so as to achieve the
goal of total food safety management.

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

EAERMEZEH
Master Kong Food Safety Centre
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In 2021, all of Master Kong’s businesses continued to
improve their food safety management systems. All
normal operating plants’ of the instant noodle business
were certified under the FSSC22000 (Food Safety System
Certification) and maintained good operation of the
system. Over 90% of the factories in normal operation
have been audited of the “whole quality system of instant
noodle processing oil” by Standard Global Services (SGS)
and China Quality Certification Center (CQC), third party
certification bodides, to ensure the safety of the oil used in
the processing of instant noodles. In addition, the instant
noodle business continued to improve its [AIB+] internal
audit terms based on the American Institute of Baking
(AIB) audit standard, and built the Tianjin and Hangzhou
plants as AIB+ demonstration plants to drive all production
bases to improve food safety management through a
benchmarking model. All normal operating plants of Master
Kong's beverage business and Pepsi’s beverage business are
certified under ISO 22000 (Food Safety Certification System),
FSSC 22000 (Food Safety Certification System) and Hazard
Analysis Critical Control Point (HACCP). Among them, all
of our bottled water plants have been annually certified by
the National Sanitation Foundation (NSF) and all of our Pepsi
beverage plants have participated in and successfully passed
the AIB annual food safety audit. In addition, the Hangzhou
Dingjin plant was certified as a CNAS microbiological
laboratory. The bakery business plant obtained 1SO9001
(Quality Management System) and 1S022000 (Food Safety
Management System) certifications and the system is
operating normally and passed the 2021 annual system
supervision audit.

IRELZTIMANFREZLEMANUL
AT RAEE/ B TR TR

A factory in normal operation is one that has been in operation for at least
6 months during the year and is not in a state of suspension or lockout.
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Health and Nutrition Product Development and
Expansion

The Fifth Plenary Session of the 19th CPC Central Committee
set the visionary goal of “building a healthy China” by
2035 from the perspective of the overall development of
the Party and the State, and made clear arrangements for
the comprehensive promotion of the construction of a
healthy China during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period. As
a leading company in China’s food and beverage industry,
Master Kong understands the significance of improving the
nutrition and health of its products. We recognize that with
the continuous upgrading of consumption, consumers are
no longer only concerned about the convenience and safety
of products, but are increasingly focusing on the nutrition
and health quality of products.

We deeply understand that “Without national health, there
will be no comprehensive well-off society”. The Company
actively responds to various national nutrition and health
policies, including the National Nutrition Plan (2017-2030),
and incorporates nutrition and health into various R&D
activities such as product formulation design, product
innovation and technical cooperation. In 2021, the new
products developed by Master Kong continued to meet
consumers’ needs for nutrition and health, promote the
reduction of oil and salt in products through technological
innovation, do not use preservatives, and reduce the use of
additives. We developed vegetable-based meat and refined
the recipe for “Roasted Beef Noodles”, and developed
recipes for 24 product categories, including “Corn Fresh
Vegetable Noodles” and “Udon”, to make them more
nutritious and healthy. Among them, Master Kong's “Udon”
won the “2020-2021 Year Outstanding Product Innovation
Award” of China’s instant food industry.

In terms of beverage research and development, we are
committed to the development and adjustment of sugar
reduction and zero sugar in the formulation and process of
our main items. We have completed the development of
sugar reduction for “Ice Tea”, “Pear with rock sugar” and
“Jasmine Honey Tea”, as well as the development of new
products such as “Suger-free Ice Tea” and “Suger-free Ice
Tea (with Dietary Fibre)”.
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Master Kong is committed to meeting the demand of young
consumers for products in smaller packs, which are more
portable and exclusive, as well as more environmentally
friendly. In view of this, Master Kong has launched new
products such as small-size of “masterpiece of good soup”
“Soup Chef” cup noodles (650ml and 510ml), small-
package “Sugar-free jasmine tea” (350mL) and small-
package “Suger-free Ice Tea” (330mL). Among them, “Soup
Chef” won 2020-2021 Best Innovation Award in China’s
Instant Food Industry.

m e

Products of Smaller Packs to Meet the Needs of Younger Consumers
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Spread Health Concept

Master Kong is committed to promoting Chinese Food &
Beverage Culture and continuing to provide consumers with
high-quality and diversified food and beverage products
to enjoy a healthy lifestyle and lead a better life. We fully
support and actively respond to the national nutrition and
health policy, and continue to conduct relevant research
together with various partners to meet the needs of
different groups of people for nutrition and health, actively
advocate the diet concept of reasonable diet and balanced
eating and moving, guide consumers to make suitable
food choices, and promote the nutrition and health of the
general consumer population together with the government
and industry partners.

During the year, Master Kong had adopted the concept of
“Life + Delicacy” to help Chinese winter sports athletes and
actively promote the concept of sports nutrition diet.At the
beginning of 2021, the theme video of “New Year health
is a blessing” had been spreading across the internet, with
each video carrying good wishes for a healthy New Year for

all, embracing a healthy New Year.

|

BRAESEPHEREMEREHER
Freestyle Skier Xu Mengtao Displays a Customized Product
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In February 2021, Master Kong participated in the 7th
National Popular Ice and Snow Season by setting up a
New Year Noodle House in the Ice and Snow Fair in Beijing
Shougang Park to provide professional and nutritious
dietary supplements to ice and snow enthusiasts. As at 31
December 2021, Master Kong held the “Delivery Ceremony
of Master Kong & China Ice and Snow Customized
Functional Products” and officially delivered to the Winter
Sports Centre of the General Administration of Sport of
China (the "Winter Sports Centre”) “The second generation

Em——BERE] -BER customized products of athletes - champion canteen”.
EEMEBIEXERMAEER The champion canteen products have been tested by
LA

208 (Glycemic Index, GI) 7
REREGER  EEPAR
ReeEBRa ABESMmN -
Uboh - REVBERRRERE
ABRAETREMEEE TH
H BERESETAEER
MBEREFRNEED  mEEH
ABHEHIEER T K -

the Glycemic Index (Gl) and certified as low GI products,
which are effective in improving athletic endurance when
consumed before exercise. In addition, Master Kong had
also developed sports customized Express Chef’s Noodles,
champion canteen High Energy Beef Nutritional Noodles and
Light Beef Nutritional Powder especially for athletes to meet
their needs for muscle building and weight control.

5% B0 183 B T 2R %[ R A8 &+ Bk 5 58 1) T B B E mm A2 <z =X

Master Kong successfully held “Delivery Ceremony of Master Kong & China Ice and Snow

Customized Functional Products”
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Master Kong “The Second Generation Customized Products of Athletes - Champion Canteen”
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Service to Consumers

We comply with the requirements of the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests, the Personal Information Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations,
and focus on listening to the voices of our customers. The
Company establishes and maintains smooth communication
channels to understand their expectations and aspirations.
The Company has set up a customer service centre to
facilitate the collection and feedback of suggestions,
enquiries and demands from consumers. Customer
feedback is collected through our 400 hotline, corporate
website and Sina Weibo. The customer service centre has
established standardized operating processes such as the
Customer Service Management Procedure to manage
customer feedback. The customer service team is required
to respond to customer feedback within the stipulated
timeframe, continuously track and follow up until the case
is closed, and visit customers to understand their satisfaction
and ensure that the issues raised by customers are properly
resolved. The customer service team and relevant business
departments regularly sort out customer feedback, identify
and analyze common problems, and develop optimzed
solutions. During the year, Master Kong received 13,401
customer complaints, with a satisfactory resolution rate of
97.3%.
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We communicate with our customers and provide high
quality services while protecting their privacy. We implement
systematical and processed management of the information
in accordance with the Customer Service Management
Procedure and strictly adhere to the principle of
confidentiality of customer information. In terms of capture
and recording customer information, we do not record
or keep important and sensitive information about our
customers. In terms of information access, we endeavour to
ensure data security in our internal systems and implement
account login privilege settings to restrict the access rights
and conditions of use of consumer information by our
internal staff to ensure information security.

Advertising and Intellectual Property Management

Master Kong continues to strengthen brand management
and strictly abides by the Advertising Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Patent Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Copyright Law of the People’s Republic
of China and other laws and regulations to regulate
the content of advertisements and labels to avoid any
promotional content of exaggerates, falsely advertisements
or any promotional content that misleads consumers, and
to effectively protect the legitimate rights and interests
of consumers. To ensure that the promotional content is
true and compliant, the Company requires any external
promotional materials and label designs to be reviewed
by various departments such as legal affairs, research and
development, and quality. And the materials and label
designs will be published after departments have confirmed.
In the area of brand promotion and product marketing, the
Company continues to improve its control mechanism and
encourages its partners and other advertising publishers and
operators to perform in good faith and compete fairly.

We emphasise the importance of respecting and protecting
intellectual property rights and focus on the accumulation
and application of intellectual property rights. In 2021,
the Company fully implemented its intellectual property
management measures and took active action to defend
its rights. We have worked with a number of professional
bodies to protect all aspects of intellectual property,
including patents and trademarks. For our core trademarks,
we have applied for registration and protection in many
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countries and regions around the world. We protect our
own intellectual property rights while preventing and
avoiding direct or indirect infringement of others’ intellectual
property rights by setting up a customs intellectual property
monitoring line, registering with the relevant authorities in
a timely manner, retrieving intellectual property information
and conducting relevant analysis. We also provide relevant
publicity and training to our staff to develop their awareness
of intellectual property protection, so as to enhance our
overall intellectual property protection capability and
maintain our brand image.

Supplier ESG Management

As a core enterprise in the value chain, we deeply
understand the leading and driving role of our own
behaviour on our suppliers. The Company established
a comprehensive supplier management system. By
continuously refining our supplier management capabilities,
we are committed to working together with our supply
chain partners to bring high quality products to our
consumers.

In terms of supplier recruitment, Master Kong has
formulated supplier development methods according to
the types of suppliers, clarified the supplier introduction
process and requirements, established supplier basic
information files and evaluated their qualifications in
accordance with the Supplier Evaluation - Information
Evaluation Form. On-site audits of suppliers are carried out
to examine and evaluate their factory environment, plant
and facilities, production and quality management, waste
discharge, and environmental and occupational health
and safety management levels. To assess the level of food
safety management of suppliers, we conduct sampling
inspections during the on-site inspection phase, using both
external inspections by third-party testing organizations
and Master Kong's own inspections to conduct rigorous
screening to ensure that they meet the relevant national
food safety standards and Master Kong's internal food
safety management requirements. Only those who pass all
the above assessments will be qualified as Master Kong's
suppliers.
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In terms of day-to-day supplier management, Master Kong
has developed a comprehensive approach to supplier
appraisal operations, which provides a comprehensive
assessment of each supplier’s supply quality, delivery, service
and cooperation, and rewards and punishments to suppliers
based on monthly and annual appraisal results. In terms of
supplier environmental and social risk management policies
and practices, we continue to promote our supplier partners’
awareness and understanding of the Master Kong’s Basic
Agreement with Supplier on Environmental and Social
Compliance, including environmental and social assessment
requirements to the scope of supplier assessment, requiring
our suppliers to meet relevant environmental and social
laws and regulations where they operate, and to commit to
the “nine mandatory requirements” for environmental and
social compliance, including minimum age of employment,
forced and bonded labour, business ethics, serious
environmental pollution, serious health or safety hazards,
working hours, wages, employee injury insurance and food
safety. In addition, we have signed the Anti-Commercial
Bribery Pledge with our suppliers and are committed to
creating transparent and clean supplier partnerships. As
of the end of this reporting period, we had assessed the
environmental and social risks of 876 suppliers.

Master Kong has put the concept of digitalization
throughout the supplier management system of
procurement, transportation and production, etc. Through
the promotion and implementation of the Supplier
Relationship Management (SRM) system, the digital
management of the entire bidding process, such as issuing
tenders, introducing suppliers, signing and approving base
prices, purchasing tenders and approving final bids has been
achieved. We have replaced manual data input in the form
of digital transmission, realized paperless operations, which
reduces system duplication of data and greatly improves
work efficiency and accuracy. We conducted training on
the SRM system for suppliers and relevant personnel of
Master Kong's supply chain to enhance their understanding
of the system’s functions and to continuously improve the
efficiency of the system’s utilization. At the same time,
we continues to promote the implementation of Material
Requirement Planning (MRP), which automatically calculates
raw material requirements, reducing the labour cost of
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manual calculating raw material requirement planning and
improving the accuracy. We follow the plan for procurement
and rationalize production line operations to achieve smooth
production, avoid overloading or idling of production lines,
increase flexibility in scheduling and improve production
efficiency.

Number of suppliers by region

HERHE

Numbe of

Supplier location suppliers
Mainland China 916
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 4
Foreign regions 6

Anti-corruption and Ethics Management

Master Kong is committed to creating a clean working
environment. The Company strictly complies with the
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other laws and regulations, and
has formulated anti-corruption-related management
systems such as the Management Measures on Employees’
Integrity and Self-discipline Behaviour, the Management
Measures on Employees’ Rewards and Punishments, and
the Operational Measures on Contract Inspection and
Review, and continuously improves the construction of the
Company’s anti-fraud mechanism. We prohibits directors
and all employees from engaging in or profiting from any
illegal or unethical economic behaviours and maintain a zero
tolerance attitude towards all acts of corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering, etc, and fully
implements our daily supervision and inspection work.

In order to enhance the Company’s compliance
management, the Company and its employees and suppliers
have signed the Anti-Commercial Bribery Commitment
Letter, which clearly requires employees and suppliers not to
offer or accept bribes. The Company also continues to build
and promote a culture of corporate integrity, strengthening
the monitoring and control as well as the education and
promotion mechanisms to continuously cultivate the
integrity awareness of directors and staff. In 2021, we
released a 30-minute training course on the online learning
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platform on the “Management Measures for Employees’
Integrity and Self-discipline” and conducted focused training
for 150 frontline checkers from various businesses, and
included the system in the content of the quarterly internal
control on-site training for new staff to strengthen their
awareness of integrity and compliance. With the theme
of "We are the people of Master Kong with principles”,
the Company has produced an integrity culture video to
promote the culture of internal control and integrity to all
staff through the corporate WeChat and the loop in the lift
of Master Kong building. The video was viewed by 1,710
people on the corporate WeChat and received messages
from staff in the building. For senior management, we share
the Company’s Audit Fraud Investigation Report via email
and provide regular presentation and training to the Board
on the progress of anti-corruption and anti-fraud work, to
guide the Board and management to focus on key fraud risk
areas and drive improvements in oversight management. In
November 2021, we provided the Board with a presentation
and training on the annual anti-corruption and anti-fraud.

Master Kong provides staff with a reporting email address
and a reporting hotline for violations such as commercial
bribery and fraud, encouraging internal and external
personnel to monitor each other and resist malpractices
together. We have formulated the Whistleblowing Operation
Procedures to regulate the process of handling reports,
the principles of reward and the relevant requirements for
the protection of whistleblowers, and strictly prohibit any
form of retaliation against whistleblowers to ensure the
effective transmission of whistleblowing information. The
Company has set up a Corporate Security Team under the
Audit Department, which is responsible for the analysis,
investigation and handling of whistleblowing cases. The
Company has developed special contingency plans and
handling mechanisms for incidents to enhance its ability
to deal with related issues. During the year, the Corporate
Security Group of the Audit Department conducted 27
special audits on the Company’s internal control, risk
management, procurement management and other
segments to comprehensively strengthen the Company’s
anti-corruption and anti-fraud management.
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In 2021, there was one case of embezzlement by an
employee of a subsidiary discovered by the Company and
referred to the public security authorities in accordance
with the law. The employee was sentenced to 2 years’
imprisonment after a court hearing, and the recovered
proceeds involved were returned to the Company.

Brand Breakthrough
To deduce the trend, we need this flavor

Master Kong is committed to enhancing the brand’s
influence among young consumers, focusing on hot topics
related to young people, exploring and discovering the
interests of young people, continuously creating diversified
and interesting brand activities that are closely related to
current consumer trends from three dimensions: products,
content and interactive forms, and continuously upgrading
the brand image. In 2021, national style, national comic
and national trend are becoming a new trend and hotspot
for young people. Master Kong is collaborating with
Zhang Yixing, a well-known national style musician and
representative of the outstanding youth of May Fourth in
China, and the popular variety show “IN CHINA" to support
young national style music creators. The programme team
of "IN CHINA" selected classic songs from various eras and
the contestants tapped into the connotation of “IN” for
the youth of today in their innovative interpretation of the
classics. The reinterpretation of the classics is a way to revive
the public’'s memory of the classics, which is in line with
the classic and rich taste of Master Kong's “Roasted Beef
Noodles “. “We need this flavor” keeps the classics alive.
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In 2021, Master Kong instant noodles joined hands with
top national comics to launch a series of themed brand
marketing campaigns, including “Doula Continent” x Rattan
Pepper Beef Noodles, “Heavenly God Blesses the People”
x Sour and Spicy beef with Aged Vinegar Noodles, the
national handheld game “Game for Peace” x Sauteed Beef
with Chili Sauce Noodles, and other “IN” stream hotspots
of interest to young consumer groups, providing deep
insight into consumer interest behaviours, stimulating social
communication in circles, interpreting the “IN” stream and

enhancing consumer recognition of the brand.

AR A B2 S (K

Roasted Beef Noodles “we need this flavor”
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“Bring blessings to CNY with Kang” tied to the festive scene

Master Kong understands the Chinese family’s expectation
of the Chinese New Year festive scenario of “family peace
and prosperity” and “Reunion makes the Spring Festival
atmosphere more stronger”. During the Chinese New Year
period in 2022, Master Kong planed to use “Bring blessings
to CNY with Kang” as the communication theme, focusing
on the good luck of the New Year and establishing three
major sections: “See Kang win good gift”, “Wechat Emoji
Rain Advertising” and “Wechat Shake”. With the help
of new technologies and channels such as AR and mini-
applications, they tied up the Chinese New Year product use
scenario, accumulated consumer goodwill and quickly built
up momentum for the brand, making Master Kong drinks a
must-have New Year standard for reunions.
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At the same time, Master Kong recognizes the young
consumer group’s love stand-up comedy, an emerging
form of comedy, and deeply binds the stand-up comedy IP
“Assemble! Pistachios”. Through flexible and appropriate
content implantation, we combined product scenarios with
popular variety shows, strengthened our reach to young
users, maximized communication effects, and enable
consumers to have a deeper resonance with the brand
proposition of “Bring blessing to CNY with Kang”. In the
future, Master Kong will continue to connect with young
consumers and commit to building a national brand that is

widely welcomed by young people.

[ ANBE AR

“Bring Blessings to CNY with Kang”
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With product innovation and business model changes,
Master Kong has set a good example for the development
of the food industry and has delivered more excellent
marketing cases with reference value to the industry and has
been recognized by the society.
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Releasing label-free beverages, practicing a low-carbon
development path

In early 2022, the Carbon Reduction and Environmental
Sustainable Development Forum and the launch of Master
Kong's label-free products were held in Shanghai, where
Master Kong launched label-free PET bottle packaging that
practises low-carbon concepts, including Unsweetened Ice
Tea and Lemon Flavoured Ice Tea. These are the first label-
free beverage products launched by Master Kong and the
first in the Chinese food and beverage industry. The launch
of these products shows Master Kong's consideration
of environmental impact at the production stage of its
products, reflects Master Kong's social responsibility to
actively mitigate environmental impact and introduce low-
carbon concepts into its product concepts based on its own
development, and shows Master Kong's attitude of keeping
our nature evergreen and exploring new ideas and space of
sustainable development.

F“i-
N 2022 gRk G s Eitls
: IJEMEh Fﬂﬁﬂm- L\

022 FRBIRRAFELERAEERMEREEEREME
2022 Carbon Reduction and Environmental Sustainable Development Forum
and Launch of Master Kong's Label-Free Products

FRERMIPHTENERBRRER © MV EBERRIKAR

The First Label-Free Product in China’s Food and Beverage Industry: Master Kong Label-Free Ice Tea
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EAETHEEBE R TENEE D As a leading company in China's food and beverage industry,

¥ REMEERARRERENS Master Kong actively takes responsibility for environmental

£ BRI EFERIRSRERSE protection, identifies and complies with the requirements of

EEEBRMER RIREBEZER national environmental protection-related laws and regulations,

F oo BREERUK - RHERER - R B establishes management policies and systems in the areas of

BEVMEE BFLEE EBYHSR environmental target setting, energy and water conservation,

B EERMEFESZES emission and carbon reduction, plastic reduction and packaging

MEYEEBREMGE  BEsE management, digital production, climate change response and

ERETE RBREASGYREMNER sustainable raw material procurement, implements various project

22 mMERIZXERTS BE2 practices to reduce its negative impact on the environment, and

BITE AR o continuously contributes to the realization of “Keep Our Nature

Green”.

1. RERREEAR? 1. Setting Environmental Management Targets
ERARAEHERREESIRE Guided by the Company’s sustainable development
w5 @ FE 2 1% Keep Our philosophy “Keep Our Nature Green”, we have set our
Nature Green)]WJ EE&ET « environmental development targets based on the actual
MEAEFAEELSHNERIS situation of our production and operation, combined with
N EEHBAEBRESENS analysis of past environmental data and planning for future
MRS ARRDEERNAE corporate development, including:

VT RRIRBEEREARE A

R

BEFEFIKFE - Energy and water consumption:

o PA2017H B H £ F - e Using 2017 as the base year, the combined energy
2025 5 B 8 T E 4R consumption per RMB'million of revenue (tonnes/
AR EREME, BB T RMB'million) will decrease by 12% in 2025.

ARB)TE12% °

o LA2017HF & B % F e Using 2017 as the base year, water abstraction per
2025F & A &tz RMB'million of revenue (tonnes/RMB’million ) will
KE(W,/ BETARE) decrease by 8% in 2025.

—FB% 8% °

2 FREER2017FREABEERERAER 2 The environmental key performance indicators, including greenhouse gas
BEHERRTE AR IRIE B IR R - HUERER emissions, were formally disclosed by Master Kong in 2017, so 2017 was
2017 FREEFHFRREEBE chosen as the base year for setting environmental management targets.
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Waste:

e  The recycling rate (actual sales volume/theoretical
production) of the main production-based raw
material waste is not less than 97%.

Emission:

e Using 2017 as the base year, greenhouse gas (Scope
1 and Scope 2) emissions per RMB'million of revenue
(tonnes/RMB’million) will decrease by 18% in 2025.

e  Emission concentrations of major air pollutants
(nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides, soot and dust) from
all plants meet or exceed national standards.

° Wastewater (COD) discharge concentrations meet or
exceed national standards.

Master Kong will maintain continuous monitoring of the
progress of achieving the above-mentioned environmental
targets, and regularly review and report on the achievement
of the environmental targets.

Energy and Water Conservation Management

According to the planning arrangements made by the
Sustainable Development Committee and its working
groups at the beginning of the year, the Supply Chain
Centre of each business of Master Kong implemented
energy and water conservation projects at each production
base to promote the implementation of energy and
water conservation in the Company, and set up full-time
management personnel at each production base.

At present, Master Kong has formulated the Energy
Management Code, the Energy Unit Consumption
Assessment and Evaluation Method, the Energy
Management Team System and the Energy Management
Performance Penalty System as the basis for the management
process, the reference for work implementation and the
guidance for energy saving performance assessment of
energy saving work. We also continue to use management
tools to promote refined management of energy use at
each production base, analyse and diagnose opportunities
for energy saving in factories, rationalize production
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process and replace outdated equipment with high energy
consumption. Performance management indicators for
energy consumption management have been set up in
each business and production base to better assess the
implementation of energy conservation, and the effect
of energy saving and consumption reduction has been
incorporated into the performance appraisal indicators of
relevant posts and combined with incentives to enhance
the importance of energy saving work by staff in relevant
posts. At the same time, we organize relevant training to
enhance staff awareness of energy saving and management,
promote the establishment of a corporate energy saving
culture through various publicity channels and share energy
saving experiences to achieve continuous improvement of
the Company’s energy saving management level.

17 plants of Master Kong's beverage business and 13 plants
of Pepsi’s beverage business were honoured as “ Excellent
Energy-saving Enterprise “ by the China Beverage Industry
Association for their respective outstanding energy saving

m%Jéﬁ%ﬁﬁ °

saving renovation project for
manufacturmg; noodles

1,600 1,600 tonnes ‘
Y IR TR R

£ FAE 1,600 °

Master Kong Instant Noodles Factory uses a
high-pressure pump to add steam condensate
to the steam mains of the steamer. During the
decompression process before entering the
steamer, the high-temperature water is vaporised
twice to produce steam, saving 1,600 tonnes of
steam usage per year.

management achievements.

:\:-\Jbiﬁﬁe
onstimption
management system

4, 000%7 40 m|II|on kWh ’

Master Kong Beverage Business promotes EMS
energy management system in the factory,
focusing on the electricity saving project of high
pressure air compressors. Through measures
such as optimizing equipment start-up, setting
reasonable blowing pressure and adjusting
equipment loading rate, the factory achieved
a reduction in power consumption per unit of
product, saving a total of approximately 40 million
kWh of electricity in the year.

55 7K B A R S LM
Sewage station blower 4
replacement

11%1* 110 000 kWh ’

:t RASEH—

Beijing Pepsi replaced a high energy consumption
blower with a high efficiency air suspension
blower, saving approximately 110,000 kWh of
electricity per year.
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In terms of water conservation management, the Company
has formulated the Water Conservation Management
System as a reference and basis for carrying out water
conservation work and requires production staff to operate
in strict compliance with the system. In 2021, we carried
out a “water balance tests” to understand the current
situation of water consumption in the water supply
network and each unit, and based on the measured water
quantity data, we judge the reasonable level of water
consumption and monitor water consumption in turn.
We identified production processes and equipment with
high water consumption, strengthened detailed control,
promoted key water conservation projects, disseminated
outstanding examples to all Master Kong factories and
incorporated water consumption indicators into the
performance appraisal system of relevant personnel. We
actively explore opportunities for the use of water, construct
and maintain water reuse systems, and make rational use
of water in equipment cleaning and lawn irrigation to
enhance the efficiency of water use. At the same time, we
actively promote awareness and ways to conserve water
resources, and strive to integrate the concept of “Cherishing,
Conserving and Protecting Water” into all aspects of our
daily production work. The 16 plants of Master Kong'’s
beverage business and 13 plants of Pepsi's beverage
business were once again awarded the title of “Excellent
Water-saving Enterprise” by the China Beverage Industry

FRBRR o

l!! REx
Neutrallz water recycling

project L

34 %@ 340,000 tonnes ‘

; i:] %’Uﬁ 7}\% 34
8B, o

After deep purification by instant noodles factory,
the wastewater is treated to meet national water
discharge standards and used for watering
lawn, cooling down exhaust air, saving of water
340,000 tonnes per year.

Association for their excellent management practices.

! o
.
K K R AR
Retovery of concentrated -
water and backwash water

48,000 48,000 tonnes ‘
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The concentrated water discharged from the
production plant is collected in a recovery tank
at the Langfang plant of Master Kong beverage,
where it is converted into ultrafiltered water by
means of a booster pump, a high-pressure pump
and an RO unit and recycled to an ultrafiltered
water tank,and the unconverted concentrated
water is discharged to a sewage catchment,
saving approximately 48,000 tonnes of water per
year.

Siew ge sta lon_slud_
I.LSII’\ Ineutrallzed Wi

4,000 4,000 tonnes ‘

YIESHEEBEKERAFKEER
SUERK KA R fEZ - FRIEIAIKE
4,000 Mg °

Shenzhen Pepsi reuses the treated wastewater
into the neutralized water treatment system to
produce neutralized water for sludge pressing,
saving approximately 4,000 tonnes of water
resources per year.
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Emission and Carbon Reduction Management

For the management of exhaust gas, greenhouse gas,
wastewater and waste emissions, we comply with the
relevant laws and regulations of the country and the place
of operation, including the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Environmental Protection, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Air Pollution, the Comprehensive Emission Standards
for Air Pollutants, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution,
the Technical Guidelines for Self-Monitoring of Emission
Units, the Emission Standards for Boiler Air Pollutants, the
Emission Standards for Odour Pollutants, the Emission
Control Standards for Volatile Organic Compounds from
Industrial Enterprises and the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste, etc. The internal management
system for exhaust gas, greenhouse gas, waste water and
waste emissions of Master Kong has been formulated as the
basis for management and control, with the management
responsibilities of relevant positions clearly defined,
corresponding emission reduction measures implemented,
production processes optimized, advanced environmental
protection facilities and technologies introduced, and
various environmental protection special projects carried
out to mitigate the impact of production and operation
on the environment. We commission qualified units to
conduct regular environmental monitoring to ensure that all
pollutants are discharged in accordance with standards. At
the same time, we upgrade the skills of relevant personnel
and implement maintenance work for treatment equipments
to achieve stable operation of the wastewater and waste
gas treatment systems. For hazardous waste generated, we
have commissioned qualified professional units to dispose of
it.
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The instant noodle business factory carries out
deep treatment of waste gas, which pass through
the original equipment and enter the drug bath
treatment system + mixture absorption system to
further degrade the organic substances remaining in
the waste gas to meet the compliance standard and
reduce the odour around the factory boundary.

4. RBEEGRYER

RE 2 kER

akdRE 7 s e
Wastewater'treatment system
capacity increase dnd'maintenance

1,000 1,000 tonnes’
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The wastewater system capacity increase and
anaerobic system maintenance were carried out
at the Jinan, Urumgi, Shenyang and Yangzhou
factories of Master Kong beverage business,
with a total treatment capacity of approximately
7,000 tonnes per day, ensuring safe operation
of wastewater treatment while reducing COD
emissions by approximately 1,000 tonnes per year.
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The Pepsi factory in Zhengzhou has installed
volatile organic waste gas treatment systems for
the blowing and preform processing processes
respectively, reducing the emission of 1.8 tonnes
of total non-methane hydrocarbons per year.

4.  Plastic Reduction and Packaging Management
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Master Kong actively responds to the national plastic
reduction policy and refines packaging management at all
stages of the product production cycle, reducing the use
of plastics and packaging materials while meeting product
quality requirements, or using packaging materials with
a lower negative impact on the environment, in order to
implement the concept of sustainable development.

At the product production stage, the Company has
developed internal management systems such as the Raw
Material Overconsumption Standard, actively conducted
relevant research and exploration from various components
of product packaging, and developed a special plastic and
weight reduction plan program for packaging materials. In
the product transportation stage, we analysed the product
cargo transfer process and changed some products from
bagging to tanker transport to reduce the unnecessary
use of packaging in the transportation process. In terms of
product recycling and disposal, we have developed systems
such as the Factory Waste Management Measures as a
basis for management, sorting, organizing and storing
waste packaging, and handing over waste packaging with
use value to qualified waste disposal units for recycling,
secondary processing and utilization, so that waste
packaging and other resources can be treated harmlessly.
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Highlights of our work on plastic reduction and packaging
management during the year include:

HEAER
INSTANT NOODLES BUSINESS

l? MEmRENREER ETRMBLRI BEMRE RMESKMAWME  HIe
DR BEYOER Reduce packaglng materlals waste by FRFEHE

Change from bagging to recycling cartons Reducing the use of packaging

tanker transport of raw bags by switching to tonne

materials, reducing the bags for raw materials

consumption of packaging packaging

materials

FMEBSRmER
MASTER KONG BEVERAGE BUSINESS

MEERPVCHE B RS ERE
PETGME - BIERRPE - BF
B PVC #ﬂ*ﬂiﬁﬁ%’a 3,126
Optimization of bottle labels from
PVC to easily degradable PETG
material, reducing environmental
impact and reducing the use of
PVC bottle labels by approximately
3,126 tonnes per year

330ml % 500m| % 16 52 18 & X @
%ﬁ%lﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁél{’ﬁ T EE
B PET #1249 3,400 1
Reducmg the weight of 330ml
and 500ml beverage bottles is
expected to reduce the use of PET
material by approximately 3,400
tonnes per year

BEERmEE
PEPSI BEVERAGE BUSINESS

3z

HoERMERERD02%R
A BER D RE PEFEA
#1340M

Reducing cap weight of some
products by 0.2g per cap,
reducing raw material PE
consumption by approximately
340 tonnes per year

S T HWPETMEZ = EH2.5g
(1K %239 BFRAPPETH
FHE 40 413 R

Reducing PET cap weight from
2.5g to 2.3g in some factories,
reducing PET material use by
approximately 413 tonnes per
year

PET 500m!| & = EE=EH A 23.2
FRRZE21g - BFRDPETHMH
BRI 2191

Reducing PET 500ml Pepsi sugar-
free empty bottles from 23.2
to 21g, reducing the use of PET
material by approximately 219
tonnes per year

55 BKPET 1LZE i #3359 F%
R=E33gm A T $&E
2022 FF FH R

Complete testing of PET 1L
empty bottles from 35g to
33g, to be replaced step by
step in 2022
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At the same time, we are working with third parties to
experiment with recycling of packaging. Master Kong
Beverage Business and Pepsi Beverage Business are working
with partners on PET recycling research. In 2021, four
plants of Master Kong's beverage business in Guangzhou,
Hangzhou, Hefei and Wuhan, as well as the Beijing plant
of Pepsi Beverage, handed over waste PET bottles to
units with plastic recycling qualifications for recycling into
recycled polyester fabric, workwear, packaging plastic and
other environmentally friendly recycled goods, reducing
the production of more than 900 tonnes of waste plastic in
total, and more than 1,400 pieces of workwear made from
PET waste have been used by personnel in many of Master

Kong's plants.

PET B A A #H ELR Y TR

Workwear Made from Recycled PET Materials

EmEER 61

2021 Annual Report ¥



S

IR (g REIATRE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HFLEEER

BIRZBERETEERE N
AAREERNEZEE W
TREBREESRTILEES
B MDA EHREEEREYT
vt Beelb  BEEIE &
REHFIEAB IR BFE
RIS & A - 20214
1H: EENEES TISO/NEC

27001 E B L2 ERERTE -

ISO/EC 27001 E R L2 BB X RE BEEEER

Digital Production Management

We deeply understand the importance of digital
transformation to the sustainable development of the
Company, and are committed to actively promoting digital
production management, promoting the digitalization,
intelligence and automation work of the production supply
chain system, building digital pilot factories and gradually
realizing the intelligent transformation of factories. In January
2021, Master Kong obtained ISO/IEC 27001 certification for
its information security management system.

ISO/IEC 27001 Information Security Management System Certification Presentation Ceremony

MR B THAEER
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(Transportation Management
System  TMS) B ## i & 42 %
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In recent years, we have networked and centrally controlled
the production equipments and devices in our plants to
display and operate the operating status of production
devices through centrally controlled digital panels, and to
keep track of energy consumption and other production
data in real time. In 2021, Master Kong’s businesses
continued to promote the LineView production line online
monitoring and data collection system, which provides
real-time monitoring of production line operation status
and automatically calculates KPI indicators, generates
factory production line efficiency reports and rankings,
strongly supports the Company’s production efficiency and
energy saving and consumption reduction and many other
refinement work.

Transport Management System (TMS) of Master Kong
provides various functions such as route optimization,
vehicle management, vehicle tracking and performance
management. In 2021, Master Kong continued to deepen
the use of the system to monitor transport vehicles in real
time, count transport time and efficiency, reduce transport
costs, implement dynamic route distribution mode,
improve distribution efficiency, achieve interconnection and
information sharing of logistics and distribution information,
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unify the dispatching and management of Master Kong's
factories, carriers and transport driver system, and empower
the supply chain logistics system of each business in four
dimensions: freight, efficiency, cost and service, realizing
unified control of nearly 100 factories nationwide and the
synergy and interoperability of over 100 transporters and
more than 500 business offices of transporters across the
country. For example, we have applied the system to the
management of vehicles in factory parks, and through
digital management modes such as vehicle arrival time
booking and system queue calling, we have achieved
scientific control of transport vehicles’ time in factories,
reduced waste of loading and unloading manpower and
resources, and slowed down vehicle queue congestion.
At the same time, the system enables full visualization
of vehicle trajectories, prevention and management of
transport abnormalities before and during the process,
recording transport data throughout the process, providing
real feedback on performance indicators such as supplier
service and factory efficiency, and promoting logistics
management improvement.

The use of TMS system is the embodiment of Master Kong's
practice of green transport concept, through the application
of the system, we have achieved savings in transport vehicles
and fuel resources, according to internal calculations, this
application can reduce nearly 20,000 tonnes of carbon
emissions per year.

Efficient Consumer Response (ECR), aims to eliminate excess
inventory and reduce unnecessary costs at all stages of the
supply chain in order to meet consumer demand. The China
ECR Committee promotes the application of ECR in various
areas of the consumer goods industry and is committed
to improving the overall efficiency of the supply chain
and promoting the healthy development of the industry.
As a board member of the ECR Committee, Master Kong
continues to advocate win-win cooperation with partners
to actively build a green and low-carbon supply system.
In 2021, the 18th China ECR Conference was held in
Hangzhou, where Master Kong and a number of leading
companies in the food and beverage industry exchanged
views on the topic of “Optimizing the Digital Ecology
and Enjoying Smart Living”. To coincide with the 20th
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anniversary of the China ECR Committee, Master Kong and
more than 60 internationally and domestically influential
enterprises jointly launched the Enhancing the Efficiency of
Retail and Supply, Green and Collaborative Development
initiative to promote digitalization and win-win cooperation
in the industry and comprehensive green transformation.
The “Smart Logistics Supply Chain Solution” jointly created
by Master Kong and vTradEx, a leading brand in supply
chain solutions, was selected as one of the best practice
projects for the 2020-2021 China ECR Outstanding Cases.

[BEFCERZERLAE R GRS
"Optimizing the Digital Ecology and Enjoying Smart Living” Networking Seminar
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Responding to Climate Change

Climate change is currently an important issue of global
concern and a long-term challenge for mankind. Master
Kong maintains a constant focus on the issue of climate
change and actively assesses the impact of climate change
on our production and operations. We identify the key
risks posed by climate change and proactively consider and
establish counter measures, while we also actively identify
the relevant opportunities that climate change may bring.

Climate change increases the likelihood of extreme weather
events including floods, droughts, typhoons, heavy rains,
snow and freezing temperatures. Extreme weather occurring
in the locations where the Company operates may adversely
affect the production, transportation, storage and sale of
Master Kong's products and even cause property damage,
affecting the Company's sales plans and revenue. Based on
the characteristics of the geographical environment where
we operate, we conduct a comprehensive analysis of the
possibility of various types of natural disasters, identify
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the types of natural disasters that may affect the normal
production and operation of the Company and the degree
of danger, and formulate the special emergency plan for
natural disasters so that in the event of a major natural
disaster, we can handle and carry out rescue in a timely
manner in accordance with the predetermined plan, so
that the impact of the disaster can be effectively controlled
within a short period of time to ensure the personal safety
of employees and the safety of the Company’s property.
We also keep an eye on the weather and stock up on
emergency supplies in advance in the event of extreme
weather warnings to ensure the stable operation of the
energy supply and water supply and drainage systems in the
various high-voltage power houses so as to minimise losses.

Extreme weather conditions may cause suppliers to be
unable to supply us with raw materials on a consistent basis
and may also cause a reduction in agricultural production,
which may lead to fluctuations in the price of production
materials and affect production costs. To address such
risks, we maintain long-term partnerships with a number
of qualified suppliers for the same raw material at the same
time to ensure a wide range of suppliers’ raw material
supply, thereby mitigating the risk of interruptions in raw
material supply due to extreme weather conditions. In
addition, we actively conduct price analysis of raw materials
to identify the types of raw materials that are significantly
affected by weather and keep an eye on weather factors
that may have an impact on their prices, while we lock
in prices in advance when entering into contracts with
suppliers to control production costs.

Against the backdrop of the Carbon Peaking and Carbon
Neutrality targets proposed by the country, and in order to
better understand its own carbon emissions, the Company
conducted its first Carbon Inventory Project in mid-2021,
covering the upstream and downstream of Master Kong's
value chain, comprehensively calculating Scope 1 and
Scope 2 carbon emissions data and determining the main
Scope 3 carbon footprint in upstream and downstream of
the value chain. In this inventory, we applied the LCA (Life
Cycle Assessment) methodology, and based on common
standards and criteria such as the National Development and
Reform Commission and the IPCC (Intergovernmental Panel
on Climate Change) Guidelines for National Greenhouse
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Gas Emissions List, we accounted for Master Kong’'s own
Scope 1 and 2 Greenhouse Gas emissions, as well as
Scope 3 (including procurement of agricultural products
and packaging materials, transportation and distribution,
employee travel and commuting, product storage and
logistics, product consumption and final disposal). This
carbon inventory has given us a more comprehensive
picture of the carbon footprint of Master Kong's products
and services, which has provided us with a direction and
clues for our subsequent carbon reduction work, and laid
an important foundation for the subsequent formulation of
carbon reduction targets and setting of carbon reduction
pathways. In the future, Master Kong will carry out targeted
carbon reduction work in accordance with the key carbon
emission areas and the actual situation, and gradually plan
the implementation path for carbon reduction, while taking
a leading role in the value chain and collaborating with
upstream and downstream partners and consumers to move

towards carbon neutrality.

PHIRBEERMEE
Full Carbon Inventory Project Launch Meeting
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7.  Sustainable Sourcing of Raw Materials

When sourcing raw materials, we pay attention to the
quality of raw materials as well as the negative impact on
the environment during the cultivation and production of
agricultural raw materials and the production of cartons and
other packaging materials, and include the environmental
attributes of raw materials in the consideration of supplier
management, and try to use more raw materials with
environmentally friendly attributes.

100% of paper suppliers such as cartons purchased by
Master Kong have Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)
certification, 36.8% of palm oil suppliers in the instant
noodle business have obtained Roundtable on Sustainable
Palm Qil (RSPO) certification, and 30% of white sugar
suppliers in the Master Kong Beverages Business and Pepsi
Beverages Business have obtained Bonsucro certification.

2021 - REVBRERBRESIERIIT In 2021, Master Kong's environmental Key Performance Indicators

R BRBITHRE  RIBASUE()SETE are listed below. Unless otherwise stated, the statistics scope of

BERE LERMERERSEXEERTE environmental data® covers the Master Kong building in Shanghai

(Q)RIEAN T EBIR - FIMNEEEERER and all domestic factories directly managed? by each business, while

J\@*T“%Z—E RETEIE - RRGBBER overseas offices are not included in the scope of statistics for the time

B RT IR ER o being due to their small scale, and will be disclosed in due course
according to the actual situation.
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BERBHREES (HE1REE2)® (BH) 228.23
Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions® (Scope 1 & Scope 2)® (10,000 tonnes)

BETKWZBAZEREHERE (M BB xkE) 30.81
Greenhouse Gas Emissions per million of sales (tonne/million of sales)

HEEFHEAREO (KRE) 5,319,982.29
Total comprehensive energy consumption® (MWh)

HERWBEGRAEFEEECKRE BHETWE) 71.81
Comprehensive energy consumption per million of sales

(Mwh/million of sales)

EHCKER) 1,708,177.73
Electricity (MWh)

BERWESE N ERECKER BETKE) 23.06
Electricity consumption per million of sales (MWh/million of sales)

FUBRFIEH KRR 14,654.62
Petrol and diesel (MWHh)

RARME R KEE) 923,684.46
Natural gas and coal (MWh)

SBR[ CRFE) 2,673,465.48

Purchased steam (MWh)

RKBEO (MFXK)

Total water use® (m?3)

54,869,347.23

BExTWEAKE(IAR BETKE) 740.65
Water consumption per million of sales (m3/million of sales)

EmBEMBEAEAEO () 1,382,599.75
Total product packaging materials used ) (tonne)

BExWZEEMHERE (B BETWE) 270.99
Packaging material used per million of sales (tonne/million of sales)

{tZEESE (CHEMICAL OXYGEN DEMAND ° COD) BF 42 & ® (M) 122.97
Total chemical oxygen demand (COD) emissions® (tonne)

BEREYEE (M) 601.52
Total hazardous waste (tonne)

BETWEEEREEYERE (W, FEBxkE) 0.01
Hazardous waste emissions per million of sales (tonne/million of sales)

BEBEYHE (W) 188,587.32
Total non-hazardous waste (tonne)

BEETWnEETREYERE (B kE) 2.55

Non-hazardous waste emissions per million of sales (tonne/million of sales)
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Based on the nature of Master Kong's business, the main gas
emissions in 2021 are greenhouse gases, mainly from the use
of electricity and fuels converted from fossil fuels. Compared
with 2021, Master Kong has further reduced the use of fossil
fuels such as natural gas and coal, along with continued
reductions in sulphur dioxide (SO,) and oxynitride (NO )
emissions, the impact of which is minimal and therefore not
disclosed as a major gas emission in the current year.

The domestic plants under the direct management of each
of Master Kong's businesses include all plants of the Instant
Noodles Business, Master Kong Beverage Business and Bakery
Business located inside the country, as well as all domestic
plants of the Pepsi Business except for the plants in Shanghai,
Wuhan, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Shenyang, Tianjin, Jinan,
Guilin, Fuzhou, Zhanjiang, Changsha, Xi‘an and Kunming.
Among which, Pepsi’s business is managed directly by Pepsi
International except for 4 factories in Shanghai, Wuhan,
Nanjing and Hangzhou. Pepsi’s plants in Shenyang, Tianjin,
Jinan, Guilin, Fuzhou, Zhanjiang, Changsha and Kunming
are not included in the scope of this statistics as they are no
longer in operation during this year, while the Pepsi’s plants
in Xi'an will cease operations after mid-January 2021 and are
therefore not included in the scope of this statistics.

The scope of greenhouse gas accounting for Master Kong
mainly covers carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide.
The greenhouse gas emission data is presented in terms
of carbon dioxide equivalent and calculated in accordance
with the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC)
2006 Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas List (Revised in
2019). A carbon inventory project was implemented during
the year to include purchased steam in the calculation of
greenhouse gas emissions.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Scope 1: covers greenhouse gas emissions directly generated
by the Company’s operations; Scope 2: greenhouse gas
emissions from “indirect energy” resulting from the
Company'’s internal consumption (purchased or acquired) of
electricity and purchased heat.

The comprehensive energy consumption is calculated
through direct and indirect energy consumption, based
on the conversion factors of the National Standard of the
People’s Republic of China General Rules for Calculating
Comprehensive Energy Consumption (GB/T 2589-2020).

Water consumption is for production and employee office
use within the scope of the statistics. We have no problem in
finding the applicable water sources.

The amount of product packaging materials used is the total
amount of major packaging materials used for all items of
products in each of Master Kong's businesses.

The total COD emissions are the sum of the COD produced
by all the plants within the statistical scope and the final
emissions after treatment by municipal sewage treatment
plants.
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Deeply Develop Human Resources and Create an
Excellent Workplace

Master Kong strictly abides by the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of the Rights and Interests of
Women, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Minors, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Persons with Disabilities, the
Regulations on the Employment of Persons with Disabilities,
the Regulations on the Prohibition of Child Labour and
other applicable laws and regulations, and has accordingly
formulated the Measures for Recruitment of Staff, the
Procedures for Appointment of Staff, the Management
Measures of Staff Promotion, the Management Measures
of Staff Resignation, the Management Measures of Staff
Rewards and Punishments, as well as other systems and
measures. Each business has also formulated applicable
systems and measures according to its own situation to
regulate the signing and termination of labour contracts,
so as to ensure that all employment work is regulated and
based on rules and regulations, and to effectively protect
the legitimate rights and interests of employees.

Equal Employment

The Company has an equal employment policy, eliminating
all forms of employment discrimination, establishing a
recruitment, development and promotion system that is
non-discriminatory in terms of gender, ethnicity and beliefs,
and recruiting a certain percentage of disabled employees
and guaranteeing equal pay and benefits. 351 disabled
employees are in service this year, with 91 new employees.
We oppose all forms of forced labour and child labour, and
we strictly examine original and photocopies of identity cards
when recruiting. If forced labour or child labour is found,
we will strictly follow the requirements of the local labour
bureau and immediately stop their work. Each business also
regularly verifies the working hours of its employees through
its internal system. The Company’s internal control and
auditing departments conduct reviews on recruitment and
employment from time to time to avoid forced labour and
to regulate the management of staff leave.
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Employee Rights

The Company stipulates the working hours and holidays of
its employees in the labour contract in accordance with the
requirements of the Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China. Meanwhile, employees are entitled to
annual leave with pay, personal leave, sick leave, marriage
leave, bereavement leave, maternity leave, paternity leave
and breastfeeding leave, etc. They can apply for leave
in accordance with the corresponding leave periods and
approval rights. The Company actively responds to and
implements government policies, and will amend its internal
rules and regulations in a timely manner in accordance with
new local regulations (e.g. parental leave updated in the
current year) to effectively protect the rights and interests of
employees to take rest.

Remuneration and Benefits

Master Kong has established salary management measures
for employees, such as salary, performance and year-end
bonus, and pays “five insurance and one fund” in full for
employees in accordance with the requirements of the
Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Regulations on the Administration of Housing
Provident Fund and other national laws and regulations,
while adjusting the insurance and provident fund
contribution ratios, upper and lower limits and minimum
wage standards in a timely manner every year in accordance
with policy requirements, so as to provide employees with
competitive salary packages in the market. Depending on
their own situation, each business adopts different levels of
incentives such as monthly, quarterly and annual awards for
outstanding staff, and provides additional subsidies for staff
such as high temperature, high cold, heating, relocation
allowance and rental subsidy. We also provide soft benefits
such as travel, birthday benefits and health check-ups for
our staff.
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Master Kong is committed to streamlining our management processes to improve HR efficiency and employee
experience. During the year, Master Kong continued to promote the digital transformation of HR, further
optimizing the HR BI system and expanding the scope of Bl report data based on the results of our work in
2020. Meanwhile, we continued to promote the operation of the HR intelligence system, pre-employment mini-
application and HR workflow to improve the efficiency of HR operations and reduce management and staff costs
to a great extent.
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Promote Staff Growth and Development, Create a
Smart Workplace

Master Kong has always valued the training and
development of staff. In order to better shape the all-round
talents with “Diligence, Integrity and Competence” and
to enhance the cohesiveness of the team, the Company
conducts customized and functionally diverse courses
for employees at different levels, and each business also
formulates the corresponding training management system
in accordance with its own situation. We provide training
opportunities for employees in various categories, such as
general corporate culture training, professional knowledge
and skills enhancement training and management skills
enhancement training, depending on their job level,
career development stage and functional position. At the
same time, through long-term collaboration with external
professional training institutions, we work together to create
enhancement training programmes that are tailored to the
actual needs of Master Kong, bringing forward-looking and
scientific knowledge and skills to our employees.
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We have set up various training courses and programmes,
with a total of 728,900 hours of training and 125.14 hours
of training per person. In order to make it more convenient
and effective for every employee to learn the various
training videos delivered by the Company, and to meet
the fragmented learning needs of the new generation of
employees, we continued to optimize our online learning
mode during this year, enriching our mobile learning
resources such as “WEME Academy” and “E-learning”, and
updating the course content in a timely manner to ensure
that our employees can enhance their knowledge base and
quickly improve their professional skills.
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X B ERBRE T RA
HEMRE  REEEINR
E&a  BRTRHNEAN
1t o HPIEE R FIBIIERZ
BERBERNOME - Bt
?MﬁTﬁﬁyE%k'ﬂa
EBRERARNE BERTEL
BERTRERBE -

8 THEFIFRIZIR%
Staff Training Course

In 2021, each business arranged key training programmes
to strengthen the management skills of middle-level
supervisors and enhance internal organizational skills for
the on-job department level, reserve management level
and on-job management level according to plan. The M
series of training courses for on-job reserve management
capacity enhancement are centrally planned and graded,
each of which is designed with highly targeted courses to
enhance and strengthen from grass-roots staff to senior
management. In response to the lack of practical exercises
in online training, we have targeted diversified additional
offline reinforcement courses to enrich the learning mode
and content, so that employees can learn interactively online
and offline.
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Safeguard Employee Health and Safety To Create a
Secure Workplace

Master Kong strictly complies with national laws and
regulations such as the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Work Safety, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
and the Fire Services Law of the People’s Republic of China.
We have accordingly issued a series of internal management
measures and emergency plans to form an institutional
guarantee for the implementation of work safety and
prevention of occupational diseases. The Company provides
employees in front-line jobs with occupational disease risks
or high safety risks with a full range of protective gears,
such as eye protection, chemical protective gloves, ear plugs
and safety uniforms, to effectively reduce the health impact
on employees due to special workplaces and environments.
To ensure safe production and operation, the employees
of special jobs requires relevant license. To ensure safe
production and operation, the employees of special jobs
requires relevant license. In addition, we organize annual
health checks for our staffs and actively organize fire
safety drills to enhance their awareness of fire safety and
their ability to protect themselves. All new employees are
required to receive safety training before they are allowed
to work in production operations. At the same time, all
production bases of Master Kong conscientiously implement
the relevant requirements and deployment of Environment,
Health and Safety (EHS) of the Company. We continuously
and thoroughly carry out EHS management activities and
strictly conduct annual EHS audits. We set up EHS specialists
to continuously carry out safety education, and regularly
organize EHS skills training and competitions to continuously
raise the awareness of our staff on production safety.
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In 2021, the prevention and control of the COVID-19
pandemic has become a regular management process.
We had strictly implemented the registration, temperature
measurement, health QR code checking of personnel in
and out of our office buildings and production bases. We
disinfected environment and implement other prevention
and control work, provided free masks to our employees
and reimbursed employees for the cost of nucleic acid
testing incurred due to business trips. At the same time, we
actively cooperate with and respond to the requirements
of local pandemic prevention and control authorities,
advocating and arranging for staff to be vaccinated with the
COVID-19 vaccine in an orderly manner and registering the
vaccination. For employees in medium to high risk areas,
we flexibly adjust their attendance and workplace, and
reasonably arrange for them to work from home or take
leave to be committed to ensure their lives and health.

Build a Corporate Culture and Create a Better Workplace

The corporate culture of Master Kong has played an
important role in the 29 years of its career. Nowadays,
enterprises are resonating with the times and entering a new
stage of high-quality and stable development. As enterprises
go through the process of change and generational change,
culture building becomes even more important. At the
beginning of 2021, the Company formed a Culture Building
Committee, with Chairman Wei Hong-Ming and Chairman
Wei Hong-Chen as the core members. Under the active
promotion of the two Chairmen, seven major Culture
Building Committee meetings and many communication
sessions were held throughout the year. We have taken
cultural construction as an ultimate goal of helping the
sustainable operation of the Company. With the integration
of the correct corporate values into all supervisors and
employees as the primary task of cultural construction at
this stage, so as to truly build a good enterprise with shared
culture, organizational resonance, growing together and
incentive sharing.

76 EMEZERERAT
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.




R

R g REIARTRE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Q0N FEXEWEREZESH
BET  H/2EF 58 EE
M FEREREETRA
EUIA - SERNCEEBES
HERTERES  BEIRE
Hh % 2 B FRAD(E A ¥ S b iR
WRAOEMREAZALRE -

BB EEXEZEATEA
EBREEFINES AR
NBEREIERAFARELYG
XAbEREI - BEFER 124
SR 1,590 ARz e
TREEMEHREMERRE
SHEE hRAEFRAA
(%) Br- g HiE  BE-
BIFT IO BES - B[
W XEBEWERBRKRAZ:
HEFHBHEEENTN @
ARG EE 2B RECUEE -
B % B R N B B0 Y BRI K
% BEAERBNIBEGHE
MEEBEHNETHEHRREE

EEn
AR o

[Ny

RNFE QAR FEAEL 1,500 88
RXALEREETE - RS
EEANHAREFELITER
B hEESEMNREALA
(Bl BEMRMEENIEM T
Bl TCIFEA]l BZHRE
Elmr ]S BARIMET
TRABHBERERTLESE 2
XEEBR  BEE BMIE
ITHEREE  TESHEA
[ o

In 2021, under the guidance of the Culture Building
Committee, the Culture Building Secretariat cut through
different angles such as learning, publicity, grassroots
interviews and annual exemplary commendation,
combining correct corporate values with practical work, and
subconsciously raising all Master Kong people’s awareness
of cultural construction from the cognitive level to inner
recognition.

We have embedded the content of corporate culture
building into the training for supervisors at all levels, and we
have conducted a total of 42 training sessions on culture
building for supervisors from group level to director level,
with a total of 124 hours of lectures and 1,590 people
trained. In addition to understanding the history of Master
Kong's development, the supervisors also gained a deep
understanding of the Company’s core values of “Diligence,
Integrity, Ability, Honesty, Pragmatism and Innovation”. At
the same time, the Culture Building Secretariat adopted a
combination of visits and case studies for the first time, to
strengthen supervisors’ understanding of responsibility and
self-discipline by organizing a visit to the Integrity Culture
Museum. This innovation to get supervisors learn about the
national requirements of integrity for cadres, followed by
internal case studies.

During the year, the Company organized more than 1,500
activities to promote culture building, and at the same time
launched internal activities to select outstanding employees
in each business: the “Kang noodles Hall of Fame” in the
instant noodle business, the “Ten best employees of Pepsi”
and “amazing people in central position “ in the Pepsi
beverage business, and the “Heroes list” in the Master
Kong beverage business, etc. Through internal examples of
employee behaviour, we actively spread positive energy and
make culture visible and tangible, so that employees have
role models around them and have a direction to work hard.
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Since the second half of 2021, when the Grassroots Staff
Voice Talks system was planned, the Culture Building
Secretariat, together with the regional offices, as preachers,
listeners and practitioners of corporate culture. We have
conducted more than 20 Voice Talks for frontline staff
of marketing companies and supply chain departments,
collecting and processing feedback on more than 100
items, including feedback on training, welfare, working
environment, supervisory style, systems and processes,
etc. The feedback from employees covers a wide range of
aspects such as training, welfare, working environment,
supervisor’s style, systems and procedures. The Culture
Building Secretariat travels to the frontline every month
to visit the general manager of the marketing companies,
the head of the supply chain department and frontline
staff to understand the perception of culture building at
all levels and functions. We respect the characteristics of
each business and each region, adjust the culture building
methods and approaches in a timely manner, and steadily
advance the culture building process.

AEETODBEASRE
Grassroots Staff Voice Talks
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At the Culture Building Committee meeting, we shared
the culture building models of leading companies in China
and the industry, and at the same time, with the help of
scientific tools from external culture building experts, we
launched the “Happen for Yourself, Praise for the Future” all
60,000-employee culture climate research project after in-
depth interviews with the Chairman and all Culture Building
Committee members, collecting suggestions and analysing
needs, in order to better address employees’ worries and
allow them to achieve greater potential in their positions,
and together add to the beautiful vision of “Being the Most
Respected Food & Beverage Company”.

In 2021, although still enveloped in the general environment
of the COVID-19 pandemic, Master Kong people, as always,
faced bravely and struggled hard to ensure the safety of
pandemic prevention and food safety, and to guarantee
the resumption of work and production. We continued to
provide material support to medical institutions and front-
line personnel fighting the pandemic. In order to meet the
needs of consumers, all Master Kong people stayed at their
posts, winning the recognition and trust of consumers, as
well as the respect of society for the enterprise.

Standing together through thick and thin. We believe that
under the guidance of all members of the Culture Building
Committee and the tenacious efforts of all Master Kong
people, we will work together to make Master Kong a
respected enterprise and live up to our historical mission of
promoting Chinese food and beverage culture.
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BREEE Employment Category Indicators
BE £
Indicators Data
BTHRAH® 62,107

Total number of employees ™

BURIBSET AR ES 40,351
Number of employees by gender Male
L8 21,756
Female
BRERBSETAY FE30R(TEIAT 20,888
Number of employees by age Under the age of 30 (not inclusive)
FERI0EES05R(F) 40,414

Aged 30 to 50 (both inclusive)

Fhes50m(TE)IAL 805
Above the age of 50 (not inclusive)
RERERESETAH PBET 62,107
Number of employees by type of employment Full-time employee
RBET 0
Part-time employee
REHSBIETAH FibwRET 15,721
Number of employees by region Employee in North China
Rit@ET 6,942

Employee in Northeast China

it 8 T 6,513
Employee in Northwest China

FEHRWEET 11,781

Employee in East China

ErhiEET 4,134
Employee in Central China

EmEET 9,976
Employee in South China

FomihE 8 T 7,040
Employee in Southwest China
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Total employees turnover rate @

BURBINETRALLR

Employee turnover rate by gender

BERBINETRALLR

Employee turnover rate by age
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Employee turnover rate by region
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(1) BIRABGHESEMEZREE (1)
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B TERFEE THAZ X 100% °

BE g

Indicators Data
26.4%

S 27.9%

Male

8 23.8%

Female

FEI0m(TE)AT 39.4%

Under the age of 30 (not inclusive)

FEI0RES05(E) 20.1%
Aged 30 to 50 (both inclusive)

Fh S0 (TEIAL 8.9%
Above the age of 50 (not inclusive)

A 21.3%
North China

Egla:10 22.4%
Northeast China

gl sy 29.1%
Northwest China

S 21.8%
East China

Hh it & 34.8%
Central China

EREHE 27.7%
South China
Farg R 27.1%

Southwest China

The total number of employees is the total number of employees of
Master Kong and its subsidiaries.

Employee turnover rate = number of employees who left their jobs
(including voluntary departure, retirement, dismissal and death) in the
reporting year/total number of employees in the reporting year x 100%.
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2021 % 2020 F 2019 F

B Indicators 2021 2020 2019

ITHAE® Number of work-related deaths ® 0 0 1

EIT#Htbz® Work-related death rate @ 0.000% 0.000% 0.002%
EIEELAIEBE  Number of working days lost due to

work-related injuries 7,896 / /

) ITEEFTABE=FRZELYESN (3)  Work-related death statistics are for the past three years for employees
EREE I TMIER - who died as a result of safety incidents.

@ BAITHMHEER-RAITHAZREFEHK (4)  Work-related death rate = number of work-related deaths/total number of

BTHAE X100% ° employees at the end of the year x 100%.
IBEG © 2is
Indicators () 2nd © Data
RETIHAESHNZIEDL = 99.7%
Percentage of employees trained by gender Male

& 99.3%

Female
BRETERBINZIE DL EREEEXIBE LT 100.0%

Percentage of employees trained by employee level Percentage of senior management trained

RAREEERIADL 100.0%
Percentage of middle management trained

HiBTRINAE DL 96.5%
Percentage of other employees trained

BB E 5 KA 9 Z IR B 3 82.1
Number of hours of training per capita by gender Male
z 102.2
Female
RETEMNESHALZIRE BREBEZINEE 136.5

Number of hours of training for
Hours of training per person by employee category senior management

RAREEER IR 141.2
Number of hours of training for
middle management

Hih 8 T/ 124.6
Number of hours of training for
other employees
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Community investment in 2021:

#8,730& T
Approx RMB 87.3 million
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Percentage trained by employee category = number of employees trained
in a category/total number of employees in a category x 100%.

Hours of training per person by employee category = Total hours of
training for a category of employees/Total number of employees in a
category.

Key Performance Indicators

221 FETEEETHRR !
Hours contributed by employee volunteers in 2021:

N27.38 /M
Approx 273,000 hours

While developing the Company, Master Kong has always been
committed to giving back to the society, being committed to
integrating community investment and public welfare practices
with its own business, actively undertaking social responsibility
and fulfilling its corporate citizenship obligations. In 2021, Master
Kong continued to invest heavily in community investment. We
actively participated in public welfare and various social activities,
promoted the concept of sustainable development, and continued
to carry out public welfare activities in various areas such as
food safety science popularization, water education, support for
sports, caring for the society, helping the “agriculture, rural areas
and farmers” and deepening cooperation between schools and
enterprises, so as to create value through serving the society and
contributed to the realization of “good life” for the people.

1.  Food Safety Science Popularization

Raising public scientific literacy and popularizing food safety
knowledge is an effective way to counteract food safety
rumours. Over the years, Master Kong has been actively
responding to the national food safety strategy, pooling
the efforts of all parties, and continuously exploring ways
to educate the public about food safety, and is committed
to passing on food safety knowledge and concepts to
the society through food safety science popularization to
promote social governance of food safety.
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As a long-term partner of China’s aerospace industry,
Master Kong is committed to building a comprehensive
knowledge system, education system and application system
that integrates “aerospace + food safety” to enhance the
knowledge of aerospace and food safety literacy of all
people, especially the youth.

During this year, Master Kong held the “Aerospace Science
Popularization and Master Kong Food Safety Exhibition”
and the “National Youth Space dream Experience Camp”
in the “Hero” city of Wuhan to convey the concept of food
safety. In addition to the classic exhibits, this year the “Space
Station” exhibition and the “Moon Exploration Zone”
experience were added. At the same time, the same product
of “Space Noodles” to the “Star Noodle Restaurant” was
prepared for visitors. During this year, we launched an
online “Cloud Classroom” with new rural villages around
Wuhan, using digital tools and a ‘dual-teacher’ classroom
model to enable children from different regions to fulfil their
dreams of spaceflight and improve their food safety literacy
in the “Cloud”. During the exhibition, over 100,000 visitors
came to the venue to learn about aerospace and food
safety, and over 50,000 primary and middle school students
from 20 schools participated online, making a total of more
than 160,000 people involved in the event.

2EF IO FEMARASBERE

RmE2MERRS

Experience Camp for National Youth Space Dream

Food Safety Science Popularization Fair
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The State Administration of Market Regulation and four
other ministries and commissions jointly released the
School Food Safety Guardian Action Plan (2020-2022),
which calls for strengthening food safety and nutrition
education in primary and middle schools. In response
to the national policy and to help promote food safety
science popularization education in schools, the Company
continued to vigorously promote the “Food Safety Science
Popularization Public Welfare Line” in 2021.

With the theme of “Food Safety for All Fun and Light
Science Popularization”, the campaign aims to strengthen
food safety in schools, deliver healthy and nutritious food
knowledge and enhance young people’'s food safety
awareness through activities such as open classes on food
safety in primary and middle schools, online fun and science
quiz competitions and hands-on tours for parents and
children. During this year, we have added an online “Food
and Nutrition Matching” interactive activity, with more
than 50,000 primary and middle school students registered
and more than 4 million quizzes answered. So far, more
than 1,100 promotions have been carried out on more
than 200 media platforms to promote”Food Safety Science
Popularization Public Welfare Line”.

Education on Water

The “Education on Water” project is a long-term public
welfare activity initiated by the China Beverage Industry
Association, aiming to cultivate good drinking and using
water habits among primary school students and making
them to be active practitioners and disseminators of
“knowing, loving and saving water”. This is the seventh
year that Master Kong has been working on and innovating
“Education on Water”. We have successfully extended the
“Education on Water” campaign to more than 10 cities, 30
schools and nearly 10,000 students across China.
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In order to let children actively participate in the game
sessions and have fun, the Education on Water campaign
adhered to the concept of “Light Science Popularization”
and built an immersive and interactive classroom for
children through the form of “teaching and playing”. The
pandemic has halted offline activities in many places, but
Master Kong’s “Education on Water” charity road has not
stopped there. After building a Baidu encyclopedia entry
for “Education on Water “last year, we launched the
Education on Water” channel on World Water Day on 22

March 2021 to bring “Education on Water” into the lives of

B IR ES - EIKHE | EE
E2FLFERRNLEE -

more young people.

. - _|".:;\_ { .
T"h LN

FEER B2 PET 225 1 U |

Kangkang Senior "PET Empty Bottle Recycling” Game

N i,

BRIV NERE ] 21 RPkEFH
“Little Lab” Game Challenge Booklet for 21 days
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In line with the principle of health and safety first, this
year's “Education on Water” offline campaign reached
out to schools in five locations across China and added
elements and sessions on beverage PET packaging recycling
education. To better promote and develop the “Education
on Water”campaign, we had designed the”Kangkang
senior” cartoon IP image and launched the “Education on
Water” 21-day challenge booklet this year. Through the 21-
day challenge, students were able to establish the awareness
of “knowing, loving and saving water” in their minds.

Sports Charity Events

The Chinese government attaches great importance to the
important role of sports activities in enhancing people’s
physical fitness and health, and in 2016, the State Council
issued the Outline of “Healthy China 2030” Plan, making
clear plans to develop mass sports activities, promote a new
fashion of fitness for all and advance the construction of a
healthy China. As a national brand enterprise, Master Kong
is committed to helping the country move towards “Healthy
China 2030" and inspiring public enthusiasm for fitness.

In addition to being the sports nutrition partner of the
Winter Sports Centre of the General Administration of Sport
of China and actively contributing to snow and ice sports
in China, Master Kong has also been supporting marathon
events across the country for many years as the sports
nutrition partner of marathon. We advocate the concept
of scientific diet and focus on serving runners, providing
them with sufficient energy supply before and after the
race to ensure that they finish safely. Master Kong's “post-
race bowl of noodles” has become a standard for many
marathon runners. Master Kong has cooperated with several
marathon events in China, covering millions of participants.
In the future, Master Kong will continue to help the
development of marathons in China with safe and reliable
sports protection services. In 2021, we also supported
basketball and cycling events in Guangdong, as well as
badminton events in Chongging, Henan and other parts of
China. We have established partnerships with a number of
badminton associations to help athletes fulfil their dreams
on the playing field, while continuing to promote the
development of sports for all and build sports in a healthy
and orderly manner.
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Focus on Social Care

In addition to its own development, Master Kong continues
to bring into the strengths of the industry, focusing on
social care, paying attention to the needs of the community
and participating in community construction, spreading
warmth to the society. In 2021, we continued to reach
out to nursing homes, kindergartens, schools, hospitals,
police stations, troops and remote areas across the country,
sending love and care to hardworking urban workers such
as medical staff, traffic police and sanitation workers in
many places, passing on positive energy. The Company
is also concerned about the growth of children and has
been sending warmth to children through activities such
as charity schooling for children, caring for autistic children
and children with disabilities. Meanwhile, through the
Foundation, Master Kong continues to promote scholarship
programmes nationwide, build schools in Anhui, Fujian,
Tianjin, Chongging and Sichuan, promotes the Master
Kong Library Project and continues to promote the care and
education of left-behind youth in Chongging.
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Master Kong Library Project
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As an outstanding national enterprise, Master Kong has
established and formed a rapid response mechanism for
disaster relief after years of practice. In 2021, Master Kong
was the first to participate in disaster relief and material
assistance when Henan, Zhejiang and Sichuan were affected
by heavy rainfall, typhoons and earthquakes.Among which,
during the massive floods in Henan and Shanxi, under the
guidance of government departments, Master Kong used its
local marketing network and collaborated with distributors
and logistics partners to deliver about 1.56 million instant
noodles, purified water and other supplies to 108 affected
units and charitable organizations. In July, due to the impact
of strong typhoon “fireworks”, the flood control situation
in Zhejiang Province was critical and various places were
severely affected by the disaster. Master Kong set up a
disaster support team and a team of volunteers to deliver
drinking water and other support materials to the homes of
the affected residents and the resettlement sites in a timely
manner. In September, a 6.0 magnitude earthquake struck
Luzhou County, Sichuan Province, causing casualties and
property damage. Master Kong organized staff to deliver
earthquake relief supplies to the government, aid stations
and resettlement sites in the disaster area in time to provide
energy supplies to the victims and rescue workers.

(AR TR R T AL IE T

"“Peace is a Blessing in the Storm” Fighting Flood Support Action in Henan
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In 2021, there were irregular outbreaks of the COVID-19
pandemic across the country. Unlike last year, this year
we have accumulated some experience in the prevention
and control of the COVID-19 pandemic and assistance
in combating the pandemic, and we have more mature
contingency plans and guidance requirements for
combating the pandemic internally. Master Kong people
quickly and calmly responded at the first time, donated
money and materials, and assisted local communities and
party committees to do a good job in pandemic prevention
and control, nucleic acid testing and logistical support,
demonstrating corporate responsibility and commitment
with practical actions.

In the face of the continuing challenges posed by the
COVID-19 pandemic, Master Kong has strictly implemented
the pandemic prevention policy, and has made every effort
to build up a tight line of defence against the pandemic,
working together with Chinese people. In August 2021,
when local pandemic was discovered in Wuhan, Hubei
Province, Master Kong took the initiative to assume its
corporate social responsibility and activated the emergency
response mechanism, ensuring the safety of its employees
while sending donated instant noodles, drinking water,
coffee and beverages to medical staff and community
workers in a timely manner. In December, when the
pandemic broke out in Hangzhou, Ningbo and Shaoxing in
Zhejiang Province, the situation was critical. Master Kong
organized a timely donation of Master Kong instant noodles
and drinking water to provide nutritional support and
logistical support to local pandemic fighters.

EEVBETF 2B ARKEE
Master Kong Joins Hands with the Nation to Fight the Pandemic
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Benefiting the “Agriculture, Rural Areas and Farmers”

As a leading enterprise in deep processing of agricultural
products, Master Kong has actively promoted the strategy of
serving rural revitalisation, increased its support to diversified
rural business entities, purchased millions of tonnes of bulk
agricultural products every year, and helped farmers to
increase their income and prosperity through agricultural
products procurement and other forms, directly benefiting
over 40 million farmers in China.

Taking advantage of its own technology and scale, Master
Kong has been working with universities for years to
conduct research on “active crop protection system” and
explore new models to benefit the “agriculture, rural
areas and farmers”. The Company has established an
“Environmentally Friendly Vegetable Base” in the Kangba
Nuo'er area of Kangbao County, Hebei province, which is
pure and pollution-free and has excellent natural conditions.
The Company has sent technical staffs to study the local
natural environment and upgraded the industrial chain
model of “Enterprise + Base + Farmers” to help local farmers
build a new ecological agriculture through counselling
farmers on planting, strict quality control at the production
end and testing and supervision. Master Kong's Food Safety
Centre conducts strict tests on soil, pesticide residues, heavy
metals and many other indicators every year to ensure the
safety and health of agricultural products and promote the
development of the local agricultural recycling economy. At
present, the base has helped establish a total of 200,000
mu of vegetable bases in and around the Kangba Nuo'er
grassland, acquiring about 500,000 tonnes of agricultural
products and driving the employment of about 150,000
farmers.

BEMEREEHRREE Y RE R HREE]

Master Kong Establishes “Environmentally Friendly Vegetable Base” in Kangba Nuo'er Area
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School-Enterprise Cooperation

In 2021, Master Kong continued to develop and deepen
school-enterprise cooperation, insisted on the concept of
"deep ploughing in China, facing the world” to develop
talents, established and deepened school-enterprise
cooperation with 35 universities and 78 vocational schools
nationwide, shared talent training resources, and provided
the society with composite talents with both professional
and practical abilities.

We insist on carrying out campus talent recruitment and
actively try out new recruitment forms such as online
briefings and online double interviews under the pandemic,
organically combining employer branding and recruitment to
build an internal talent ladder. We cooperate with a number
of domestic universities to conduct research on food safety,
production processes and technologies, and application
development, and support the industrialisation of university
innovations and core technologies. In terms of vocational
education, we earnestly implement the spirit of school-
enterprise cooperation and promote the “Master Kong
order class” model to jointly support and complete talent
training and employment with universities, creating a new
situation of education and teaching in partner universities.

During this year, Master Kong added a new strategic
university partner, Tsinghua University, and further deepened
its partnership with Yuanpei College of Peking University
and Peking University School of Medicine, while further
deepening its industry-academia-research collaboration
with Waseda University. We have established scholarship
programmes with leading universities overseas to support
a full range of strategic collaborations, including talent
exchanges, corporate case studies and research projects. In
January, we signed a letter of intent with Waseda University
for the “New 10-year Strategic Partnership”. In April, we
signed a donation agreement with Tsinghua University to
establish the “Master Kong Global Talent Growth Fund at
Tsinghua University” to support the training and exchange
of global talent at Tsinghua University. In November,
we donated to Peking University to set up an education
development fund to support faculty building, talent
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FREHES  IHSRMEME training and technological innovation in universities, and
B AT EEEBEA were committed to creating an internationally influential
BORBBARMEIE  ITEAR industry-academia-research exchange platform through
R B NNESHIRT university-enterprise cooperation to enhance corporate
B EYRHESENRARRE competitiveness while supporting education.

FEEHEFES -

RN EER - FRAXEHN T FHBAFER LROER

Online Signing Ceremony for the New 10-year Strategic Partnership between Master Kong and Waseda University

FREME IR R EEASEME 2 RATUEES
Master Kong Donates to Establish “Master Kong Global Talent Growth Fund at Tsinghua University”
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Donation Ceremony for Master Kong Education Development Fund at Peking University
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At the end of 2021, a three-way big data project between
Master Kong, Jingdong and the Wharton School of the
University of Pennsylvania was successfully concluded. In
the process of digital transformation, Master Kong has
continued to learn and draw on the advanced concepts
of statistics and data analysis from the Wharton School,
a world-renowned institution of higher learning, and has
collaborated with the Wharton School to link up with
ecommerce platforms such as Jingdong to support students
in organizing data competitions, creating opportunities for
students to learn from leading companies and providing
strong support for industry development and talent training.

FEEDE AR - RE R BB AR LB miE

Master Kong - Wharton School Online Leadership Forum
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Serial No. Awards

1 2021 FHEBARERMERIE  HEREQFME
2021 Hong Kong Corporate Governance & ESG Excellence Awards

2 PEBEESGREMLS (5) BAHIE
The Award for Best Society (s) Case in China

3 E=JEISEE[ AT E B ]
The 3rd ISEE Outstanding Excellence Innovation Practice Award

4 [4KE W 12021 R EISREHTEEKER B E
“Green Water and Green Mountain Cup”2021 Excellent Water-saving Enterprise in China Beverage Industry

5 [4K S I 12021 R EIERRH TR B RE B B3
“Green Water and Green Mountain Cup” 2021 Excellent Energy-saving Enterprise in China Beverage Industry

6 2020-2021 FEHEH R RmMITEEFEmEIHTE
2020-2021 Year Excellent Product Innovation Award of China’s Instant Food Industry

7 2020-2021 FEHBEH B RMITERIELFTZ
2020-2021 Best Innovation Award in China’s Instant Food Industry

8 FTNEFEERLZEARSHEETEETLE
The 19th China Food Safety Conference Social Responsibility leader

9 EFETNETFHERERELEARAELEBE tRdE
The 19th China Food Safety Conference Safety Management Top Ten Enterprises

10 ERETEREMMNIETRHLE
Chongging Agricultural Products Processing Industry Demonstration Enterprise

11 FIERIR 2021 [ ML BB R A RES B9
Yangcheng Evening News 2021 “Embroidery Spirit” New Era Model Charity Spirit Award

12 2021 PR EH G EEES R
The Award for Best Social Responsibility(s) Case of China in 2021

13 22T AREHEEEFEHBRN  ZEEE
2021 Annual Recommended Case of People’s Corporate Social Responsibility - Green Development
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Serial No. Awards
14 EHEHZERMI0BDE

Top Ten Enterprises for Green Food in Yunnan Province

15 02N FEEHTELE
Key Industrial Enterprises in 2021

16 REREREATHENL -BERAKEIM
Green Manufacturing System Demonstration Unit - National Green Factory

17 202 FEHERE
2021 Honest Enterprise

18 RnmEsL s

Food Quality and Safety Award

19 MMA APAC T K @B B E 48 Ea e
MMA APAC Gold Award for Mobile Audio/Voice

20 MMA China £ /7 58 B Hero APPES A & 4R 42
MMA China Media Strategy Hero APP Joint Marketing Silver Award

21 MMA China /7 SR BS S 1188/ IS 5 B 2E 4 8 #2
MMA China Media Strategy Transmedia/Transmobile Integration Bronze Award

22 MMA Global UGC R A4,/ 8 J) & iHiR 12
MMA Global Silver UGC User Generation/Impact Marketing Award

23 mM360 & fF)Z IR BRARE IR HE
M360 Best Pan-Entertainment Silver Award for Variety

24 m360 FERIFT R A ¢ 52
M360 Best Innovation Award Gold Medal of Whole Chain Innovation
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We have, throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, complied with
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code which became
effective in the year (the “"CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for the deviations from
code provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2. The reasons for these deviations are
explained below.

Code provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Our Company
deviates from this provision because the independent non-executive
Directors of our Company do not currently have specific terms of
appointment. However, the articles of association of our Company
provide that all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if the number is not a
multiple of three, then, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation and may offer themselves for
re-election. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have
been put in place to ensure our Company’s corporate governance
practice in this aspect provides sufficient protection for the interests of
shareholders to a standard commensurate with that of the CG code.

Code Provision A.4.2

According to code provision A.4.2, each director (including those with
a specific appointment period) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. According to the Company’s articles
of association, the chairman of the Board is not subject to retirement
by rotation. He is not included in the number of directors who are
required to retire each year. The Board believes that the continuity of
the leadership of the chairman of the Board is critical to the stability
of the Group’s development and the planning, formulation and
implementation of long-term strategies and business plans. Accordingly,
the Board considers that although the provisions of the above rules
deviate from Code Provision A.4.2, it is in the best interests of the
Company.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.
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Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested with the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All the
Directors should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company. The main duties of the Board are as follows:

®  Responsible for the shareholders of the Company;

*  Formulate long-term and short-term strategic direction of the
Company, including development strategy, major investment,
acquisition and dispose of significant assets;

e Approve the Company’s annual budget and business plan;
e Supervise the management of the Company;
*  Approve financial reports, annual reports and interim reports.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
the Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to
exercise its powers in an informed manner, management provides
monthly management accounts and updates to the Directors for
the management report, provide detailed data of the company’s
performance, financial position and prospects, supported by the most
up-to-date financial data, combined with easy and comprehensive
assessment, who also have full and timely access to all relevant
information and may take independent professional advice if necessary.

Board composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises 9 Directors in total, with 6 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors whose biographical
details are set out in “Directors’ profile” section on pages 119 to 121 of
this report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has complied with
the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors and at least one independent non-executive director with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirement under Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules that at least one-third of the members of the Board
must be appointed as independent non-executive directors.

As each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers them to be independent.

There are no financial, business or family relationships among the
members of the Board, except as disclosed in the “Directors’ profiles”
on pages 119 to 121.

During the year, the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer were
separated and held by different individuals to ensure a balance of power
and authority. The Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Group is
Mr. Wei Hong-Ming and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group is Mr.
Chen Yinjang.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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EEeh M EHERNETREELRY The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
eE - WEEGEEREE duties with its written terms of reference as set out below:

(@) HIERBANAATDESEHER (@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
B corporate governance;

b) BIREREERSBRERAEN (b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

ZI RIS EEERE development of Directors and senior management;
(0 MAMERARNAEETEEZNE (0 to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
EHRETEMBE TR compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(dy ®HIE - WF RER E%&%%E’H@% (d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

SRR ARFM(nE) compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and
() MFIADNBETERTABRIRE (e) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
ERIBNR - disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
RAFEFERN  EFTERITADFD During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the Company's
EEBZHITENARERFGADEE AT corporate governance practices and the compliance with the CG Code
B RADESARERFEE I ENK - and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
KRR RERCEEANETEETH® We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
SIMIRFAECEERTESR - practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.
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The Board has scheduled quarterly meetings per year and meets more
frequently as and when required. Agenda of the Board meeting are
collated by the board secretary and approved by the Chairman. Directors
may delegate some issues into the agenda of the Board meeting.
Board meeting notices issued in one month prior to the meeting to
each Director, and the accompanying agenda. During the financial
year ended 31 December 2021 eight Board meetings were held. The
attendance of individual director to the Board meetings in year 2021 is
summarised below:

HE BTEESERNH
Number of Board

Directors Meetings Attended/Held

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 8/8
Mr. Junichiro Ida 8/8
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen 8/8
Mr. Koji Shinohara 8/8
Mr. Yuko Takahashi 8/8
Ms. Tseng Chien 8/8

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 8/8
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 8/8
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 8/8

The Company Secretary keeps the Board Minutes of the Company for
inspection by the Directors.

Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board of Directors discusses
and approves major issues such as the Group’s strategic plan, annual
budget, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group's financial performance, assess and
identifies principal risks of the Group’s business and ensures appropriate
implementation of measures to manage these risks.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the Finance
and Accounting Department which is under the supervision of the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, the Directors ensure that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure that the publication of the financial statements of
the Group is in a timely manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company’s auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements has been set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 144 to 151.

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion of
his appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction is normally
supplemented with visits to the Group’s key business sites and/or
meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The Company provides, as appropriate, the latest developments in the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements and reading
material on relevant topics will be issued to directors where appropriate.
All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses. All directors are entitled to seek independent
professional advice on responsibilities, expenses paid by the company.
To ensure that the directors have deepened their understanding of
the Group, senior management of the Company has conducted a
continuing professional development plan for the directors during the
year.
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Summary for 2021 Directors’ Continuing Professional Development
shown as below:

(@ learn about China’s various regional channels operating
conditions;

(b)  understand the production and operation status of each factory.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company organized
briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its directors, on
corporate governance and update on the Listing Rules amendments and
provided reading materials on regulatory update to all the directors for
their reference and studying.

In accordance with Code Provision A.6.5, all Directors are required to
provide their respective training records to the Company. A summary of
the training received by each Director during the period from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2021 is set out below:

SMESHEFE
EXRREE  BIEAE
EHRAREMBEBREE
ERNEFBRIFRME

Participate in the

Directors' continuing
professional development
programme and read
materials on the latest
developments in relation
to the Listing Rules

and other applicable

Directors regulatory regulations

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming v
Mr. Junichiro Ida v
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen 4
Mr. Koji Shinohara 4
Mr. Yuko Takahashi v
Ms. Tseng Chien 4
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun v
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock v
Mr. Hiromu Fukada v

ERER SRR
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The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

The Company has established the Audit Committee in September 1999
and currently has three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Lee
Tiong-Hock, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun and Mr. Hiromu Fukada. Mr. Lee Tiong-
Hock acts as Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors
of the Company to ensure the objectivity and credibility of the financial
statements. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the
review and supervision of the Group's financial reporting system, the
preparation of financial statements, annual and interim reports and
integrity of accounts, risk management and internal control systems.
As well as maintaining good corporate governance standards and
practices. It also acts as an important link between the Board and the
Company's auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties and will meet regularly with management, internal auditors and
external auditors, as well as review their reports. Three meetings were
held during the financial year ended 31 December 2021. Details of the
attendance of the audit committee meetings are as follows:

HEBOTERRE
Members Number of meetings Attended/Held
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 3/3
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 3/3
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 3/3

The latest meeting of the Committee was held to review the results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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The Remuneration and Nomination Committee was established on 11
August 2005. This Committee now comprises four Directors, Mr. Hsu
Shin-Chun, Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock, Mr. Hiromu Fukada and Mr.Wei Hong-
Ming. Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun acts as the Chairman of the Committee.

Two meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 December
2021. Details of the attendance of the remuneration and nomination
committee meetings are as follows:

HEBITEERE
Members Number of meetings Attended/Held
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 2/2
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 2/2
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 2/2
Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 2/2

The Committee was set up to review the structure, size and diversity
of the Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors, advise the Board on the remuneration of individual executive
directors and senior management, and consider and approve the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of
the Group, including the terms of salary and bonus schemes and other
long-term incentive schemes. The Committee also reviews the structure,
size and composition of the Board from time to time, assess the
performance of the Executive Directors and approve the terms of the
Executive Directors’ and recommends to the Board on appointments of
Directors and the succession planning for Directors, and to ensure that
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors are in accordance
with fair and transparent principles. With regard to the policy on the
nomination of Directors, the Committee will take into account the
experience, knowledge and professionalism of the nominees in order
to enable them to bring efficiency and effectiveness to the Board.
During this financial year, the Committee implemented works including:
review the structure, size and composition of the Board; review diversity
status of existing members of the Board and give advice; evaluate the
biography of the Director candidates and advise the Board in respect of
the re-appointment of the Directors; advise the Board in respect of the
remuneration of senior management.
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RARIMEBRET - The Company's remuneration policies are as follows:

(a) BREEZTEANEFINBE LT ARE (@) Remuneration policies and practices, including directors, should

ZRAFRERBEERE &) be fair and impartial and transparent and comply with regulatory
HEXR requirements;

(b) FTEEFWFHENIKEREZIARS K (b)  The remuneration of directors should be set at a lever sufficient

BREBEEETAREEMXTHRE to attract and retain them to manage the Company’s operations

NBZHe  W2RARIEAER without excessive payment, while taking into account the

TREMTRENES Company'’s requirements for the time required to perform their
duties;

(0 ERTE2EGIEEBEAFMH - () A director must not be involved in the making of his personal

remuneration.

rEBESkaBEEHIEE2021F12 Details of the Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments of the
A31 BEENMESFEHNGE Mg mKRMt Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 10 to
FE10° the consolidated financial statements.

RE1E2021F12 A31HFE X101z The emoluments paid to the ten senior management individuals during

=EEEALZMEARIT the year ended 31 December 2021 were as follows:
BEAH
EREESHEAR Emoluments band Number of individuals
1,243,251 AR® 21,657,666 AR RMB1,243,251 to RMB1,657,666
(1,500,001 & 7L%E 2,000,000 /8 7T) (HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000) 1
2,900,917 AR¥ % 3,315,333 ARHE RMB2,900,917 to RMB3,315,333
(3,500,001 % L= 4,000,000 7% 7T) (HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000) 1
4,973,000 AR#¥% 5,387,416 AR RMB4,973,000 to RMB5,387,416
(6,000,001 % L= 6,500,000 #7T) (HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000) 1
5,387,417 AR % 5,801,832 AR¥ RMB5,387,417 to RMB5,801,832
(6,500,001 & 7L%E 7,000,000/87T) (HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000) 2
7,873,916 AR¥ % 8,288,332 ARHE RMB7,873,916 to RMB8,288,332
(9,500,001 L= 10,000,000 7T) (HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000) 1
8,288,333 ARME%£ 8,702,749 ARHKE RMBS8,288,333 to RMB8,702,749
(10,000,001 & 7CZE 10,500,000 % 7T) (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000) 1
8,702,750 AR 29,117,165 AR¥E RMBS8,702,750 to RMB9,117,165
(10,500,001 7T % 11,000,000 % 7T) (HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000) 1
9,117,166 AR#¥ % 9,531,582 AR#E RMB9,117,166 to RMB9,531,582
(11,000,001 7CZE 11,500,0007%8 L) (HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000) 1
11,603,666 AR¥EZE 12,018,081 AR RMB11,603,666 to RMB12,018,081
(14,000,001 70 14,500,000 % 7T) (HK$14,000,001 to HK$14,500,000) 1
10
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The principal spirit of the internal control and risk management
procedures established by the Group is in compliance with five elements
in the COSO structure,
control activities, information and communication, and monitoring.

i.e. control environment, risk assessment,

The goal of risk management is to keep the overall risk of the Group
within acceptable levels and to lay a good foundation for the Group’s
long- term development. Meanwhile, it can achieve the goal of
defining the management structure and authorization so as to enhance
the operational performance and efficiency as well as asset safety
protection, which ensures the reliability of financial reports while
complies with the requirements of national regulations.

Under the supervision of the Board, the Group has established an
organization structure, responsibility and authority in the construction
of three lines of defense for risk management. The Audit Committee
will assist the Board to review the design and operation effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group. As of
31 December 2021, the Group has been carrying out self-assessment
of internal control where a prudent and effective self-inspection
system has been established to achieve full coverage of external and
internal inspection on each aspect thought the management circle.
Meanwhile, more efforts have been put in supervision over subsidiaries
where management regulations have been formulated with a priority
to processes of higher risk and streamlined and implementable limits
of authority have been defined for approval of expenditures and
human resource affairs. In addition, the Group has been promoting
the monitoring work in respect of laws and regulations. According
to the internal audit of the internal inspection department, we have
not identified any material deficiency in risk management and internal
control. Therefore, the Board and the Audit Committee believe that the
Group's risk management and internal control system are effective.

The risk management system established by the Group sets “pursuing
sustainable development and assuming social responsibility” as
management objective. The management process includes risk
identification, risk assessment and evaluation, risk control and overall
monitoring. Firstly, the implementation of risk management objectives is
set through systematic and scientific methods. Then, through interviews
with management and risk seminars, risk identification and risk
management framework are completed. Thirdly, fully participate in the
discussion through senior management to complete the risk assessment,
and then formulate risk response strategies. Finally, continue to
implement risk control activities and supervision.
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We will ensure the effective implementation of risk management
measure through periodic tracking and review after formulation of risk
response strategy. Through implementation of risk response measure to
our regulation and system, structural planning and operating process,
we further establish the enterprise risk management strategy to support
the Company in achieving the enterprise mid-to-long term vision and
strategic objective.

In response to the ever-changing market trends, the Group has been
learning from international benchmark enterprises and improving the
operation of three lines of defense for risk management. Meanwhile,
in accordance with the three-line framework newly promulgated by the
Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) of the U.S., the Group formulated its
risk management strategy for the next three to five years. Under the
instruction and guidance of the Board and the Operation Committee,
the Group focused on management of three major risks in 2021 with
specific countermeasures and strategies as detailed below:

1.1 Definitions:

e  Risk of operation is interrupted due to failure of
IT safety, operation and back-up system, such as
prevention and handling of system disorder, system
crash, safety protection or computer virus.

e Information management and control rights, network
threats, data center physical security risks, such as
malicious rights, network intrusion, data center power,
access control security or unauthorized access to the
information system as a whole.

e  Risk of out-of-control information systems caused
by external threats such as theft of equipment/data,
computer fraud, unauthorized access, and vandalism.
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Failure to effectively integrate business information
among IT systems.

The regulations related to information security are
becoming more strict, while employee awareness of
information protection is weak, there is the risk of
information leakage.

1.2 Coping strategies:

Improve the operation and management regime
for information system based on PDCA to maintain
an effective support of information system to
organizational development and business continuation
and ensure its stable and effective operation,
thereby avoiding company losses and safeguarding
shareholders’ rights and interests.

[Plan] Determines the control objectives and control
measures based on risk assessments, laws and
regulations to measure organizational needs.

[Do] Implement the selected system operation
controls.

[Check] To conduct compliance check on control
measures based on the strategy, procedures, laws and
regulations.

[Action] Take corrective and preventive measures and
follow the improvement based on the internal control
and management review results.

Reinforce the information security management
system of the Company according to adopted
ISO27001 information security management standard.

Achieve an upgrade of management system through
enhancing systems in aspects such as organizational
strategy, staff awareness, user access, information
assets safety, emergency management, system
operation, outsourcing management and legal
compliance management.
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Achieve self-improvement of information security
management system through online and offline
publicization and implementation, theorical
penetration by departmental safety liaison officer,
periodic tour inspection and audit under the guidance
of external certification institutions and ongoing
follow-up on corrections.

Through the aforesaid, the Group is able to further
expand the coverage and management dept of
the information security management system and
continuously and effectively reduce the risk in leakage
of information relating to its core strategy, technology,
operation, financial reports and human resource, etc.

Cross-functional collaboration promotes the feasibility
assessment of information systems, reviews and
coordinates cross-enterprise needs on a regular basis,
so as to avoid risks such as repeated establishment
or lack of synergies and inability of system data
integration. Deeply tap the value of information, build
an effective inter-system connection of information
and construct a commercial intelligence platform for
cross-system information analysis, thereby improving
the digital-based operation capability.

Definitions:

There are many kinds of raw materials and items, and
the management level of suppliers is uneven, which
threatens the risk of contamination of raw materials.

The supply chain process from raw material
procurement to product terminal sales is complicated,
and some links may be risky due to poor monitoring.
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At present, the dissemination of media information is
not effectively managed, consumer awareness of rights
violations, and if the food information acquisition,
transmission or communication is not timely, or the
clarification of the rumors is not properly handled, it
may cause consumers to panic or misunderstand, and
eventually affect brand reputation.

2.2 Coping strategies:

Learn from advanced countries or standard enterprise
management experience, establish a food quality
screening and access system for raw materials, and
prevent plugging from the design side to effectively
control risks. Continuously improve the testing
capabilities of local factories and laboratories to ensure
the quality and safety of products from raw material
procurement to sales in retail outlets.

Cooperate with relevant national requirements,
implement the main responsibility and quality system
of the enterprise, promote the “three-level” self-
examination system of food safety quality, optimize
and implement regular unannounced inspection and
unqualified supplier delisting mechanism, and pay
attention to process traceability management and
inspection.

Do a good job of science popularization on the food
safety topic of concern to consumers, communicate
regularly with scholars and experts and government
regulatory authorities, use external professional
resources to transmit correct information, and improve
the food safety defense mechanism from crisis event
technical department to respond to SOP.
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3.1 Definition

In the context of a fluctuating raw material price,
enterprises may be unable to avoid risk of fluctuations
in market prices as they fail to make reasonable
procurement prediction due to inaccurate judgement
on market trend or failure to adopting diversified
procurement strategy and tools.

Due to much reliance on a single supplier, enterprises
may be unable to develop or switch a new supplier in
a timely manner in case of supplier exit or occurrence
of quality problem, thereby impacting the operation of
the enterprise.

There are still room for improvement in the EHS
management in production process: the tightening
standard in emission cut and energy conservation,
enhancing staff awareness on health and certain
safety control and monitoring still to be improved,
which may pose challenges on the Company.

3.2 Coping strategies:

The Group has established a diversified procurement
strategy with two procurement approaches which
are centralized procurement by the headquarter and
separate procurement by local operations. Through
centralized procurement, the Group will have more
bargaining power and standardized procurement
process, while through making good use of local
procurement, the Group could fully utilize the
advantage of local resources, which could be an
effective complement to centralized procurement.

Establish the operational mechanism for daily
development and emergency switch to the alternate
supplier of key materials. Based on the important
levels of raw materials, the top-level material shall
have at least one principal supplier as well as three to
four (and more) alternate suppliers to ensure prompt
availability of the material at any time of emergency.
In the context of the global pandemic, the Group has
formulated risk control plan for imported materials
and supplies to ensure a safe supply.
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e Establish and improve the supply chain EHS
management system and actively push forward
the certification of 1SO45001/14001 dual systems.
Main while, improve the relevant warrants obtaining
efficiency through internal management and optimize
the design side to effectively manage risk and conduct
daily safety inspection to reinforce the effective
implementation at the execution side.

To ensure sustainable operation of the Group and to show gratitude
to the social responsibility of stakeholders, the Group enhances risk
management and internal plan control. Through support from external
professional independent consultant, adhering to the operating idea
and corporate culture spirit of the Group, the 2022 guidance of
optimization of risk management and internal control system is specified
and formulated.

Point 1: Keep optimizing the significant risk management system
of the Group in line with the up-to-date philosophy in the world

The Group identify, assess and monitor group-level significant risks on a
regular basis. In addition, based on the data of risk assessment, to assist
the management in formulating risk coping strategies and increasing
the risk management standards. Daily supervision is conducted over the
implementation of risk coping plan with a view to reduce the remaining
risk to an acceptable level.

Point 2: Continue with the authority management of the IT
system to enhance corporate governance of the Group

The Group designs and sets up IT authorization management policies
according to the control requirements of different businesses. The
approach from gradual piloting to full rollout ensures operational safety,
the segregation of incompatible responsibilities and the efficiency and
compliance of business operations, thus meeting corporate governance
and compliance requirements.

Point 3: Continue with the digital-based transformation to realize
the objective of ex-ante warning with information system

As the business model becomes increasingly complicated, the ex-
post manual inspection adopted in the past has become outdated.
Meanwhile, the increasing labor cost also makes the traditional
operation mode unsustainable. As such, the Group has carried out the
project to construct an IT inspection system tool, with a view to enhance
the control effectiveness of the three lines of defense.
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The Company's internal audit department is an independent unit directly
under the Board. It is specifically responsible for performing the Group'’s
internal audit and anti-fraud investigation functions, as well as reporting
them to the Audit Committee and the Chairman on a regular basis or
when necessary. The internal audit functions conduct independent,
objective and risk-oriented internal audits of the Group's significant risks
in relation to its operation and execution of its significant strategies as
well as its related monitoring systems, so as to assess their effectiveness.
The anti-fraud investigation functions, through making investigation
into whistleblowing and anti-fraud audit, facilitate the management to
enhance anti-fraud system and the incorruptible culture and system,
so as to improve the overall governance environment of the Company.
Results and recommendations on internal control inadequacy from each
audit and whistleblowing investigation projects will be put into detailed
discussion with the management, and the management will formulate
improvement plans while internal audit department will track the
executions to improve the internal control inadequacy within reasonable
time, in order to continuously enhance the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control, thereby helping the
Company accomplish pre-set goals as well as protecting the interests of
Shareholders.

In addition, the internal audit department also, through providing
consultation services on risk control, assists the management of the
Company in accomplishing its goal to safeguard business operation.
Such services may include internal consultation and in-house training
in respect of potential problems facing the Company, internally or
externally, in management of risks, internal control and compliance.

The Company strives to promote and maintain a liberal and probity
operation environment and corporate culture, and to formulate
whistleblowing policies and responding measures. The internal audit
department has set up a reporting mailbox and hotline and has
announced the above reporting channels in multiple places including
the Company’s website, thus enabling employees and business partners
to give confidential reporting.
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2022 will be the transition stage for the Group in promoting self-
assessment of internal control from existence to excellence. Over the
past four years, the Group has established a normalized and stable
self-assessment system on internal control. In the future, the Group
will further foster the risk owners’ sense of ownership in respect of
risk management and internal control, thus providing reasonable
assurance for the Group’s accomplishing of its operation goals. All
these are established based on tools such as time series analysis,
trend analysis, structure analysis, decision tree analysis, regression
analysis and compliance analysis. Through the automated analysis
and continuous monitoring of risk data, we can achieve the goal of
positioning and management from the source of risk. Through the
steady implementation of the above steps, we can effectively ensure
the Company’s corporate reputation and brand image maintenance,
value creation and risk management mechanism are in line with the
expectations of stakeholders.

In respect of the procedure of dealing with and disseminating insider
information as well as the internal control measure:

e The Group strictly complies with the disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission in
June 2012 for dealing with and disseminating insider information;

e  The Group discloses broad and non-exclusive information to
the public through financial report, announcement and official
website;

e The Group has established the inside information management
rules throughout the Group and provides to its employee trainings
in respect of inside information management. Senior management
and general staff who can access inside information due to
their rankings or duties are required by the Group to assume
confidential obligations in respect of inside information. In respect
of result announcement or material transaction, strictly controlling
and limiting the scope of staff who can accessing information, the
material sensitive information is concealed by confidential code
(including electronic, written and verbal), and giving a written
notice about the lock-up period and other matters required for
special attention to avoid insider information.
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Mazars CPA Limited is the Independent Auditor of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, total fees paid/payable in
connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services to Mazars
CPA Limited amounted to RMB8.172 million and RMB0.776 million
respectively and no significant non-audit services were involved during
the period.

Mr. Ip Pui Sum of Sum, Arthur & Co., Certified Public Accountants,
an external service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its
company secretary. Mr. Ip’s primary contact person at the Company is
Mr. Kuowei LIU, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Ip has taken no less
than 35 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his skills and
knowledge.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company convened
and held one annual general meeting (“Annual General Meeting”). The
attendance records of each Director at the general meetings are set out

T below:
HEBTEERY
Number of Meetings Attended/Held
BRRBFAE
Annual General
B= Directors Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
BAEBKE Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 11
FHEE—EE Mr. Junichiro Ida 01
MARREE Mr. Wei Hong-Chen 11
BRERFTE Mr. Koji Shinohara 01
aEEESLE Mr. Yuko Takahashi 0/1
Ex+t Ms. Tseng Chien 0/1
HUIFHTESE Independent Non-executive Directors
RIEBEE Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 11
TRETE Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 1
RS A Mr. Hiromu Fukada 01
BRMEERERAT

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than 10% in total of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall all time have the right, by written requisition to the
Board to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
pursuant to Article 57 of the Company’s articles of association. Such
requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
office of the Company. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the shareholder(s) making the
requisition may do so in accordance with the provision of Article 57 of
the Company’s articles of association.

The written requisition requiring an extraordinary general meeting called
can be sent to the principal place of business of the Company as set
out in the "Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. Details of
shareholders’ rights have been set out in the Company's article of
association.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
of the Group to shareholders through the publication of notices,
announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. Moreover,
additional information is also available to shareholders through the
Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The Board also
welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting the Group and
encourages them to attend shareholder’s meetings to communicate any
concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.

Shareholders could also send email directly through the Investors section
in the Company'’s website www.masterkong.com.cn for any enquiries.

There were no changes to the Company's articles of association for the

year ended 31 December 2021.
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The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims
to allow shareholders to participate in the Company's profit and for
the Company to retain adequate reserves for future development.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider
various factors including the Group's actual and expected financial
performance, the Group's liquidity levels and future development plans,
general economic and financial conditions, business cycle of the Group,
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance of the Group, and other factors that the Board
considers relevant.

The Group disseminates the latest information to investors and the
public in strict compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules in an open, fair and transparent manner. To facilitate
communication between senior management and the public, the Group
regularly hosts shareholder meetings, investor and analyst briefings and
company visits. In addition, the Group organises road show and attends
investor conferences to meet with global Investors and shareholders
in an effort to gather suggestions and comments. In 2021, the Group
conducted more than 250 meetings with approximately 1,400 analysts
and fund managers (person-time). Investors can also obtain useful
information and updates on the Group’s business development from our
websites. The Group is committed to enhance corporate transparency
and the quality of disclosures.

The Company is a constituent stock of Morgan Stanley Capital
International (MSCI) China Index and Hang Seng China (Hong Kong-
listed) 100 Index. The Group is currently covered by 25 investment banks
and securities firms, which shows our investment and development
potential.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the review period.
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Executive Directors

WEI Hong-Ming, aged 44, was appointed as Chairman of the Group
on 1 January 2019. He is the elder brother of Mr. Wei Hong-Chen. Mr.
Wei holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics from King's
College London, a Master of Science degree in Mathematics from Brunel
University in the UK, and a Master of Science degree in Management
from the Graduate School of Business at Stanford University in the U.S..
He had worked as an asset allocation analyst at Makena Capital in the
U.S., which was invested by Paul Allen, the co-founder of Microsoft. Mr.
Wei joined the Group as a project manager of the CEQ’s office in 2006,
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Group in 2015. Mr.
Wei had led many projects such as the development blueprint of the
MIS Group management system promoted by a number of international
consulting companies, and made long-term effective planning for the
digital transformation and supply chain layout of the future group
system.

Junichiro IDA, aged 60, was appointed as Vice-Chairman of the Group
on 15 November 2013 and appointed as an Executive Director of the
Group in May 2002, is the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd. After
graduating from Rikkyo University in 1985, he joined The Fuji Bank,
Limited and worked there for six years. In 1992, he joined Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd. He became the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd in June
1998. Mr. Ida is currently the Director of Sanyo Foods Corp. of America
as well as the Director of Caraway Pte Ltd (J/V of package foods
business between Olam International Limited and Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd
in Africa) and Honorary Consul of the Kingdom of Morocco in Gunma.
He is also the Representative Director of Sanyo Foods Scholarship
Foundation, the Representative Director of Sanyo Foods Culture and
Sports Foundation, the Director of Japan Convenience Foods Industry
Association, the Chairman of the Board of Save the Children Japan and
the guest professor of Rikkyo University. He was awarded the “Medal
with Blue Ribbon” by Japanese government in 2021.

WEI Hong-Chen, aged 39, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group on 1 January 2019. He is the younger brother of Mr.
Wei Hong-Ming. Mr. Wei received his Bachelor degree from Imperial
College London, Master’s degree from Waseda University, and MBA
from Harvard Business School. He had worked at Blackstone Group's
New York office and the headquarter of Pepsi Co. He was appointed
as a Director of KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd.) since February 2015. Mr. Wei
has accumulated many years of experience working in the Group, and
during which has contributed to the forming of strategic partnerships
with international corporations such as Starbucks and Disney.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Koji SHINOHARA, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Group on 28 May 2015. Mr. Shinohara joined Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.
in August 2014 as the executive director and Head of Marketing. After
graduating from the Department of Economics, Keio University, Japan
in 1990, he worked in Coca-Cola (Japan) for brand marketing, sales
and business management. In 2007, he was the Vice President of brand
marketing of Coca-Cola (Japan). In 2008, he was the Global Senior
Director of ready-to-drink (RTD) coffee and RTD tea section of Coca-
Cola Atlanta headquarter. In 2010, Mr. Shinohara was the Senior Vice
President of brand marketing of Coca-Cola (Japan). He has more than
20 years working experience in the brand marketing industry.

Yuko TAKAHASHI, aged 59, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group on 9 August 2019. Mr. Takahashi joined Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd. in 2015 and is the executive director, Head of Overseas
Business Division and President of Sanyo Foods Corp. of America. After
graduating from Tohoku University, he worked with Ajinomoto Co.,
Inc. from April 1986 to August 2015 and served in various positions
in its Overseas Business Division, including as Marketing Director of
Ajinomoto Co., (Thailand) Ltd., President of Ajinomoto Poland Sp z
0.0., and Corporate Planning Director of the Europe and Africa Division.
He has more than 30 years of working experience in the global food
industry.

TSENG Chien, aged 63, has been appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group since 31 December 2019. She graduated from the
Department of Economics at Soochow University in Taiwan and
joined the Group in August 1996. She has served as the Head of
Accounting Department of the Group’s headquarters, Head of Finance
and Accounting Department of the Instant Noodle Business, Head of
Finance and Accounting Department of the Beverage Business, Chief
Financial Officer of the Group's Beverage Business and Chief Financial
Officer of Ho Te, one of the main shareholders of the Group. While she
was serving in the Group, Ms. Tseng has successfully introduced the
computerized SAP to the Beverage Business in 2003 and formulated SOP
operation guidelines for various functions of finance and accounting as
well as internal control. Later, she participated in the cooperation with
international partners Asahi and PepsiCo in 2004 and 2013, respectively.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

HSU Shin-Chun, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group in October 1999. He received a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and EMBA degree from
National Taiwan University in 1979 and 2006 respectively. From 2002
to 2012, he served as the chief financial officer of Yingye Da Co., Ltd.,
a listed company in Taiwan, and from 2011 to 2017, he served as the
chairman of the board of directors of Yitong Solar Energy Technology
Co. He has also served as a director and supervisor of several Taiwanese
companies (including listed companies) since 2000. He has more
than 17 years working experience in the financial industry and has
comprehensive knowledge in securities investments, corporate finance
and financial engineering. He is also a Certified Financial Analyst in
Taiwan.

LEE Tiong-Hock, aged 82, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since September 2004. Mr. Lee
has over 28 years of experience in commercial and investment banking.
From 1977 to 1987, he served as the senior manager of marketing
department of an international bank in Hong Kong and, concurrently,
as general manager of its two deposit-taking subsidiaries. During 1989
to 1997, he was engaged in corporate finance advisory business, and
since then in private financial consultancy business in Hong Kong. He
is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute and a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Director.

Hiromu FUKADA, aged 92, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since 3 January 2012. After
graduation from University of Tokyo, he went to University of Oxford,
and specialized in politics and economics. He held important positions
in Japanese Ministry of Foreign Affairs from 1951. He had served as
Minister of the Japanese Embassy in the U.S., Ambassador of OECD,
Singapore and Australia, and director of Economic Affairs. Mr. Fukada
had been the Auditor of Ueno Fine Chemicals Industry, Ltd. from 2006
to 2016, and he is currently the Advisor of the same company. He is also
the auditor of Kajima Institute of International Peace.
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IP Pui-Sum, aged 62, graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic with
a Higher Diploma in Accountancy in 1982. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (United Kingdom)
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors,
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, the Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
He also obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration in 1996.
Mr. Ip has 25 years of experience in public accounting and company
secretarial practices. He is also a certified public accountant (practicing)
in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in September 1995.

Richard CHEN Yinjang, aged 59, is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group. Before his appointment on 1 January 2021, Mr. Chen had
served as the Chief R&D Officer in the Group since February 2013. Mr.
Chen made excellent achievements in developing local talents, building
win-win relationship with external partners and qualifying technology
platforms. Mr. Chen, after graduation from the Department of Chemical
Engineering in National Taiwan University, had worked for Procter &
Gamble for 25 years in global R&D management, prior to his joining of
Master Kong. Mr. Chen, trilingual in Chinese, English and Japanese, was
leading in consumer product innovation and R&D capability building
across the U.S., Japan and China.

KuoWei LIU, aged 51, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
He joined the Group in 2006, has been the Manager, Assistant Vice
President and Vice President of Finance and Accounting Department.
Prior to joining the Group, he was Special Assistant and Assistant
Manager of Finance Department, General Manager’s Office of Taiwan
Mobile Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical
Engineering of Taiwan National Cheng Kung University, Master of
Computer Science of Imperial College London and an M.B.A. from
Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania. During his study in
Wharton School, he was awarded the Fulbright Scholarship, Mr. Felix
Chang'’s Memorial Scholarship, Dr. CF Koo's Scholarship, Wharton MBA
Graduate Grant and First Year Honor.
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Walt WU, aged 61, Chief Human Resources Officer of the Group. He
graduated from the Institute of Human Resource Management, National
San Yat Sen University (Taiwan). Mr. Wu joined the Group in November
2005 as the Senior Assistant Vice President and Vice President of human
resources of the Beverages Business. He was the Chief of Staff of CEO
office in September 2014 and since November 2014, he has served as
Chief Human Resources Officer. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in Twinhead International Corp. as an Assistant Manager of Human
Resources, Tsrc Corporation and The Home World Group as an Vice
President of Human Resources. Mr. Wu has 30 years of experience
in human resources management, with expertise in strategic human
resource management, human development. He endeavors to build the
sustainable development talent team, to promote organizational change
and make full advantage of human resources benefits, realizing the
organizational transformation.

Frank Wang, aged 51, is the Executive Vice President of CEO Office. He
joined the group in 2008, has been the Head of Strategic Management
dept. of Instant Noodles business, Head of Strategic Management dept.
of Master Kong Beverage business and Pepsi Beverage business, Head of
Chairman'’s Office, Board Secretary and Head of Corporate Development
dept. Mr. Wang is responsible for corporate strategy, organization
restructure, information technology, internal control, legal, public
relations, public affairs and corporate culture development in the Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang served as Associate Director in
KPMG Taiwan, Senior Consultant in Computer Associates’ JV, where
he was in charge of Asia Pacific business. He has years of experience in
business transformation and value chain integration. Mr. Wang holds
a Bachelor of Science in Bioenvironmental Systems Engineering from
National Taiwan University, a Master Degree in Civil Engineering from
Columbia University, and a Master Degree of Graphic Communication
Management and Technology from New York University.

Max HUANG, aged 58, is the Executive President of the Group's Instant
Noodle Business. He holds a BBA from National Taiwan University
of Technology. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 2010 and
successively served as Supervisor of Sales Department, General Manager
of Northwestern District, General Manager of East China District,
Regional Executive Vice President of North District, and Executive Vice
President of Instant Noodle Business. Prior to joining the Group, in a
total of 22 years, Mr. Huang served for DaChan Group and business
planning department of the Lucky Royal Co., Ltd, which is the related
company of Nanchow Chemical Industrial Co., Ltd. Mr. Huang has over
29 years' extensive management experience in sales and marketing.
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TSAI, TZU-YUAN, aged 61, is the Executive President of the Group’s
Beverage Business. He joined the Group in December 1994, General
Manager of Shenyang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd in November 1998, Vice
president of South District of the Group’s Beverage Business in March
2016 and was appointed as the President of the Group's Beverage
Business in November 2018. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for
Fukeyule Co., Ltd and Qiaoju Trading Co., Ltd. Mr. Cai is particularly
familiar in sales & marketing and business strategy, familiar with the
China market operations. He has rich management experience and
strong execution capabilities.

Vincent LIU, aged 62, was appointed as the President of the Pepsi
Beverage Business in December 2014. He joined the Group in 2000 and
has served as General Manager or Regional General Manager of Chong
Qing Tingyi, Chong Qing Tingjin, Wuhan Tingjin and Hangzhou Tingjin.
Prior to joining the group, he has worked for British Trading Company
TAIT CO. Mr. Liu is particularly familiar with management in sales and
marketing, and has over 20 years extensive experience.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the
financial statements.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of
instant noodles and beverages in the PRC.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and profit (loss) attributable to
owners of the Company by major segments is set out below:

PR EF (BE)
Profit (Loss)
Uk % attributable to
Revenue owners of the Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

ANR¥T T AR ETFor ARETFT ARMTFor

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

pakid il Instant noodles 28,447,646 29,509,910 2,004,335 2,733,231
Km Beverages 44,801,936 37,279,923 1,837,467 1,594,042
Efb Others 832,710 828,002 (39,320) (265,010)
=X Total 74,082,292 67,617,835 3,802,482 4,062,263
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A review of the business of the Group during the year under review and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and important events
affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31 December
2021 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
page 7, the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 10 to 21, the section headed “Prospects” on page 22 and
in the section headed “Risk Management and Internal Control” of the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 107 to 115 of this annual
report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31
December 2021 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the “Financial Summary” on pages 3 to page 5 and in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 21 of
this annual report.
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The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 152.

The directors approved and paid a special interim dividend of US6.88
cents per ordinary share, recommend the payment of a final dividend
of US5.30 cents per ordinary share, and a special final dividend of
US5.30 cents per ordinary share, totalling US$984 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB6,302 million).

The special interim dividend has been paid on 15 December 2021. The
final dividend and special final dividend will be paid on or before 13 July
2022. Shareholders registered under the Hong Kong branch register of
members on 21 June 2022 will receive their dividends in Hong Kong
dollars.

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 156 to 157.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company's
shares by the Company or any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.
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(a) 2008 FHEMRAERTE
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At the extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") of the Company
held on 20 March 2008, the shareholders approved the adoption of the
share option scheme (the “2008 Share Option Scheme”), with a term of

ten years from the date of adoption.

In view of the expiry of the 2008 Share Option Scheme, the shareholders
of the Company adopted the new share option scheme (the “2018
Share Option Scheme”) at the EGM held on 26 April 2018, with a term

of ten years from the date of adoption.

(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2021, no share
options were granted by the Company in accordance with the

terms of the 2008 Share Option Scheme.

The terms of the 2008 Share Option Scheme are in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Detailed
arrangement for the 2008 Share Option Scheme is shown as

) below:
ElRA Table A
TEE

REHBE Exercise price
RHBH Number of share 1TIEHR (Bx)
Date of grant options granted Exercisable period (HKS)
2008 %3 A20 H 11,760,000 2013 %53 A21 BHZE2018 £3 A20 H(1) $9.28
20 March 2008 21 March 2013 to 20 March 2018 (1)
2009 F4 A22 H 26,688,000 2014 %4 A23 BE2019 F4 A22 HQ) $9.38
22 April 2009 23 April 2014 to 22 April 2019 (2)
2010 F4 A1 H 15,044,000 2015 %4 A1 HZE2020 43 A31 HQ) $18.57
1 April 2010 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020 (3)
2011 %4 A12 H 17,702,000 2016 F4 A12 HZ=2021 F4 A11 B4) $19.96
12 April 2011 12 April 2016 to 11 April 2021 (4)
2012 F4 A26 H 9,700,000 2017 %4 B26 HE2022 F4 A25 H(5) $20.54
26 April 2012 26 April 2017 to 25 April 2022 (5)
2013 5 A27 H 11,492,000 2018 45 A27 BZE2023 45 A26 H(6) $20.16
27 May 2013 27 May 2018 to 26 May 2023 (6)
2014 F4 A17 H 12,718,500 2019 %4 B17 BE2024 F4 A16 H(7) $22.38
17 April 2014 17 April 2019 to 16 April 2024 (7)
2015 %6 A5 H 17,054,000 2020 F6 A5 BZE2025 F6 A4 H() $16.22
5 June 2015 5 June 2020 to 4 June 2025 (8)
2016 7 A4 H 10,148,000 2021 %7 B4 HE2026 F7 A3 H(9) $7.54
4 July 2016 4 July 2021 to 3 July 2026 (9)
2017 4 A21 H 11,420,000 2022 F4 A21 BHZ=2027 F4 20 B(10) $10.20
21 April 2017 21 April 2022 to 20 April 2027 (10)
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AT ZEE 58 2=2021F12 8318 1t The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share
+ = {B B 1R #5 2008 F B A% #E 5T B BT % options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2021 pursuant

2 BB S to the Share Option Scheme:
=B Table B
BREHR
Number of share option
SRATRA
it 4
ailt: 2 20215 HIWHE
BikmE R021% £ EREHH 128318 Weighted
Closing price 1818 ERi Bt /5% k33 average
%8 of theshares 28 Granted Exercised Cancelled/ Balanceas  closing price
#% BTEH Exerise  onthedate  Balanceasat during during  lapsed during at31December  immediately HE
Name Date of grant price of grant 1 January 2021 the period the period the period 2021 before exercise  Note
B B B
HKS HKS HKS
gz
Executive Director
2k W11E4R128 19.96 19.96 206,000 - - 206,000 - - EAY
Tseng Chien 12 April 2011 Table A (4)
012547268 20.54 19.88 112,000 - - - 112,000 — BAp)
26 April 2012 Table A(5)
013554278 20.16 20.05 140,000 - - - 140,000 — EAl
27 May 2013 Table A (6)
14544178 22.38 22.35 164,000 - - - 164,000 - EAD
17 April 2014 Table A(7)
W15F6A5H 16.22 15.92 232,000 - - - 232,000 — BAB)
5 June 2015 Table A(8)
Rnd 017544218 1020 10.20 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 — BA10)
WeiHong-Ming 21 April 2017 Table A (10)
ALK 017544218 1020 10.20 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 — EAN0)
WeiHong-Chen 21 April 2017 Table A (10)
et
Chief Executive Officer
ez 14545178 238 235 262,000 - - - 262,000 — EBAD
Chen Yinjang 17 April 2014 Table A (7)
201556458 16.22 15.92 380,000 - - - 380,000 — BAB)
5 June 2015 Table A (8)
1657748 754 754 500,000 - - - 500,000 - EA9
41uly 2016 Table A (9)
W17E4A218 10.20 10.20 500,000 - - - 500,000 — EA(0)
21 April 2017 Table A(10)
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BB (48) Table B (Continued)
kR
Number of share option
RIETRE
it
RFAEL R01E TIRmE
RARmE R01E £R EREHH 128318 Weighted
Closing price 1818 EREL gk gs: 26 average
%8  of theshares b3 Granted Exercised Cancelled/ Balanceas  closing price
5] RTRH Exercise onthedate  Balance asat during during  lapsed during at31December  immediately HE
Name Date of grant price of grant 1 January 2021 the period the period the period 2021  before exercise  Note
AR Bn En
HKS HKS HKS
IZRR
Substantial shareholder
BN W1ELA1E 1996 19.96 2,264,000 - - 2,264,000 - — BAW
WeiIng-Chou 12 April 2011 Table A (4)
012547268 20.54 19.88 1,368,000 - - - 1,368,000 - BApD)
26 April 2012 Table A (5)
W01355H278 20.16 20.05 1,390,000 - - - 1,390,000 — EAl
27 May 2013 Table A (6)
14545178 22.38 22.35 1,486,000 - - - 1,486,000 - BAD)
17 April 2014 Table A(7)
01556750 16.22 15.92 1,726,000 - - - 1,726,000 - EA®
5 June 2015 Table A (8)
EfifES 011545128 19.96 19.96 7,310,000 - - 7,310,000 - - BA®
Other employees 12 April 2011 Table A (4)
012547268 20.54 19.88 4,816,000 - - - 4,816,000 - BApD)
26 April 2012 Table A (5)
W13E85A278 20.16 20.05 6,236,000 - - — 6,236,000 — EAl)
27 May 2013 Table A(6)
014545178 22.38 22.35 7,049,000 - - - 7,049,000 - BAD)
17 April 2014 Table A(7)
01556750 16.22 15.92 11,196,000 - - - 11,196,000 — EA®
5 June 2015 Table A (8)
1657 A48 754 154 7,172,000 - 5,466,000 — 1,706,000 1487 EA9)
4 July 2016 Table A(9)
017548218 1020 10.20 8,070,000 - 1,120,000 - 6,950,000 1494 EA(10)
21 April 2017 Table A(10)
@it 64,579,000 - 6,586,000 9,780,000 48,213,000
Total
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HZE2021F12A31HIt+=@A For the period of twelve months ended 31 December 2021,

HE - ANEBETRBHARITE 6,586,000 options had been exercised under the 2008 Share

6,586,000 (i - MNiEFIITTEE Option Scheme. Weighted average exercise price was HK$7.99

A7.9987T - 1T B 2 BIA INEF S and the weighted average market closing price before the date of

W ER14.8887T o sHAERFHR exercise was HK$14.88. For details, please refer to note 30 to the

iRE IS ERERMIEE30 o consolidated financial statements.

# BEMNABAARMBESSEFEM # Wei Ing-Chou was the former Chairman of the Board and a
AIFITES - thEMERFFENT former Executive Director. He is a beneficiary of two trusts which
= A v %M E{E 59 B A Profit holds 25% interests in Profit Surplus Holdings Limited and Profit
Surplus Holdings Limited A Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited, respectively. Profit Surplus Holdings
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited 25% Limited is indirectly interested in 80.869% of Ting Hsin (Cayman
# % ° Profit Surplus Holdings Islands) Holding Corp. Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited is indirectly
Limited@EZFEIEH(AES ) interested in 17.835% of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding
B& B BR A 7180.869% My #E &5 + M Corp. Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. directly holds
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited 1,882,927,866 shares of the Company.

MERAEEM(HES)ERAR
NEIN7.835% KR o TEFT (S
S)EBRERAREEREARNA
1,882,927,866 JEA% (7 ©

(b) 2018FFERFESHE (b) 2018 SHARE OPTION SCHEME
201 8FHE AR AEET BIRE KT & LR The terms of the 2018 Share Option Scheme are in accordance
BIZE17E MG - BEARF2018%F with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Detailed
BT 8 2 R InTA arrangement for the 2018 Share Option Scheme is shown as
below:
Bl&C Table C
RHERE
wEAH Number of share 1T} TEE
Date of grant options granted Exercisable period Exercise price
(#B7T)
(HKS)
20184 H27 R 2,478,000 202144 H30AZE 20284 A26H (1a) $16.18
27 April 2018 30 April 2021 to 26 April 2028 (1a)
20184 H27 R 5,626,000 202144 A30HE 20244 4 A26 H (1b) $16.18
27 April 2018 30 April 2021 to 26 April 2024 (1b)
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NI EH | EHE2021F12A31H
IFF =@ ARIE2018F BB RE T 2 P
Bz BRI

B#D

1 bgl=

Name Date of grant

ez

Executive Director

R4 W18E4A7A

Wei Hong-Ming 27 hpril 2018
018544278
27 April 2018

RER 01847278

Wei Hong-Chen 27 April 2018
018544278
27 April 2018

ThEE

Chief Executive Officer

e 2018545278

Chen Yinjang 27 April 2018

IZRR

Substantial Shareholder

REN 018547278

Wei Ing-Chou* 27 April 2018

EftEsSst 018544278
Other employees 27 April 2018

in aggregate 018544278
27 hpril 2018
&t
Total

%8
Exercise
price
AR
HKS

16.18

16.18

16.18

16.18

16.18

16.18

16.18

16.18

RFRH

ZBBUTE
Closing
price of

the shares
on the

date of grant
BT

HKS

15.02

15.02

15.02

15.02

15.02

15.02

15.02

15.02
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The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share

options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2021

pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme:

R0uE
1818
Pi i

Balance
asat

1 January

2021

385,000

98,000

385,000

98,000

144,000

470,000

1,708,000

2,975,000

6,263,000

Table D

BhRiEE

Number of share option

R021E

FhEiE/ 128318

% b3

EREL EREAE Cancelled/ Balance
Granted Exercised lapsed asat
during during during 31 December
the period the period the period 2021

- - - 385,000

- - - 98,000

- - - 385,000

- - - 98,000

- - - 144,000

- - - 470,000

- - - 1,708,000

- - - 2,975,000

- - - 6,263,000

RIETREN
ETORmE
Weighted
average
closing price
immediately
before
exercise
o

HKS

iF
Note

ElC(1a)
Table C (1a)
EC(1h)
Table C (1b)

E((13)
Table C (1a)
(1)
Table C (1b)

EC(1h)
Table C(1b)

EC(1h)
Table C (1b)

EC(13)
Table C(1a)
EC(1h)
Table C (1b)

ERETEIRAR
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HZE2021%F12A8318 1+ =18 A &7
A )R BTE2018F AR 8T T
R BB AR MR T TIE o

# BENAXRANAESTE LR
MAMITEER - tBEMEFETH
Xa A ZmEEEIAIFER
Profit Surplus Holdings Limited }
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited
25% #Ez © Profit Surplus Holdings
Limited @B B IEF (=5 ) %
% & PR R 7180.869% &) #E 2 -
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited
MEREENFEEE)ERAR
RA7.835% M) am o TRH(F £
EERARAREERBELRRA
1,882,927,866 f&f% {7 ©

REBZRITERZFBHREREETHR
RMIFE32 ©

AERAMBEAREERAYPLZAR
REERITHAHR

HITEF
REBELE
HFHE—RELE
mRERTE
MERRSELE

BEBELE
it

BB ITEE

®REBELEE

RE@RE

FEAE A

T %L

FRPE:ESEA (20211 A1 BEZME)

EEEMERARBFILERMARREE
MESTAIR—FRRLEZRBEEL -

M EZRARAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2021, no share
options were exercised under the terms of the 2018 Share Option
Scheme.

# Wei Ing-Chou was the former Chairman of the Board and a
former Executive Director. He is a beneficiary of two trusts which
holds 25% interests in Profit Surplus Holdings Limited and Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited, respectively. Profit Surplus Holdings
Limited is indirectly interested in 80.869% of Ting Hsin (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited is indirectly
interested in 17.835% of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. directly holds
1,882,927,866 shares of the Company.

Details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors and chief executive officer of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming
Mr. Junichiro Ida
Mr. Koji Shinohara
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen
Mr. Yuko Takahashi
Ms. Tseng Chien

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock
Mr. Hiromu Fukada

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chen Yinjang (appointed on 1 January 2021)

None of the directors have a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without the payment
of compensation.



ARRIEEERLFRTEFIRIE LD
MAIE313IGRE BB LI R EORER
E - ARRARRABBEILFNTEERSB

o

<t

BEENERERABZEAAERSENAE
WEV1I9OBEZEFE 1248 -

R2021512 8318 EFRTHREAZED
AARREBEEZR(ERERESFLPE
EOI(TFBHFRBEERNDETRE) 2K
7 HEARMDKESF 2R KB ZE ()
BEEFRHAEKRIETRABELREN
DEBNMEARNBRBEERERIMBRA
Al ([ A2 P 1) (B IR R 5% Z 1501 & fE sk
WRAHER ZESIAR) R (b)RIKFE
% R HAE G015 352 1R 48 T 50 8- 10 52 16k FT
iz BT M (BB EMARIESR#ETT
BER G 2 BESFRIEME AR T REAZ
Fran T -

(a)-1 RROREEROHRR

HE Name

55 Directors
BARE Wei Hong-Ming
R K Wei Hong-Chen
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The Company received confirmation of independence from the
Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 119 to 124.

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to
securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(a)-1 Long position in the shares and the underlying Shares

RGEAR IR 2
Number of Shares Bok
BARER EEER Percentage
Personal Corporate of the issued
interests interests share capital
5,000,000 — 0.09%
5,000,000 — 0.09%
EEAMER
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(a)-2 RELFBRERNRR (MEE2) (a)-2 Long position in share options of the Company (note 2)
IR
BaLE
S RERME ik ¢E| Percentage
Capacity and Number of of the issued
®H Name nature of interest shares share capital
55 Directors
BR%E Wei Hong-Ming ERFEAA 1,483,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner
AR K Wei Hong-Chen EmEEA 1,483,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner
B Tseng Chien EmlEEA 648,000 0.01%

Beneficial owner

TEHER Chief Executive Officer

ReR R Chen Yinjang EmlEEA 1,786,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner

M5E Note:

1. 3% %1,882,927,866 D ATEF(H = 1. These 1,882,927,866 shares are held by and registered under the name

S)ERBRARTEN DB RUES of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Hsin"). Ting Hsin is
BEL BIANEAR(MEDEEE beneficially owned as to approximately 50.629% by Ho Te Investments
B#50.629% * B EITRBRAT([E Limited (“Ho Te"), as to approximately 30.240% by Rich Cheer Holdings
43 1)¥5HE430.240% - Rich Gold Capital Limited (“Rich Cheer"), as to approximately 17.835% by Rich Gold Capital
Inc. (TRich Gold )#§%517.835% * &FHH Inc. (“Rich Gold”), and as to approximately 1.296% by Asahi Group
EEERRARE & 4L (Asahi Group Holdings, Holdings, Ltd.. Ho Te and Rich Cheer are owned as to 100% by Profit
Ltd.)FFE 1.296% ° F{E K &4 Th e Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (“Profit Surplus”). Profit Surplus is the trustee
Surplus Holdings Limited ([ Profit Surplus ) of a unit trust, which is in turn held by four discretionary trusts in equal
100% A ° Profit Surplus @ — A% {Z proportions. The settlors and discretionary objects of the four trusts are as
FEMRFEA - AT E AL E A B UERE follows:

ErizizgiEEdd M—rﬁ it ERIBERE
AR A MBS AT

-  BRESZALMER—ERBEF —  Wei Chang Lu-Yun is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts
oI AVNE EZE’]’F%%%M%%?E%%% with Wei Chang Lu-Yun and Wei Ing-Chou as discretionary objects;

MM BEIEEEA

-  MERALMER—EARERETN —  Lin Li-Mien is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts with Lin
DAV N EZEU’FE?EL}UW%T% & Li-Mien and Wei Ying-Chiao as discretionary objects;
ERABIEXmA

- BHAFSBALMER—ERBEF —  Wei Hsu Hsu-Mien is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts
BIRKIZA - IS EFELAZRRT 548 with Wei Hsu Hsu-Mien and Wei Yin-Chun as discretionary objects;
RBEFTABEZEA R and
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EITRBBXEA

RichGoldlHTE R E A =R B R A A
(Tingho Capital Holding Co., Limited) 2%
HAE - MIERERER AR A & 8 Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited ([ Profit Surplus
3DFTFEE - Profit Surplus 3R—EEAE
FEREEEA (L fEFEFR B ERE
SRR E F‘ %‘ﬁ o ATt E BB EFE
B AR 20 A B 51 8 AR 1557
BELEZE -

Lion Trust (Singapore) Limited £ il fTz
BERIEEFEZEEA °

2. ZRFEJN{E AR 13,942,000 BRAE 5 R A
s - W4 6,440,000 10 HRLHE (D Bl EF
HnzE 128 B BIXB KR 131 B BKD) »
BRGEEATEMNE BINE AR EE
NI 2 IR 1D RABREIR (D R i e o

PRAEFTHEEE SN - HE 202112 A31
AIEHRNEREESERTEANESEIES
FEB 2B FRRRN T N\me FrEE
AEBARRAZROIES MESHE
L HER o 1% 5 P BRA IR AT 50 (AR L S A
Fl o RARSHEAFMME AT BEBEE]

TR - BUEEE R MM EMEA
E RS ERE -

BrZARER P4 88 & A0 - 7R 202112 A31

H #EEERITHAHNARRISEM
wilw%ﬁ E5 REIE GRS T RE0)
ZEMES R 2 #A () RIEFES L
ERFIBE+TABELRBE \SBAEERA
ARBRA(BEREZSGOE ElE
REBHB ZERIAR) » (b)) RIBEZFS
R ERE GBI56 352 647 7E re SR TE 2z M6 Pt
ZERM () BEBELTARESEST
BER G 2 RESFRIZBANE AR R
P ©
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—  Wei Tu Miao is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts with
Wei Tu Miao and Wei Yin-Heng as discretionary objects.

Rich Gold is wholly owned by Tingho Capital Holding Co., Ltd., which
is owned by Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited (“Profit Surplus 3"). Profit
Surplus 3 is the trustee of a unit trust, which is in turn held by four
discretionary trusts in equal proportions. The settlors and discretionary
objects of the four trusts have similar structures to those listed above.

Lion Trust (Singapore) Limited is the trustee of each of the discretionary
trusts mentioned above.

2. Wei Ing-Chou is also personally interested in 13,942,000 shares and
holds 6,440,000 share options (details shown as Table B and Table D on
page 128 and 131 respectively) under the share option schemes of the
Company. Wei Chang Lu-Yun, being the spouse of Wei Ing-Chou, is also
deemed to be interested in the shares and the underlying shares held by
Wei Ing-Chou.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the nine months ended 31
December 2021 were there rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were there any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed in this paragraph, as at 31 December 2021, none of
the Directors and Chief Executive Officer had interests in any securities
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to securities
transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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MARRIESHITHAEIAME - 712021
F12A318 BREBEBHFRBEGHNE
336 EAETHEEMNELRMATREE (AR R
BEME) TERREREMATEAEERR
AR RABBERGOAERSORB T ¢

]

Name of shareholder

FERERER

Interest of Substantial Shareholders
TEF (R M)A

Ting Hsin (see Note 1)

M AR (R 1)4

Ho Te Investments Limited (see Note 1)4
LlERREBRRAR(ZHT )4

Rich Cheer Holdings Limited (see Note 1)4
Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (2 47z 7)4
Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (see Note 7)4
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited (2477 1)4
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited (see Note 1)4
ERERERERAR(ZHZ1)4

Tingho Capital Holding Co., Limited (see Notes 14
Rich Gold Capital Inc. (£ 477 1)4

Rich Gold Capital Inc. (see Note 7)4

Lion Trust (Singapore) Limted (2 /3% 1)4
Lion Trust (Singapore) Limted (see Note 1)4
ZHRmRA gt

Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.

A IR R2ERANFRE134EEE 1358
EEE(OE=3-)

B EatESN - 2021412 A318 0 R
(BHRBEKRN)EIBIKEATHEHE
AR EE - BEE M A THA AR AR
(B Y=

M EZRARAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

So far as was known to any Director or Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, as at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions
of substantial shareholders and other persons of the Company, in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to the kept under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company, were as follows:

BB T
B
ZBED%
% of the
ELn) BERNEE issued share
Capacity Number of shares held capital
BREBA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.44
Beneficial owner
RENFER 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.44
Interest of controlled company
VNGl 3 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.44
Interest of controlled company
BRUERXTEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.44
Interest of controlled company
BREFEXTA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.44
Trustee of a unit trusts
VNGl 3 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.44
Interest of controlled company
R NaEs 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.44
Interest of controlled company
BEELIXEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.44
Trustee of discretionary trusts
ERBEAA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.44

Beneficial owner
A Note 1 and 2 are set out on pages 134 to 135

Note: (L): Long Position

Apart from the above, no other interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2021.
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Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the printing of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Except for the related party transactions as disclosed in the financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

There is no information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Donation made by the Group during the year amounted to RMB9.918
million.

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and
services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less than 30% of its goods
to its 5 largest customers.
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RIE =

2019511 A21 8 » KA R Tingzheng
(Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. ([TEIE 1)&T
StEmE(TTEEHfERR]) - BILTEE
REME R MAEEHERBEEEM
BEZERER  FHR2020F1H1BE
202F 12 A3THIE=AFKREFE - THLE
BARFIZESEXRRITESTREL L
ERPITESRARLENRENE R
EERMA o B HERHZED N 20204 1
A16 BRITZRFFIAE LHB KRR
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2 B 2019411 218 201912 A
16 H 2019412 A23H ~ 20201 A 16
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H E2021F12A31B t FE- A
FREMBRARAZABSBEAARKE
2,235,513 F 70 o LA E AR BB # # 3%
MIsE38 TR IR S - ARFE LMHRAE
BEAERHITE -

TRl (R PR 165 2

M2019F 12 A16 B » AARIEXETEIE
B FAZEBRAR([TEE )T HER®
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ESREZERY REZHERH RAK
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EEeXIRERANTESREREERINT
EERLRRAEENRENERTBEZE
B LEXRGHFBAILERRFN 2019
F12R16 BB EZRE -

HZE2021F12A31HLFE - BlEEY
HESHEAARY288,318F L LALR
RARGHEREMEISAEEZRS B
FELEMRABERERIZTEE -

138 EMEERERAHE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Tingzheng Supply Agreement

On 21 November 2019, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the "Tingzheng Supply Agreement”) with Tingzheng (Cayman Islands)
Holding Corp. (“Tingzheng”), pursuant to which, Tingzheng and its
subsidiaries agreed to supply flexible plastic packaging materials and
plastic products to the Group for a term of three financial years from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Tingzheng is beneficially owned
by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman
of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei
Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. The Tingzheng
Supply Agreement was approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 16 January 2020. Details of this agreement may be found in the
Company’s announcements and circular dated 21 November 2019, 16
December 2019, 23 December 2019 and 16 January 2020, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the purchases from Tingzheng
and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB2,235.513 million. Such purchases
have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements of the
Company and were continuing connected transactions of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

Ting Fung Supply Agreement

On 16 November 2019, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Ting Fung Supply Agreement”) with Tianjin Ting Fung Starch
Development Co., Ltd. (“Ting Fung”), pursuant to which, Ting Fung
agreed to supply modified potato starch, modified cassava starch
and seasoning flavour products to the Group for a term of three
financial years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Ting Fung
is beneficially owned by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei
Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of
the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the
Company. Details of this agreement may be found in the Company'’s
announcement dated 16 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the purchases from Ting Fung
and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB288.318 million. Such purchases
have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements of the
Company and were continuing connected transactions of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules.
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Ting Chuan Agreement

On 22 October 2020, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Ting Chuan Agreement”) with Ting Chuan (Cayman Islands)
Holding Corp. (“Ting Chuan”) in relation to the supply of products of
the Group to Ting Chuan and its subsidiaries, and for Ting Chuan and its
subsidiaries to provide sales promotion services to the Group for a term
of three financial years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023.
Ting Chuan operates the “Family Mart” convenient stores in the PRC
and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ting Hsin. Ting Hsin is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and held approximately 33.48% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the Ting Chuan
Agreement. Details of the transactions above may be found in the
Company'’s announcement dated 22 October 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the transactions with Ting
Chuan and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB148.381 million. Such
transactions have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Weizhen Supply Agreement

On 27 November 2020, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Weizhen Supply Agreement”) with Weizhen Investment Limited
(“Weizhen Investment”) in relation to the Group’s purchase of frozen
and dried food materials, dried meat floss and other meat products from
Weizhen Investment and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial
years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. Weizhen Investment
is owned as to 75% by Great System Holdings (Private) Limited (" Great
System”), a company which is beneficially owned by family members
and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and
an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an
Executive Director of the Company, and as to 25% by Sanyo Foods,
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Details of the transactions
above may be found in the Company’s announcement dated 27
November 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the purchases from Weizhen
Investment and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB359.345 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.
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Marine Vision 1t FE 175 3%
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Marine Vision Supply Agreement

On 18 October 2019, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Marine Vision Supply Agreement”) with Marine Vision Investment
Inc. (“Marine Vision”) in relation to the Group’s purchase of carton
box products from Marine Vision and its subsidiaries for a term of three
financial years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Marine
Vision is beneficially owned by family members and relatives of Mr.
Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director
of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of
the Company. Details of the transactions above may be found in the
Company's announcement dated 18 October 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the purchases from Marine
Vision and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB2,491.443 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Nature Investment Supply Agreement

On 25 September 2020, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Nature Investment Supply Agreement”) with Nature Investment
Group Ltd. (“Nature Investment”) in relation to the Group's purchase
of sesame oil, animal oil and other sesame products from Nature
Investment and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial years from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. Nature Investment is beneficially
owned by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and
Mr. Wei Hong- Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of
the transactions above may be found in the Company’s announcement
dated 25 September 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the purchases from Nature
Investment and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB205.669 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.
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Success Forever Supply Agreement

On 31 December 2021, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the "Success Forever Investments Supply Agreement”) with Success
Forever Investments Group Ltd. (“Success Forever”) in relation to the
Group’s purchase of plastic products from Success Forever and its
subsidiaries for a term of three financial years from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2023. Success Forever is beneficially owned by family
members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the
Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-
Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of the transactions
above may be found in the Company’s announcement dated 31
December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the purchases from Success
Forever and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB953.849 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Ting Tong Logistics Services

On 22 June 2020, the Company entered into a logistics services
agreement (the “Ting Tong Logistics Services Agreement”) with Ting
Tong (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Tong”) in relation to the
Group's purchase of logistics services from Ting Tong and its subsidiaries
for a term from the day of the Ting Tong Logistics Services Agreement
to 31 December 2022. On 30 September 2021, based on the rational
expectation that the transactions would exceed the original annual
caps, the Company entered into a supplement agreement with Ting
Tong to revise the annual caps for fiscal year 2021 and 2022 under
the Ting Tong Logistics Services Agreement. Ting Tong is beneficially
owned by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of
the transaction above may be found in the Company’s announcements
dated 22 June 2020 and 30 September 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the purchases from Ting Tong
and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,819.826 million. Such purchases
have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements of the
Company and were continuing connected transactions of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules.
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The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors),
have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(@  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better which are no less
favourable to the Group than those available to/from independent
third parties; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report and they have
provided a letter to the Board confirming that the above continuing
connected transactions have nothing that would cause them to believe
that the transactions:

(@  have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(©)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the respective annual cap as set by the Company.

The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors), have
reviewed and confirmed that, except for the continuing connected
transactions as stated in the prior paragraphs, all other continuing
connected transactions entered by the Group are exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Articles of Association although there are no restrictions against such
rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 10 to 21
under “Management Discussion and Analysis” and on page 22 under
“Prospects” of this Annual Report.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Wei Hong-Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2022
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Mazars CPA Limited

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BB BEBE I18HPIRES 4212
Tel |35 : (+852) 2909 5555

Fax f5&: (+852) 2810 0032
www.mazars.hk

To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group"”) set out on pages 152 to 317, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements”
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

section of
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB21,510 million at 31 December 2021. Of which,
the carrying amount of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at
31 December 2021 was RMB11,685 million. Any impairment of those
assets identified may have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed internal and
external sources of information, including but not limited to technical
obsolescence to usage, significant change in use of assets with adverse
effect on the Group, prolonged period of time being idle and economic
performance of an asset was expected to be worse than expected, to
assess whether there is any indication that machinery and equipment
may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be conducted. The
carrying amounts of the assets will be written down to their recoverable
amounts which are the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on
machinery and equipment by estimating the recoverable amounts of the
cash generating units (“CGUs") to which the assets belong principally
based on their value in use or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable
amount of certain individual assets with reference to their fair value less
costs of disposal.

We identified the impairment of machinery and equipment as a key
audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the judgment and estimation involved in the impairment
review and test of machinery and equipment including the consideration
of the indicators of impairment and the determination of the key
assumptions applied in the impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(o), 5(ii) and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures on sample basis where appropriate in relation

to management’s impairment assessment of property, plant and

equipment included:

a)

Discussing the process and basis used to identify indicators of
impairment of machinery and equipment with management
and reviewing utilisation records and profitability of machinery
and equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing
whether management had performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment model applied by
the management in calculating the impairment charges and the

judgments applied in determining the CGUs to which the assets

belong;

Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flow
model used in the value in use calculation;

Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the food and beverage industry and market;

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future
production plans and approved budgets and assessing the
reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets;

Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of disposal by making
reference to the market price of an active market, if applicable;
and

Considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in respect of
the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”) and equity instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”)
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

The carrying amounts of the Group’s FVPL and Designated FVOCI
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are RMB627 million and
RMB137 million respectively at 31 December 2021.

At the end of each of the reporting period, the management determines
the fair value of these FVPL and Designated FVOCI with reference to the
valuations performed by the investment manager or trust administrator
of these investments by applying valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques, in particular those that used significant inputs that are not
supported by observable market data and are based on assumptions
that are not supported by prices from observable current market
transactions. The sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs used
in the fair value measurement to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions used in the valuations may have significant impact on the
valuation of these financial assets.

We identified the valuation of FVPL and Designated FVOCI classified as
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as a key audit matter because of their
significance to the consolidated financial statements and the judgement
and estimation involved in determination of the fair value of these FVPL
and Designated FVOCI.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(j), 5(ii), 22 and 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures, on sample basis where appropriate, in relation to
the valuation of these FVPL and Designated FVOCI included:

a)  Obtaining and examining the terms in the relevant investment
agreements of the financial assets;

b)  Obtaining and understanding of the Group's valuation process;

)  Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and assumptions adopted by the investment managers or trust
administrators;

d)  Discussing with the investment managers or fund adminstrators
and challenging the reasonableness of the assumptions, key inputs
and underlying data used; and

e)  Reviewing and evaluating the reasonableness of the sensitivity
analysis.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in the 2021 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

B EER
2021 Annual Report ¥

149



L e 0 o o

B ZEAIFRE | Independent Auditor’s Report

ERBEESETELBETETNBRES As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

BMBEREXHERRIBIEEERRE judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

[ - HFITRE We also:

o HBIAFTE AR EEFS R M B e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
BEPBRRTFEERNGRREMLAN consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
Bk - RETRHMITEEZERRK design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
B EF UREFSZHSTNEEH and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
B RECFERERNER - AR provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
HEFrge s R EE - BE EEE misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
® BB - 30% B R EBIE from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
2 £ B AR 88 23R BRER T 8 2L omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

BB K B8 SR PR B9 L B = Y R BE B
3R B8 AR T G B B RS RR R &Y

[\ o

e HEEBETHEBAANIBZES - LAFK e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
EEMNESER BEMILIE in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
Y ESBEAEIESAERIEEE circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
ER - on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e EEEHHAEHBEMBERER e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

HEH @A AMEEREnEE reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
14 o made by the directors.

e BEEFRAFELESTERD e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
BEMN - WREBEFIRESNETRE going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
HORTE B 7 & E B IE B evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
EAES E5ERELERNE to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
EBERRE - MBEMRETFTEEM Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
BEBANETHZE  BIZBEZEAN®R that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
ERRBIELRAVEHRER A attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
FiEE - EEEEETE - AIERM the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
EEERIFBREBER - BHFINE inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
i ERN AR A ZEAEHRE R b the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
FIERSEEETRE - A - RAKE However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
T ERAIEEER ES5E s cease to continue as a going concern.

B 4ot 43 g A
BREBLE -

e HERAMBHMENERIDA e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
X EBERAND BEFESE consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
UWREEHEREREDUARFENTG whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
A2FHERHREIE - underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.
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B AZEAIHRE | Independent Auditor’s Report

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2022

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: PO5132
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Consolidated Income Statement
#HZ2021F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
it AR¥Fr ABREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
g Revenue 6 74,082,292 67,617,835
SHE AR Cost of sales (51,571,867) (45,185,680)
EH Gross profit 22,510,425 22,432,155
HAth Y e Other revenue 7 783,501 667,617
E b A Other net income 8 1,024,195 567,894
Pal =i W:N Distribution costs (15,708,282) (14,150,828)
THEHA Administrative expenses (2,469,530) (2,290,999)
B & A Other operating expenses (229,996) (475,724)
BI75E A Finance costs 9 (223,494) (348,639)
FEAGEE A ERBHEE Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures 20, 21 121,824 130,436
BB AR R Profit before taxation 9 5,808,643 6,531,912
TIE Taxation 11 (1,424,976) (1,958,228)
REERF Profit for the year 4,383,667 4,573,684
EiER Profit attributable to:
¥iN/NET 323 Owners of the Company 3,802,482 4,062,263
DR RE LR Non-controlling interests 581,185 511,421
R EE A Profit for the year 4,383,667 4,573,684
BRER Earnings per share 13
HAR Basic RMB67.57 cents  RMB72.23 cents
s Diluted RMB67.51 cents =~ RMB72.15 cents
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BZE 202112 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R E i F Profit for the year 4,383,667 4,573,684
Ha2mE(EFE) W - Other comprehensive (loss) income:
TEELHEZ B ARAEA Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
ARERNEEZEHE Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (5,652) (367)
FEEEAABES R REREAM Fair value changes in equity instruments
PHWGREENER TE designated as at fair value through
ARBECE other comprehensive income — 32,456
(5,652) 32,089
BAAAEARESTIHE Items that are or may be reclassified
HBam kP rIEE - subsequently to profit or loss:
EH Z%E Exchange differences on consolidation 292,959 784,122
AEEHMEZEKE Other comprehensive income for the year 287,307 816,211
AEEZHKZEE Total comprehensive income for the year 4,670,974 5,389,895
Eh2EkSA%E Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
NN 2 Owners of the Company 4,070,213 4,847,840
DR R R Non-controlling interests 600,761 542,055
4,670,974 5,389,895
B EER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
7R2021F 12 A31 BIEFE At 31 December 2021

2021 2020
it AR¥FT AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
&M EME Investment properties 14 1,807,100 1,771,700
W - MR REE Property, plant and equipment 15 21,510,028 21,934,571
FREEE Right-of-use assets 16 3,691,741 3,804,456
mEE Intangible assets 17 155,970 165,668
BES Goodwill 18 97,910 97,910
RN ey Interest in an associate 20 94,847 94,802
HE N AR Interest in joint ventures 21 625,163 627,031
BAREBEYIRRE Financial assets at fair value through
BREREENEREE profit or loss 22 626,901 1,329,479
BERAAEMESIRKLE  Equity instruments designated as at
HEme2mEla=EREED fair value through other
T HE comprehensive income 22 137,317 140,444
BETIAEE Deferred tax assets 34 518,605 429,027
EHEFHEFER Long-term time deposits 26 5,376,900 2,435,000
34,642,482 32,830,088
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 23 4,671,477 3,347,676
FEM BRFR Trade receivables 24 2,043,744 1,660,389
A Ui Bl % T8 Tax recoverable 14,729 21,194
FEMFRIB R A EUGRIE  Prepayments and other receivables 25 2,352,553 2,240,898
FEHEITEFERZBVEAERS  Current portion of long-term time deposit 26 725,000 —
IR TER Pledged bank deposits 26 20,746 37,832
IRITRESBREIRE Bank balances and cash 26 15,838,492 21,393,321
25,666,741 28,701,310
BmEE Total assets 60,309,223 61,531,398
BREZRERE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
B A R 4 Capital and reserves
AT Issued capital 27 235,633 235,422
f& =8 Share premium 28 786,965 730,075
(] Reserves 29 17,637,378 20,147,227
AARRREMRER Total capital and reserves attributable
GRS to owners of the Company 18,659,976 21,112,724
DERRER Non-controlling interests 19 3,748,524 3,626,659
RERERBE Total equity 22,408,500 24,739,383
B MERERA T
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A BFEIORE | Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
72021412 H31 BIESFE At 31 December 2021

2021 2020
HtaF AR¥TFTT ABREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBAE Non-current liabilities
RABERE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 32 6,350,369 7,805,122
HEBRE Lease liabilities 16 195,519 215,609
SIRMNEMT Employee benefit obligations 33 79,920 122,166
REHESE Deferred tax liabilities 34 1,449,910 1,577,110
8,075,718 9,720,007
REEE Current liabilities
BRRAREBETIRIE Financial liabilities at fair value through
BREREENEHERE profit or loss 31 9,959 9,959
FERTBR IR Trade payables 35 9,046,518 8,146,974
Hi M B R B UWIRESE  Other payables and deposits received 36 9,593,331 10,079,278
EEBE ZRVEER S Current portion of interest-bearing
borrowings 32 7,311,444 5,891,412
HimEhaE Other current liabilities 39 40,000 40,000
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 159,520 101,191
RPN FHIE Advance payments from customers 40 3,342,990 2,360,954
IR Taxation 321,243 442,240
29,825,005 27,072,008
maE Total liabilities 37,900,723 36,792,015
BREZREEHAE Total equity and liabilities 60,309,223 61,531,398
FRE(BE)EE Net current (liabilities) assets (4,158,264) 1,629,302
HMEERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 30,484,218 34,459,390

FIR2EINTBEZHRAVBEHRREBES
EN2022F3 A28 M E RS

WHATALTREREE

#% % WEI Hong-Ming
ZEF Director

H M4 —BB Junichiro Ida

ZFZ Director

These consolidated financial statements on pages 152 to 317 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2022 and signed on its behalf by
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2021F12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2021

FRARRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
RARER
88 DURRER Rz
ERka Rir&E Total Non- fERsLE
Isued Share & capital and controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Teserves interests equity
ARETR  ARETT  ARBTR ARETR  ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R20205181B At 1 January 2020 235,401 724,384 18,618,789 19,578,574 3467533 23,046,107
KEREH Proft for the year - - 400283 4062263 511,421 4,573,684
Hp2EHE(5SR) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RERMEEZERE Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - - 815 815 (1,18) (367)
EERDAEEIERELL  Fairvalue changes i equity instruments desigated
PENAERENERTA as at fir value through other comprehensive
RAEER income - - 3245 3245 - 3245
EizE Exchange differences on consolidation - - 752306 752306 31,816 78410
Efp2AUEAT Total other comprehensive income - - 785577 785577 30,634 816,211
REERANGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 4847840 4847840 542,055 5,389,895
BRNIRR RS Transactions with owners of the Company:
REEA Contrbutions and distrbution
BREERRT 2B Equity settled share-based transactions - - 15,988 15,988 - 15,988
REEREEE T RA Shares issued under share option scheme 2 5,691 (133 4,389 - 4389
B ERIRE 201975 2019 final and specialfinal dividend approved
RENRBRE and paid - - (30%8)  (3330%) (3655060 (3,696.487)
Al 5,691 (3316,316) (3,310,604 (365,506) (3,676,110)
REERY Changes in ownershyp iterests
EERHBIHRONERE  Changein ownership interest in a subsidiary
FRERY without change n control - - (3086) 3086) (17423 (20,509)
ERLARRZRA4LE Total transactions with owners of the Company 21 5691 (3319400 (33136%) (82929 (36%619
R2020%125318 At 31 December 2020 235422 730,075 20,147,221 012,724 3,626,659 24,739,383
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RE R EREREE)IR | Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HZ=2021F12 A31 BILFE Year ended 31 December 2021

KaARRRR
Attributable to owners of the Company
BxRE
48 JURRER B&
Bika Ri&E Total Non- ERiE
Issued Share i cpitaland  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity

ABRTE  ARETZ  ARETT  ARRFL ARETZ AERTX
RUBY00  RMBYO)  RMBUO  RMBUMO  RMBDO) AWMU

R01E1A1H At 1 January 2021 35422 730,075 20,141,221 1,112,724 3,626,659 24,739,383
RERA Profifor the ear - -l 3804 1165 4383667
Hp2EHE(ER) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RERFEEZEREM233)  Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (ote 33) - - (4.260) (4,260) (139) (5,652)
EHEE Bichange differences on consolidation - - 7,991 7,991 20,968 292,959
Hp2ENEEE Total other comprehensive income - - 267,731 27,731 19,576 2871307
REERANEAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 4070213 4070213 600,761 4,670,974
BALIRREZRS Transactions with owners of the Company:
RELSE Contributions and distribution
ERkERDR 28 Equity settled share-based transactions - - 5,075 5,075 - 5,075
REBREEET 2R Shares issued under share option scheme (Note 27)
Wiz) m 56,890 (13,693) 43,408 - 43408
BHEREE2000K8R 2020 final and specialfina dividend approved and paid
BRREREHit12) (note 12) - = (4062263)  (4062263) (463903)  (4526,166)
BHERIEE 2021 BRI ERE 2021 special interim dividend approved and paid
Wz 12) (note 12) - - (2,500,000) (2,500,000 - (2,500,000)
m 56,890 (6,570,881) (6,513,780) (463,903) (6,977,683)
REERY Changes in ownershyp iterests
EEYHBIHEONELE  Change in ownership interest in a subsidiary
ERERH 1Y) without change in control Hote 19) - - (9,181) (9,181) (14,993) (24,178)
BANRRRZRAER Total transactions with owners of the Company m 56890 (65800620 (6,52961) (47889%)  (7,001,857)
R2021E128318 At 31 December 2021 235,633 786,965 17,631,378 18,659,976 3,748,524 22,408,500
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mEHERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
#HZ2021F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
et AR¥FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REES OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REXKFBES Cash generated from operations 37 7,386,100 10,429,950
EAFBEPEMSEE The People’s Republic of China
("PRC") enterprise income tax paid (1,751,040) (1,529,072)
2HA & Interest paid (216,981) (347,024)
RETBHIESRSFER Net cash from operating activities 5,418,079 8,553,854
REER INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2T B Interest received 783,501 667,617
BRI ET Increase in long-term time deposits 26 (3,666,900) (1,710,000)
B E &R RIIRF Dividend received from joint ventures 21 91,681 374,926
B U — e B o 7] B A Dividend received from an associate 20 20,015 62,279
BUUE A EEYIERREIE  Dividend received from financial assets
HRBRIEMNESEEEMRT  at fair value through profit or loss 2,522 135
PERAREETRR Proceeds from disposal of financial
friga= R IE R assets at fair value through
BRVEEZFTE profit or loss 22(a) 963,895 172,319
BARAABEIERR Purchase of financial assets at
FIEERRENESEMEE  fair value through profit or loss 22(a) (103,187) (528,916)
BAERLEE Purchase of intangible assets 17 (17,086) (1,118)
BAREEEHE Purchase of investment properties — (31,129)
BAME - SN Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,966,094) (2,147,170)
BAGFRAEEE Purchase of right-of-use assets 16 (14,482) (87,961)
HEYE  WBENREN  Proceeds from sale of property, plant
CRAREE NS and equipment and right-of-use assets 195,778 107,757
W B — IR B A 7 Net cash inflow on
Frigiem AT acquisition of a subsidiary 8,829 —
& B A RIFTE Net cash inflow on disposal
WEMAEEE of subsidiaries 41 250,989 176,812
EUWER 2 FEEH Net movement of loan receivables 25(a) 407,000 55,000
RETHFARSFE Net cash used in investing activities (4,043,539) (2,889,449)
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AR ER | Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZE 2021512 A31 HIESFE Year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
(k3 AREFT AREFTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MEED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BNARRKREZEE Dividends paid to owners of
the Company (6,562,263) (3,330,981)
BRLERE#EZ 2IE  Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests 37(a) (463,040) (399,145)
RIR IRt 2l Issue of shares under share
BT 2Rt option scheme 27 43,408 4,389
YTREEEE Payments of lease liabilities 37(a) (190,095) (180,341)
IR ITE I Proceeds from bank borrowings 37(a) 3,160,010 6,627,179
EERITRAMER Repayments of bank and
other borrowings 37(a) (4,150,754) (6,912,448)
HMGHEE 22 FE  Net movement of other short-
term borrowings 37(a) 1,251,107 (789,060)
BITEIIAZIE 2 F T8 Net proceeds from issuance of
unsecured notes 37(a) — 3,369,999
XAWEE D B R s Payment for acquisition of non-
controlling interests (24,174) (20,509)
AMEEE AR SFEE Net cash used in financing activities (6,935,801) (1,630,917)
REeRESZEYN Net (decrease) increase in cash and
FORD) &0 cash equivalents (5.561,261) 4,033,488
FRNZ2BERREEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 21,431,153 17,430,387
EX@gopeg Effect on exchange rate changes (10,654) (32,722)
FRZBESRRESEEY  Cash and cash equivalents at end
of year 26 15,859,238 21,431,153
BRER SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2021F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

EREZERERARIEAAR])
AREHEAMEIAERETAA
ERENREEBHARSHBRAR
ZERET - HFEZEMUAE
BET B BB 18P IRE 55612
5607 E RH B LM RTTERF R
16885 °

RRABAB—FRREZEBRRA - AR
AREMBAR(REAIASKHE])
TERELEERBEETBEAMRK
e HMfBARKEZ T BXHKH
REF A M IEHRRMEALT -

RiF M BRI TVIRBE L GFHED
REPM2EBMBRELER(E
AMBHREELN] KREBEE R
EHRAERENNEEMBRSE
Al- EB G ER(ET B £
AlDERE UAREFEEEEEMNZ
et R A R 2 RHE B 6958 A AR E Am
B NGgaWBRRABTTAEE
BHMARZMERABES EHR
AT EMRA) ZEREERTE

MESZBECHNEEREIN T
2 BRIESBRA -

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of its principal place of
business are Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong and No. 1688, Wuzhong Road,
Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant noodles and
beverages. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.
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BHIEERRMI5E | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2021F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2020 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year as detailed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors have carefully assessed the working capital and
financing requirements of the Group in the foreseeable future,
as the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB4,158,264,000 at the end of the reporting period.

Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group,
the directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources
to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

(a) Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except for
investment properties, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, equity instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.
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HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2021F12 A31 HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
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(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.
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LA BTIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2021F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

BEEE(E) (b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)
HHEZ Changes in ownership interests

B G HURE M B & B E S
ZAEERBEEES  RER
RHAR - BRR D HBIRE
w2 EEDRHBNRRER
MEARREES 2% - D
BEREDR AR EREH
FCBREIABEZER B
BNz BOBRRER
R HEHER - XHARNRRRK
Rk o

i 7N 65 B 2R B OB B A ) 2 4%
i HEBRRETIIMEA
ZEBEFE (BRREZA
REETAREEEZANE
ZRBHEMBLARZEE
(BHEEE) REERRERD
BRER ZFREE - WAE
FERLERBEERAR
FERREMEERERAAE
BB~ m R < & R R A% A8
FIEERER - AEGIRAES
B RAMERRREZE
4% & Je R U R A BB 8 &
AZEAEREEHARLSS
MEEXAE BE2orAg
i@ RERRAERSEM -

Changes in the Group'’s ownership interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
“transactions with non-controlling interests reserve” within
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted
for as a financial asset or liability, interest in associate,
interest in joint venture or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.
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(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business (including
the acquisition of joint control of a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes a business) is measured at the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGUs”). An impairment loss on goodwill is not
reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase.
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(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. All other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

— Instant noodles 10 to 12 years
— Beverages
— Others

Electrical appliances and equipment

10 to 12 years
5to 10 years
5 years

Miscellaneous equipment 3to 10 years
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(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year in which the item is derecognised.

When property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property, any difference at the date of change in
use between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for in the same way as a revaluation
in accordance with HKAS 16.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
and capitalised borrowing costs. No depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the costs
are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in 3(d)
above.
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)

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and building that are held
by owner or lessee, to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include properties held for a currently
undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of investment property is based on a valuation by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible asset
Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Concession
right has finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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(9)

(h)

Intangible asset (Continued)
Water resource license

The initial cost of acquiring water resource license is
capitalised. The water resource license has finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, which
is presented within these notes, an interest in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying
amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The Group reassesses whether
it has joint control of an arrangement and whether the type
of joint arrangement in which it is involved has changed, if
facts and circumstances change.

The Group's interest in associate or joint venture is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the investee.
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@

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Such trade receivables are initially measured at their
transaction price.



L e 0 o g

LA BTIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2021F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

EWMIAE)
EHEEE)
FER M AL L FER ()

MIAHERE  SRMEENEA
(VIREHEKAF 2 (DA
AEEYERTEMSEKZE
BRIBFTEMERS T AR5
FVOCIH]) : (iiNEERANEME
5B R TE H Ath 2 E U s BR R 18
i m T A #EEFVOC]) ;
F(VEAABEIEREE
mBREEIZ([FVPL]) »

VIIRHEREF NS REE D BR
RRAEEERSREENSE
BEANEREENANRS
MEBRFH - RIFAKENER
EEEHEN  TAEMEE
ENpERRTEERNE
ERBERT  MEXTFENSE
MEEGCXBRABERNE
BEFEEREMOE—REFHD

e

BMANEGANNITESRT
A(EXREE/BBWH MRS
ERFORBEA)L A ST
BEETDE - AR - TG

EERA AN DHE -

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Mandatory FVOCI”); (iii) equity instruments designated
as at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is assessed
for classification.
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() S£WMIAE) (j)  Financial instruments (Continued)
THEE(E) Financial assets (Continued)
1) ZEHEAAEGENEHE 1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

E

MESHEEMEAT A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it

MEKEBRXREE A meets both of the following conditions and is not

FVPL » Bl 3% 8 §8 Bk A 5t designated as at FVPL:

=

iy HEBEAREEAE () it is held within a business model whose
2 @& E D U B objective is to hold financial assets in order to
AR REEAR collect contractual cash flows; and
79 5 A

(i) EHEAEHNGEREETE (i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
HEEAE SR dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
E ZRAERNEE principal and interest on the principal amount
RAEERAREER outstanding.
BEFE

HBENATTENERHE Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently

EEZEBERAN KL measured using the effective interest method and

£ WAk e LI EE - are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising

BB -~ R TER S B from impairment, derecognition or through the

EEEMWSMEBLRE amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

REERIZEBEK A E The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include
NemEEBRBITES bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, long-
RIEE - MR TER term time deposits and trade and other receivables.
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i FE TSR

172 E@EERERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.




L e 0 o g

LA BTIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2021F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

ERMIAE) ()  Financial instruments (Continued)
THEEE) Financial assets (Continued)
2)  #HEIEFVOCI 2)  Mandatory FVOC/

0 B 2 LA W 1A g
BXRiEFE ABFVPL Bl&
& ERE S FVOCIET

= -

iy HBBEHNERHEREA
MEMERER
BEENBIRAHR
ERERKE M

(i) HAHKKRERETE
HHELABRESR
B -ZReREE

THFE

ZEMEEERRANE
B E - ERERNZX
STENE - RERmME
RESEERRER - 2
s EERN R EE
WEstER » BEER IR
AEMEE © KR ILFERZ
TREER  STAREM
RE SR N Rt
HERKEHDEERD
EREDAHE -

REE)Z A 58 6l 1% FVOoCl

A financial asset is measured at Mandatory FVOCI if
both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and for sale; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method, impairment gains or losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Other gains or losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the financial
asset is derecognised. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment.

The Group does not have financial assets at Mandatory
FVOCI.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

3)

Designated FVOC/

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
in other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is
transferred directly to retained profits.

The Group irrevocably designated certain investments
in unlisted equity securities as Designated FVOCI
because the Group intends to hold these equity
securities for long term for strategic purposes. The
details of the Group's financial assets at Designated
FVOCI have been set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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() SWMIAE) (j)  Financial instruments (Continued)
TEEE(E) Financial assets (Continued)
4) JEFVPLEIER G EE 4)  Financial assets at FVPL
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These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL, financial
assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are otherwise
required to be measured at FVPL. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised
in profit or loss, which does not include any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or
interest income is presented separately from fair value
gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i)  acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term;

(i)  part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial
recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.
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() S£WMIAE) (j)  Financial instruments (Continued)

TEEE(E) Financial assets (Continued)

4) JZFVPLEFE R % B & E 4)  Financial assets at FVPL (continued)
(%)
EEERIAEARTEE Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
B/ BEsmERkEs s as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
ERgEHN—BrEH reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
HEBAFERIR &8 that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
BEVGERRIETE AR liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on
FVPLET= © different bases.
AEBKIKZFVPLEFE W The Group's financial assets at FVPL include investment
TREE BREEREES funds and listed equity securities as further detailed in
K EmRAFES BEFEHR note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

RAMBmRME22 -

THERE Financial liabilities

AR M i 1 E TR Recognition and derecognition
CRMAEBNERSBZEER Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
RERAREEKAZTIEAY Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
G 2 ER— R ER - instruments and on a trade date basis.

ERNEHEAH LEYBEZERE A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
B WK EUE KB B H liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
B BIRIEBERZERAE - in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, interest-bearing borrowings and
other current liabilities. All financial liabilities, except for
financial liabilities at FVPL, are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held
for trading, financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL and financial liabilities that are
contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss excluding interest
expenses recognised in profit or loss, except for the portion
of fair value changes of financial liabilities designated at
FVPL that are attributable to the credit risk of the liabilities,
which is presented in other comprehensive income unless
such treatment would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. The amounts presented in other
comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred
to profit or loss. Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain
or loss is transferred directly to retained profits. Interest
expenses are presented separately from fair value gain or
loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i)  incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it
in the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking on initial recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract
or not a designated and effective hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition as at
FVPL only if:

(i)  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases;

(i) they are part of a group of financial liabilities or
financial assets and financial liabilities that are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or

(i) they contain one or more embedded derivatives,
in which case the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at FVPL, except where
the embedded derivatives do not significantly modify
the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivatives is prohibited.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host that
is not an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host, and the hybrid contract
is not measured at FVPL.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

(i)  past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(i) nature of collateral

(iv)  industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the
case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve (recycling).



L e 0 o g

LA BTIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2021F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SBMIAE) (j)  Financial instruments (Continued)

S HEERAEMBEL.ZHE Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

(%)

BANTES Definition of default

RNEBRABULNTERANLEZE The Group considers the following as constituting an event

REBEEBERNNENEH of default for internal credit risk management purposes

BRELEHRBER  MRFTEMU as historical experience indicates that the Group may not

TEAEZEENeRIEAE K& receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the

ek EE A RO KREEN financial instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

AFREEE -

(i) NEBESISRAEINERRRIE (i)  information developed internally or obtained from
BWEBBEREEATA external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
eI MHEERA 8 pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
BAER(TEBEAE taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
FBAEAERR) ok or

(il REHFTERMBEL - (i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty.

TE DM REBRRE - Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that

EemEEB BS990 K default has occurred when a financial asset is more than

BEEHABRRYE  BRIEAEER 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and

BAEHAZIFREBERE supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

BRENIZET BEE - default criterion is more appropriate.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

* actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

() it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iiiy  adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

As detailed in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements, amounts due from an associate, joint ventures,
related parties and certain other receivables are determined
to have low credit risk.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing
components or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset (Continued)

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past due
based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets.
The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking
into account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent
recovery made is recognised in profit or loss.
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Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition
Rental income

Rental income from commercial properties is recognised
when the properties are let out and on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms while rental income from car parks are
recognised on an accrual basis.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is
manufacture and sale of instant noodles, beverages, etc.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(@ a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern
of transfer to the customer.
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1FE BB & ERIZE 15 5 Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
HEFE KA (B) (Continued)

HRIELRT ()

WS A T ARG - Bl
BREPHNEMERBEEN R
ﬂ'JE'\] :

(@) PR AL B MM ok B
HMRBERENE @K
HE%“%%%Z%EHEEIJ)@

Bt M R+

&5 AN

XK 4
E\r

(b) AKEAFFAHEBEN
sk AR 7% A B A KR
H i A w0 B Bl (B #8
EE MR AHEES
HEBERNZATRBIH) o

Identification of performance obligations (Continued)

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if
both of the following criteria are met:

(@  the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or
service is capable of being distinct); and

(b)  the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the
contract).

W 2 T 57 2 P B Timing of revenue recognition
BN E B A B R dn E R 1 Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
(MEE)EZLAEFPRETE performance obligation by transferring a promised good or

MEBRERWRZD ZFPE
BREENZHIEE  EES
RERER -

7 £ [ 9 7 on ok AR 7 O 12 Il BE
RFEER - Eit - RE RN
TEfrz— - RIBERHEETE
AT FERULA

(a) B RE BN RN FER
= B B 1S 10FI36

service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time
and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

(@)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs,
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

() the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Sales of instant noodles, beverages, etc., are recognised at
a point in time at which the customer obtains the control of
the promised asset, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered to customers and the title is
passed.

Service income of logistic services is recognised over time
when services are rendered.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group’s performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of
the performance obligation. The principal input applied in
the output method for transportation services to external
customers is based on the distance already travelled to date.

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer), in determining the transaction
price, the Group adjusts the promised consideration for
the effects of the time value of money. The effect of the
significant financing component is recognised as an interest
income or interest expense separately from revenue from
contracts with customers in profit or loss.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Transaction price: significant financing components
(Continued)

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of the
goods or services to the amount paid in advance or arrears),
the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s borrowing
rates and other relevant creditworthiness information of the
customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for
the effect of the significant financing component if the
period of financing is one year or less.

Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable
amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to a customer. The variable
consideration is estimated by using either the expected-
value or the most-likely-amount method whichever is better
to predict the entitled amount. The estimated variable
consideration is then included in the transaction price only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised of
the contract will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Variable consideration: volume-based rebates

The Group gives rebates to selected customers. The Group
estimates the volume rebates using the expected-value
method and assesses whether the estimated variable
consideration is constrained with reference to the customer’s
historical rebates entitlement and accumulated purchases to
date. Any significant estimation variances will be analysed
and taken into consideration in the current estimation and
assessment. Typically, the estimated consideration is not
constrained.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or
the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service
to the customer, the contract is presented as advance
payments from customers when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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(m)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net advance payment from
customers is presented. Contract assets and advance
payments from customers of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.

It is common for the Group to receive from the customer
the whole or some of the contractual payments before the
goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition
for such transactions). The Group recognises an advance
payment from customer until it is recognised as revenue.
During that period, any significant financing components,
if applicable, will be included in the advance payments
from customers and will be expensed as accrued unless the
interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
("functional currency”). The Company's functional currency
is United States Dollar (“US$") and majority of its subsidiaries
have Renminbi ("RMB") as their functional currency. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.
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(m) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

(b)  Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at the weighted average exchange rates;

(©)  All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;

(d)  On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, a partial disposal involving the loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to the foreign operation
that is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.
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(m) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(e)  On the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is re-attributed to the
non-controlling interests in that foreign operation and
are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, interest in
an associate and interest in joint ventures may be impaired
or impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. a CGU).
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(o)

(p)

(q)

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as income
in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.
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(q) Government grants (Continued)

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts for each
lease component and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.
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HEE) (r) Leases (Continued)

ERETN (B) As lessee (Continued)

TE@EABIRD 2 NEBRE Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a

NRBHEE AP EESLHNRNE separate component are considered to be part of the total

SEBIE S 2 BB — B consideration that is allocated to the separately identified

7 e components of the contract.

REBNBEEFRG A EBAERE The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease

AREEREEARE - liability at the commencement date of the lease.

FREEEYSIEKANTE - The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which

N2k comprises

(@ HEBGBEZURFER (@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
5 liability:

(b) MFBAESRIEL 2 (b) any lease payments made at or before the
FAHENFORERBE R commencement date, less any lease incentives
HEES received;

() AEBBDELEZEMVIA () anyinitial direct costs incurred by the Group; and
BEERAN R

(d) AEE/FEHILBERIEE (d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
BE - BB EME S5 in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
HABEEEEHEIKR restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
RAGEFT R E 2 AR s the underlying asset to the condition required by the
Ed st A(GIES terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
ATy RELEFEME are incurred to produce inventories.

H) e
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0]

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by
the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option
— in which case depreciation is provided over the estimated
useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:

Properties 1 year to 30 years

Land use right in respect of Over the leasehold
leasehold land period

Machinery and other equipment 1 year to 5 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date:

(@) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;



(r)

L e 0 o g

LA BTIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2021F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEE) (r) Leases (Continued)

TERATN (42) As lessee (Continued)

() TEHAREEERRZEN (c) amounts expected to be payable under residual value
A guarantees;
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(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from
a change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating
interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using
a revised discount rate.
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Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of

the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced

to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement

of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining

amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(@)

the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate

lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(a)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate over the revised lease term.
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HEE) (r) Leases (Continued)

TERATN (42) As lessee (Continued)

(d) HRE)NHESE EE (d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
B3] REBEFS @R FE lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of

FA#E & e 1 (B A IR AR A
B2 B REAE LA
HEE 2 Bo KRR
HH R 2 (R U s SRR
BmRAER - BHER
BZEHAEARK-

the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the
lease in profit or loss.

(e) HMRPTEEMMBEEEE (e)  for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
AEBFBUEREEE
TELIEERE - KIEHESR
BzEHABAR -

for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making
a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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NEREZHEEIS

EI‘

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance
lease or an operating lease at the inception date of the
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease
contract as a lease separately from non-lease components
of the contract. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on a relative stand-alone
price basis.
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(s)

Leases (Continued)
As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment
requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as
a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.
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Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
ultimate cost of benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to determine the present value of those
benefits.

The calculation of the obligation is based on the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method annually. Service cost
and interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in profit or loss. Current services cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
liability resulting from employee service in the current period
or, where appropriate, the one used to remeasure the net
defined benefit liability upon plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement to the net defined benefit liability. The rate to
discount post-employment benefit obligation is the yield at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that
have the currency and terms consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the obligations.

Gain or loss on settlement is measured as the difference
between a) the present value of the defined benefit
obligation being settled and b) any payments made by the
Group in connection with the settlement. It is recognised
when the settlement occurs.
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Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are reflected in equity immediately. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as a staff cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined using the binomial model taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.
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Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions ("”vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.
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Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill, or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets and
liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from such
investment properties are measured based on the expected
manner as to how the property will be recovered.
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(u) Taxation (Continued)

(v)

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group:

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) Has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) Has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) Is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group and parent of the Group.
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(v) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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BEBAL(E) (v) Related parties (Continued)
(b) (#&) (b)  (Continued)

(viiy R @) FTE BRI A £ (vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
HERBBEEAZE influence over the entity or is a member of the
jjji}%m ERE (% key management personnel of the entity (or of a
L ORSYNSIDE - parent of the entity).

BIEEKE -

(vii) Z BB HEMB (viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which

SEZEMKER it is a part, provides key management personnel
—EAKED - 12 services to the Group or to the parent of the

HEAREEABR Group.

BT AEEXAE

El:0ESY/NC]

B AT {?ﬁtﬂa’jﬁﬁ}ﬁzé\ Close members of the family of a person are those family
xe?a MPEEEEETRLS members who may be expected to influence, or be
BF - JEHAMI AL 2 22 A T3k influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
XEANTHENREXNBILE and include:

7

(@) TmBATZFEEES (@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
A& HE

(b) ZHEATZRERBEY (b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
BEF: & and

(0 ZmBATHZBALZE () dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

BREEHENERSES - domestic partner.

EEBALTHEED  BERQ In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
AIBREZEBERNE KB A subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
" A8 R BEZEE AR subsidiaries of the joint venture.

N =EYNSIE

DEWE (w) Segment reporting

BB ZRETANBATEL Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
BRREEIREANAIRE 2 with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
FR—B e RRRIBENEE decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who
TR FFZ 2B o S RIBAOT are responsible for allocating resources and assessing

BEFEDWEL AT RERT
MTBLERERE -

performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make
strategic decisions.
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Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current

Rz #ET &

CHIENE b

WELER R -

year, which the Group has not early adopted.

BAYBREER R2021%6530A Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
F165R 25T BEHTREE Concessions beyond
ZHeEE 30 June 20211
BEeHEE| ERERSAZ Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before
F165R 25T Vit Intended Use 2!
EReHER| ETAHZELNY Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfilling a Contract !
312 B
EBB SRR T Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
F3 2B Framework 2!
EREBRERL  2018F2020F Annual Improvements to 2018-2020 Cycle @I
FENE A HKFRSs
BAgER BESEERES Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
F15h2B7] E Current or Non-current !
BEGIENE 15 BIRE I REY Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
2B Policies !
BELsHER Bt EE" Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
F85 2B Estimates !
BEeHEE| BE-TZEL Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
FENRET BERIBEEEY and Liabilities arising from a
EEHE Single Transaction !
BENBRESES REAHE HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts P/
£174
BEMBRE ENEREBAE Amendments to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17
BRIE TR BT HEEAZ 175K and HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Z95t-HEEHY Information !
BENBRESES REEBABENT] Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
Z10HREES: g EFE and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

EHSERFZMEL

Associate or Joint Venture ™

BEZ18TEL

m MR2021F4 18R 2 1&FA u Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
Z FEHEER 2021

@ R2022FE1 A1 B2 45% @ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
ZFEHRER 2022

B3l F2023F1 A1HskZ &FRAB Bl Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2 FEHEER 2023

4l A B EFTE “ The effective date to be determined

AREEFE N ARKHRE R
MR EERT B B ®RE
BT SHARE 2 MBEER
ELERERTE -

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs in future periods
will have any material impact on the Group's financial
information.
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
Of these, the changes in accounting policy relevant to the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16: Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting when a company replaces the old interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result of the
interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform™). The amendments
complement those issued in November 2019 and relate to:

e  changes to contractual cash flows —a company will not have
to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of financial
instruments for changes required by the Reform, but will
instead update the effective interest rate to reflect the
change to the alternative benchmark rate;

e hedge accounting — a company will not have to discontinue
its hedge accounting solely because it makes changes
required by the Reform, if the hedge meets other hedge
accounting criteria; and

e disclosures — a company will be required to disclose
information about new risks arising from the Reform and
how it manages the transition to alternative benchmark
rates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements
are made by the management in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. They affect the application
of the Group's accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are
assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.

(i) Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group’s certain investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on these
investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result,
the Group has not recognised deferred taxes on land
appreciation taxes in respect of changes in fair value of
these investment properties situated in the PRC but has
recognised deferred tax on income tax on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use.
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EReHRENEEYE(Z) (i) Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)
BELHIEE (5 (&) Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)
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Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as
those earnings are not expected to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities
are disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Lease terms of contracts with extension and/or termination
options — as lessor and lessee

Lease terms are determined as the non-cancellable period
of a lease, including periods covered by an option to extend
if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
option, and periods covered by an option to terminate if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise the termination
option.

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. In assessing whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, the Group
applies judgement and considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to extend
or terminate the leases. Any change in the judgement may
affect the measurement of the lease liabilities and the right-
of-use assets.

After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term upon the occurrence of a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the control
of the lessee and affects whether the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option or not to exercise a
termination option.
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(i)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Identification of leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease based on the requirements
of HKFRS 16 and all the relevant facts and circumstances.
In particular, the Group assesses whether the contract
involves the use of an identified asset by applying the
concept of substantive substitution right. Also, the Group
assesses whether the Group or the customer has the right
to direct the use of the identified asset with reference to
determination of which party has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what
purpose the asset is used. In cases where such decisions
are predetermined, the right to operate the asset or the
incorporation of such decisions by means of designing the
asset are considered.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty
which is based on the Group'’s historical information, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of trade receivables. Details of
the key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
directors have to assess whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be determined
by reference to value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. Value in use is determined using the discounted
cash flow method. Owing to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the future cash
flows and fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset may be different from
its actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could be
affected by accuracy of the estimations.
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(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

As described in notes 14 and 44 to the consolidated
financial statements, the valuation techniques applied by
various external parties for the level 3 assets or liabilities have
been agreed with the management of the Company. The
management determined whether valuation techniques and
assumptions applied are appropriate to the circumstances
of the Group. The estimation of fair value of level 3 assets
included some assumptions not supported by observable
market prices or rates. Change in assumption could affect
the reported fair value of the assets and liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the CGU to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected cash flows from the CGU and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Details of the estimates
used to calculate the recoverable amount are given in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to
discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit in
the leases are not readily determinable. In determining the
discounts rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that
is readily observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.
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The Company’s executive directors have been identified as
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the Company's executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's business components
and review of these components’ performance. The Company’s
executive directors consider the business principally from a product
perspective which forms a basis for business segment information
as over 99% of the Group’s revenue and business are conducted
in the PRC from a geographical perspective. Business reportable
operating segments identified are instant noodles, beverages and
others. The segment of others includes instant food, investment
holding, properties investment for rental purpose and supportive
functions.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
executive directors assess the performance of reportable segments
based on profit for the year and profit before taxation, share of
results of an associate and joint ventures and unallocated income
(expenses), net.

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interest
in an associate and joint ventures and unallocated assets which
include certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated FVOCI.
Segment liabilities include all liabilities with the exception of
employee benefit obligations.

Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies as described in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The geographical location of the Group’s customers is based on
the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the
revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable to
customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group’s
operating entities. Meanwhile, all of the Group’s non-current
assets, other than certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated
FVOCI, are located in the PRC. No revenue from a single external
customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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DEp L Segment results:
2021
PO 8
HEE Inter-
Instant #m Hftt  segment @5t
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total

ARBTT ARETZ AREFTT ARETFTZT ARETZ
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

¢ Revenue
REFAENEE 2 WE Revenue from contracts

with customers 28,432,040 44,799,982 766,136 — 73,998,158
W52 R Timing of

revenue recognition:
X825 Recognised at a point in time | 28,432,040 44,799,982 766,136 — 73,998,158
REMREEZ WA Revenue from other sources:
REREMEMEZHLWA  Rental income from

investment properties — — 84,134 — 84,134
ARz dhas Inter-segment revenue 15,606 1,954 932,003 (949,563) —
aReil G Segment revenue 28,447,646 44,801,936 1,782,273 (949,563) 74,082,292

PHEZ(CMRABEER)  Segment results after

finance costs 2,626,994 3,052,225 35,276 (5,847) 5,708,648
EMEE DR RAZARIES  Share of results of an associate

and joint ventures 428 132,974 (11,578) — 121,824
AR ZFTH Unallocated expenses, net — — (21,829) — (21,829)
BRBEATRF (B8) Profit (loss) before taxation | 2,627,422 3,185,199 1,869 (5,847) 5,808,643
HIE Taxation (623,087) (766,547) (35,342) —  (1,424,976)
FEEZEMN(ER) Profit (loss) for the year 2,004,335 2,418,652 (33,473) (5847) 4,383,667
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Segment results: (Continued)

EHZE2021F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021
A0 8
FEME Inter-
Instant #m Hftt  segment @5t
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total
ANRETFT ANREFH ARETT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000
BE Assets
DEEE Segment assets 19,917,991 35,239,108 5,020,610  (1,278,657) 58,899,052
BENFER Interest in an associate — 94,847 — — 94,847
AENEER Interest in joint ventures 803 619,571 4,789 — 625,163
APREE Unallocated assets 690,161
HEE Total assets 60,309,223
8% Liabilities
NEBER Segment liabilities 9,018,715 20,305,649 9,531,235  (1,034,796) 37,820,803
Aol EE Unallocated liabilities 79,920
BEE Total liabilities 37,900,723
Hirg g Other information
HEREH Depreciation and amortisation 831,358 2,230,326 193,056 (113,064) 3,141,676
BEARFY Capital expenditures 521,388 2,448,225 28,049 — 2,997,662
FIEUWA Interest income 393,426 426,996 16,820 (53,741) 783,501
FEx Interest expenses 20,106 89,962 177,187 (63,761) 223,494
HEMB A Ae Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 160,104 48,646 — — 208,750
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PEBEE (&) Segment results: (Continued)
2020
QR
FEM Inter- Bt
Instant R Hith segment
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total

ARETFL ARKTT ARETT ARBTT AREFIL
RMB0OO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000

W Revenue
REFAENEE 2 WE Revenue from contracts

with customers 29,501,133 37,265,751 769,429 — 67,536,313
WERT 2K Timing of

revenue recognition:
X2 Recognised at a point in time 29,501,133 37,265,751 710,983 — 67,477,867
BERS R 51 Recognised over time — 58,446 — 58,446

29,501,133 37,265,751 769,429 — 67,536,313

REMTBREEZ WA Revenue from other sources:
REREMEEMEZHEEWA  Rental income from

investment properties — 81,522 — 81,522
SEE Lz das Inter-segment revenue 8,777 14172 1,207,928  (1,230,877) —
okl Segment revenue 29,509,910 37,279,923 2,058,879  (1,230,877) 67,617,835
PHEE(CMRUBER)  Segment results after

finance costs 3,980,673 2,654,056 (184,740) (6,970) 6,443,019
eI NEI MBS RNAIELE  Share of results of an associate

and joint ventures (507) 141,383 (10,440) — 130,436
AR ZFZH Unallocated expenses, net — — (41,543) — (41,543)
BRELAISRR (F5E) Profit (loss) before taxation 3,980,166 2,795,439 (236,723) (6,970) 6,531,912
HE Taxation (1,246,935) (689,976) (21,317) —  (1,958,228)
REE BRI (FE) Profit (loss) for the year 2,733,231 2,105,463 (258,040) (6,970) 4,573,684
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Segment results: (Continued)

2020
P g
F B Inter- st
Instant R Hith segment
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total
ANREFT ANRMFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BE Assets
NHEE Segment assets 25,182,638 31,152,963 5,007,269  (2,003,228) 59,339,642
BeNFER Interest in an associate — 94,802 — — 94,802
AENEER Interest in joint ventures 375 598,337 28,319 — 627,031
*PEEE Unallocated assets 1,469,923
BEE Total assets 61,531,398
a8 Liabilities
NEEE Segment liabilities 9,073,005 16,942,691 12,413,035  (1,758,882) 36,669,849
xHEEE Unallocated liabilities 122,166
BEE Total liabilities 36,792,015
Hirg g Other information
TEREH Depreciation and amortisation 814,164 2,201,882 222,308 (90,322) 3,148,032
BARZ Capital expenditures 502,934 1,725,297 38,029 — 2,266,260
FIEMWA Interest income 433,587 284,319 17,015 (67,304) 667,617
e Interest expenses 20,189 93,293 305,924 (70,767) 348,639
WE - EEREEZREEE  Impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment 16,514 49,677 — — 66,191
HEHBA AUz Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — 117,941 128 — 118,069
2021 2020
AR¥ T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWA Interest income 783,501 667,617
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2021 2020
ftaz AR¥FT ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WA (ZH) : Income (Expenses):
& BE on 2 W Gain on sales of scrapped materials 207,189 171,762
WFVPLREM S REEZ  Change in fair value of
NAEBEEEFRE financial assets at FVPL, net (21,239) (40,905)
HLFVPLEEEMSMA[Z Y  Change in fair value of
N BEZE)FE financial liabilities at FVPL, net 31 — (285)
RFVPLIEEMSEEEZ  Dividend income from
U A financial assets at FVPL 2,522 135
o B B A R aR Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 41 208,750 118,069
BRI # Bh Government grants 356,718 160,431
HEME - WEREMER  Loss on disposal of property,
CREEEZEE plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (29,527) (77,332)
b H a2 F 58 Exchange gain, net 36,031 29,159
Hity Others 263,751 206,860
1,024,195 567,894
LM (GEA) THIERE - This is stated after charging (crediting):
2021 2020
AR¥FT AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B%E A Finance costs
AR S FNABHEE ZEIT  Interest on bank and other borrowings
MEMERZFESH wholly repayable within five years 204,049 315,096
ERSFNAERBBEELZ Interest on bank and other borrowings
RITREMERZ wholly repayable over five years
FEXZH 2,867 15,144
HEBBEEEZHMKER Finance costs on lease liabilities 16,578 18,399
223,494 348,639
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2021 2020
AR TFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

Hig B Other items

ETMA(BIFEEEMSE) ©  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):

e KR Salaries and wages 7,306,001 7,011,729
NESEE RN Equity-settled share-based
T2 B payment expenses 5,075 15,988

RIRSEA Pension costs:

REH A S+ Defined contribution plans* 683,997 240,160
RERNETE Defined benefit plans (501) (3,690)

ZEE £ Auditor's remuneration:

EZEH Audit fee 8,172 9,719
FEZEM Non-audit fee 776 477

BEGFEKA! Cost of inventories* 51,571,867 45,185,680

e - Depreciation:

WE - W B Property, plant and equipment 2,827,355 2,835,810

FHEEE Right-of-use assets 306,808 305,819
B E ER Amortisation of intangible assets

(BEBERDHEAA) (included in distribution costs) 7,513 6,403
ME - BENREEZRME  Impairment loss of property, plant and

EiE (BB ERNEAMm equipment (included in other

KEBR) operating expenses) — 66,191

* R2020%F » REE AR LS RE * In 2020, the Group received government subsidy related to
IR RS EE S 2 BT COVID-19 in the form of a reduction in social security contribution,
B ZEEL R SR AHE which was recognised as reduction to the related expenses when it
RS ZF R o was granted.

# BEEFER AR EIEEE THA - # Cost of inventories includes RMB4,724,716,000 (2020:
- BBRERE TREBEEE RMB4,748,077,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation of property,
JIHENEREEEBEARE plant and equipment and right-of-use assets and amortisation on
4,724,716,0000T (20204 : AR intangible assets which amount is also included in the respective
#£4,748,077,0007T) - ZE S EIN total amounts disclosed separately above.

FEAA BB HER 2 B Rl R -
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AANRAEERITREZR YN R The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to the
JEf 2 Bl @ zEm T Company's directors and chief executive officer are as follows:
2021
Bie
IRREEN
Bié
AR 13 REE
A ZffZ  Retirement
HftEe FE  paymentsand
ESHe Salaries i Share-  contribution
Directors' and other  Discretionary based  to pension fit
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total

ABRTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETZ
RMB000  RMBU0O  RMBU0O  RMBU00  RMBU00  RMBOOO

HTEE Executive directors:
iy Wei Hong-Ming 644 5,303 2,080 731 - 8,758
HEL—E Junichiro Ida 515 103 - - - 618
REX Wei Hong-Chen EYY) 5113 2,004 731 - 8,170
e Koji Shinohara 3 103 - - - 425
BREE Yuko Takahashi E7) 103 - - - 425
2 Tseng Chien 3 598 124 - - 1,044
BUHHTEE: Indeeoendent non-executive directors:
el Hsu Shin-Chun 355 103 - - - 458
*RR Lee Tiong-Hock 355 103 - - - 458
REE Hiromu Fukada 355 103 - - - 458
TR Chief executive officer;
iR Chen Yinjang - 4,000 1317 449 — 5,766
3512 15,632 5,525 1911 - 26,580
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2020

BHe

XARELH

Riresal

3

B2k PRBZA  Retirement

HE#e ZFB  payments and

ESHE  Salariesand el Share-  contribution
Directors' other  Discretionary hased to pension ait
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total

NEETT  ARRTT ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR
RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOD  RMBUOO  RMBOOD  AMBUOO

HIEE: Executive directors:
BE% Wei Hong-Ming 689 5,365 1829 1,184 - 9,067
HEE- Junichiro Ida 552 165 - - - ni
REK Wei Hong-Chen 1,034 5,175 1,587 1,184 - 8,980
BRER Koji Shinohara 345 165 - - - 510
EEEE Yuko Takahashi 345 165 - - - 510
g Tseng Chien 345 653 - - - 998
BUFHTEE Indlevendent non-executive directors:
EH Hsu Shin-Chun 345 8 - - - 428
£33 Lee Tiong-Hock 345 83 - - - 428
RAZ Hiromu Fukada 345 8 — — — 428
TR Chief executive officer;
R James Chun-Hsien Wei - 18211 3,198 6,129 - 27538
4,345 30,148 6,614 8497 - 49,604

BEEEREN2020F612 8318
R BREEE S AT2021%F1 818
EZTAITHREH -

R2021F K 202012 A31HIEF
Bl EEERSMNERHATRES
B4 o

AEELBERDAEZRSUREH
ALTMAXEEMNHEREES
MAAEBEN ELHERBESK
ERLIFHERE -

Mr. James Chun-Hisen Wei retired on 31 December 2020 and Mr.
Chen Yinjang was appointed as the chief executive officer on 1
January 2021.

No directors and five highest paid individuals have waived
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 Decemebr 2021 and
2020.

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directorsand
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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NEFBSHNESHATEIE2MES The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
(2020F : 2N EBE MITHAER ) - the Group for the year, two directors (2020: two directors and
EMESFBEIHN X E%30 the chief executive officer) whose emoluments are reflected in
(2020 : 2fU) AT ZEN G B W@ the analysis presented above. Details of the emoluments of the
T remaining three individuals (2020: two) are as follows:
2021 2020
AR¥ T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e hHMME Salaries and other emoluments 14,011 10,118
VAR5 32 1+ 2 5/0E Share-based payments 208 1,395
BRASZNREES Retirement payments and contribution
IRIRSET B to pension scheme 7,470 —
TE4T Discretionary bonuses 7,605 5,662
29,294 17,175
SAF36L(2020%F 2 ) &REmBHAL The emoluments were paid to the three (2020: two) highest paid
ZBeERInT individuals as follows:
EEAE
Number of
individuals
< 48 5 Emoluments band 2021

ANE# 8,288,333 TE AKY 8,702,749 7T RMBS,288,333 to RMB8,702,749

(10,000,001 B CE 10,500,000 78 7T) (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000) 1
AR#9.117,166 TE AR 9,531,582 7T RMB9,117,166 to RMB9,531,582
(11,000,001 7C2 11,500,000 7 7T) (HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000) 1
AR# 11,603,666 TE RMB11,603,666 to RMB12,018,081
AR#12,018,081 7T (HK$14,000,001 to HK$14,500,000)
(14,000,001 72 14,500,000 7 7T) 1
3
2020
AR# 7,104,928 TE AR 7,548,985 7T RMB7,104,928 to RMB7,548,985
(8,000,001 77T % 8,500,00078 7T ) (HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000) 1
AR#9,769,275 L E RMB9,769,275 to RMB10,213,332
AR#¥10,213,332 7T (HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000)
(11,000,001 & c = 11,500,000 78 7T) 1
2
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2021 2020
AR FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEHIE Current tax
PE R EMEH PRC Enterprise income tax
REZ Current year 1,294,663 1,460,775
VAR DR BHE Under provision in prior years 10,518 26,443
1,305,181 1,487,218
ERNER Hong Kong profits tax
REE Current year 2,293 206
B IE (A7 34) Deferred taxation (Note 34)
EEREDZEREREFEE  Origination and reversal of
temporary differences, net (116,825) (19,387)
BAEERPBEZHEARE  Effect of withholding tax on the net
EH#&;:EE?NJ;F%J%@%EZ distributable earnings of the Group's PRC
BiRH subsidiaries 234,327 490,191
117,502 470,804
REEHIAE Total tax charge for the year 1,424,976 1,958,228

RERESTTHARARAEKELZ
WA BUAE IR IR -

720214 K 2020612 A31 HIEF
B BEENERRBZRBRAMSESH
FIEMFER - EMAFEHH X
BIET AERDENE2008H
TERE SR8 25% M FE RFE - M
200EB B LA EMFE 1% 16.5%
R SRR o

MK BE 2 MY B A A AB R Ay AR B 1
EMEBEER X B25% (2020
F:25%) RIBFBE - KRB
BRBRERERMHUEZE S
AEMACEREERDPAAELE
Fr8 B SR B9 22 45 )(BF §6[2020]23
SR+ iz pA AR B K B R SR kb R ([ 7 2B
HE )R BIREEVBEEMNINGIE
B HEpBEETEWAML
PEHBWARG60% (20205 : 70%)
LA ERy - 72202141 81 HZ2030
F12A3TE BT EERIZI5%
HEBMEHRRPEMSER -
I AEBEPT IR 2 M E R R
THE A 15% (20204 : 15%) ©

The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company
and the Group.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits
tax regime. Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.

The statutory PRC Enterprise income tax for the PRC subsidiaries
is 25% (2020: 25%). According to the Tax Relief Notice (Cai
Shui [2020] no. 23) on the Grand Development of Western
Region jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State
Taxation Administration and National Development and Reform
Commission, foreign investment enterprises located in the
Western Region of the PRC (the “Western Region”) with over
60% (2020: 70%) of principal revenue generated from the
encouraged business activities are continuously entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2030. Accordingly, certain subsidiaries located in the
Western Region are entitled to an income tax rate of 15% (2020:
15%).
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NEE 7 BT A GHEAEERIB The Group's profit before taxation is reconciled to the tax expense
HERWAT - for the year as follows:
BB X 2 B IR Reconciliation of tax expense
2021 2020
ARYTFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BR A B A Profit before taxation 5,808,643 6,531,912
BRABUEERE 25% 2 Income tax at statutory tax rate of 25%
WIB(20204F < 25%) in the PRC (2020:25%) 1,452,161 1,632,978
JEMREE R AEARIELE  Share of results of an associate and
joint ventures (30,456) (32,609)
L Non-deductible expenses 14,492 74,467
s S ON Tax exempt revenue (58,905) (6,062)
RIERMIEEE Unrecognised tax losses 73,407 62,542
AERGRER Unrecognised temporary differences (5,835) (16,558)
BRI W ARFERFIIARE  Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses (81,983) (142,097)
BRAREENFE S Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
RAAHSEFEZ profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
TARBL (A et 34) (Note 34) 234,327 490,191
WEBAm zHkEER" Effect of tax incentives on subsidiaries” (180,198) (126,662)
LART B IR BB Under provision in prior years 10,518 26,443
Hith Others (2,552) (4,405)
REEMIAREZ Tax expense for the year 1,424,976 1,958,228
N WEBARZHRWERBSFER TR A Effect of tax incentives on subsidiaries includes the tax relief on
= /) A B B B A R 2 B U &~ T PRC subsidiaries in western region, additional deduction for certain
BINEHOR - kB ESE - 2 expenses and other tax relief, the comparative figures presented
Pz L REHEE E - have been restated.
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RABRERRAFERESEZK
g8

EHZE2021F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

(@) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to

the year:
2021 2020
ARMTFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RENEERIRER B Special interim dividend approved and
QL QA S 33 [
?i&iﬂgzzgﬂ%ﬂ) paid during the year of US6.88 cents
' o (2020: Nil) per ordinary share 2,500,000 —
REBRBRZARYBE  Final dividend proposed after the end
QL St 33 QL
Jé’;gﬁ;@ﬂxi;?f%mﬂi of the reporting period of US5.30 cents
C BRE RN , -
5.54 (1) (2020: US5.54 cents) per ordinary share 1,901,241 2,031,132
EH B REUR 255 RIK S Special final dividend proposed after
a8 QA =Y 33 [
H%XEE)XZS;@HXEH%? the end of the reporting period of
: X .
3R 5.54 Z4L) USS.SOIcents (2020: US5.54 cents)
per ordinary share 1,901,241 2,031,131
6,302,482 4,062,263

M2022F3 A28 M & &
EEEARBRERIRAREE
f%E@AE 5.30 EL KRB
T E AL 5303l o thEH
5 RI R HA IR B R R HA AR B A AR
A ISR KR TIR B RN R

B o
T

At meeting held on 28 March 2022, the directors
recommended the payment of a special final dividend
and a final dividend of US5.30 cents and US5.30 cents
per ordinary share respectively. The proposed special final
dividend and final dividend have not been recognised as
dividends payables in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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(b) MAFARERIREZEN L (b) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
—BHRFEEFARRQBIRE 2 E to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the
BHRE. - year:

2021 2020
ARMTF T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

A R L ROk 25 B Final dividend in respect of the previous
PRI ERBME  financial year, approved and paid
AERRE@EAE5.54F M\ during the year, of US5.54 cents
(2020 7F : FRZER (2020: US4.24 cents) per ordinary share
4.24 2 Hl)) 2,031,132 1,665,491

RAFRAENIKEE  Special final dividend in respect of the
RAIFEFERRIFRE  previous financial year, approved and
I B AT ERAL5.54  paid during the year, of US5.54 cents
E\L (2020 % - (2020:U54.24 cents) per ordinary share
4.24 ZHlf) 2,031,131 1,665,490

4,062,263 3,330,981
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AT BE IR EA G F M E 8 s The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are as
Mz&E - follows:

(@) BREFEF

(a) Basic earnings per share

2021 2020
RABIREFAENG Profit attributable to ordinary
wmH(AREFIT) equity shareholders (RMB’000) 3,802,482 4,062,263
BEITEBR 2 Nk Weighted average number of
TR E(TR) ordinary shares ('000) 5,627,083 5,624,061
BREAEF (AR D) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 67.57 72.23
(b) BREFER (b) Diluted earnings per share
2021 2020
ANBRRFAREMEEF  Profit attributable to ordinary
(ANREFT) equity shareholders (RMB'000) 3,802,482 4,062,263
EBRIEFE(#E)  Weighted average number of
(FAE) ordinary shares (diluted) (‘000)
E#EITE BRI Weighted average number of
FHRE ordinary shares 5,627,083 5,624,061
RNREIRERT B2 Z  Effect of the Company's share
option scheme 5,251 6,187
BRETESREEEF 2 Weighted average number of ordinary
TR N T8 shares for the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share 5,632,334 5,630,248
FREEZMN(ARESD)  Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 67.51 72.15
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2021 2020
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREE At fair value
REH] At beginning of the year 1,771,700 1,771,500
NABEZEE Change in fair value 35,400 200
REER At the end of the reporting period 1,807,100 1,771,700

(@) AKEEZREUEHE B1E
HMAYMERFEESUREER
T {E R AR E ST
BI7TIE = P #% 1678 5% & 1686
55 DA R AP B K03 T AR BT B
B EH AN KR AR
mA -

AEENEEHELHEEST
REUEEME  FHEHR/I
E3F UBEENEHERR
VARG TR TR 2 B A4 o

XE2EHEZHEWAFS
A M B BmRM () -

HEARNEEHENREHEE
mEZREEE  BEAKE
—REFTUHEERE - Fik
Tei#R  BEREANRE
SEmEEE - HARREZ
BN EE 2 A REE
o
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(a

The Group's investment properties, which consist of
commercial properties and car parks together with their
respective land use rights, are situated at No. 1678 and No.
1686 Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC
and southwest corner of the intersection of Fada Street and
Xincheng West Road, Economic-Technological Development
Area, Tianjin, the PRC.

The Group leases out certain of its investment properties in
Shanghai under operating leases with average lease terms
of 1-3 years and with options to renew upon expiry at new
terms.

Accounting policy of the rental income from operating
leases are set out in note 3(l) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual
value at the end of the current leases, the Group typically
enters into new operating leases and therefore will not
immediately realise the reduction in residual value at the end
of these leases. Expectations about the future residual values
are reflected in the fair value of the properties.



(a)

(b)

(&

AT RBKRREREEEE
HMEZARFRBENKZENH
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(@) (Continued)

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments
to be received from the leasing of investment properties.

Ao :
2021 2020
AR¥FT ARBTF T
MW12H831H At 31 December RMB’000 RMB'000
19FR Within one year 47,981 28,316
E2F In the second year 38,653 8,906
FEIF In the third year 20,942 4,005
FAFE In the fourth year — 2,166
107,576 43,393

ARBEFENFERE

AEREUEEMENAAEE
B NEBERBRETIERBEL
BEXAEROMGEEMETR
B BEEERBYEXSER
ML ERZ&1E - BIEE
B i (B B T DA R AR B AR BY /Y 81
BB A o HENRESERE
B RfAET  BEMEMR
BRAIEHEMNTmSES 2
ZAHEEMENNEE AR
MBI MR EMBEBBR
FHERTS - BERAAMERL
R TESELERMLZLER
MBLUMEBEAEHKRE
K BRI ERD AT AR AE
HEDEBERNFEEREZAERE
‘R - EEEME

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

BE current use.

B MENRSREERER

HER A -

AEBzREEFEHER
EBEAEIHEEQAABENS
3R RAFEARBIAHR
BEEHR3HARH 3B -

AV

In estimating the fair values of investment properties, it is
the Group's policy to engage an independent professional
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The management
works closely with the independent professional qualified
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation technique
and inputs to the model. The valuations have been arrived
at using income capitalisation approach. In the valuation,
the market rentals of all lettable units of the commercial
properties are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved
in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
adopted is made by reference to the yield rates observed by
the valuer for similar properties in the locality and adjusted
based on the valuer’'s knowledge of the factors specific to
the respective properties. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their

The fair value measurements for the Group's investment
properties are categorised into Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used.
There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.
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(b) AABHENENIGREE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)

BHEKREHEERBE N The following table gives information on significant
BEGAEENT : unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment
properties:

2021 2021
AAERS A A
HARBENBER
REMEWE HEEMTREEHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques ~ EAFABABHNEA unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value

fRLERRE  WERERNME
7 A D S A Income capitalisation

EH5 approach

Commercial .

properties and EEBA

car parks in The key inputs are:

Shanghaiand  MEHEHE ZRHMGUAARL  BAYE FAHABANDEEES

Fianjin REESRERNAEHEER LI RSRAMEMEYD
LOH AAVEREESOE AREBETK R2FA-
W EEXE LB DR AR5.00% K
4.50% » ERZR D AHI/5.00% =
6.00% %23.00% ©

Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account  An increase in the reversion

the capitalisation of the rental yield used would result in a
derived from the existing tenancies  decrease in the fair value of
with due allowance for reversionary  the investment properties, and
rental potential of the commercial vice versa.

properties and car parks of 5.00%

and 4.50% respectively in Shanghai

and 5.00% to 6.00% and 3.00% in

Tianjin respectively.
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(b) DABEFEMFERREGE)

REMEE
Investment
properties

HERMTREZERA
Valuation techniques
and key input(s)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

EATAEUGHNEA

Significant unobservable input(s)

FAABASENEA
BARBEENBE
Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

miEEEE

Daily market rent

BAEYE
ZERINMHE B RHREEDE
EMERGZHEANENREZ - 115
mEkFE - FERXEEAVES
AmSHe T RRAHEEETE
FHADRREBARET20TEA
R#E1M40TRARK3.06TEA
R¥4.907T -

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the commercial properties,
ranging from RMB7.20 to RMB11.40
per square meter per day on lettable
area basis in Shanghai and from
RMB3.06 to RMB4.90 per square
meter per day on lettable areas basis
in Tianjin.

FES

ZRIERE  ELERYEEY
ERFzRMERNEE  mhmk
F& . FERREFHEEELNE
AmsHED R ARK27.29T
RARE16.177C

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties of RMB27.29 per
unit for car park spaces in Shanghai
and RMB16.17 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.

FIRANEEmEEEER L
o gcREUEHEND
REEL RZTA -

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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(b) DABEFEMFEREE)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

2020 2020

FABAGHMEA

HRABENBER
REMEWE HEEMTREEHA BEATABASHNEA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value
R EERRE WRERLE
B E R YEM Income capitalisation
FEE approach
Commercial o
properties and TR
car parks in The key inputs are:
Shanghaiand  THANEEE ERUBSUNERL  BRNERBE HANRBENEREEE L
Taniin SRARNABMELHLER BAY RLRANEMENLAEET

236 EEMEZERERAF
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Daily market rent
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FREESNHEUEXELEAAIAR
5.00% % 4.50% * & XA Al &5.00%
£6.00% £23.00% °

Reversion yield, taking into account
the capitalisation of the rental
derived from the existing tenancies
with due allowance for reversionary
rental potential of the commercial
properties and car parks of 5.00%
and 4.50% respectively in Shanghai
and 5.00% to 6.00% and 3.00% in
Tianjin respectively.

BAYE

ZRIGHE HHERERAADEENE
A ZENERNRE  WARMRFE - b
BRREBRANEGATSHS]ARA
HHERET TR AD R ABARKT.10
TEAREN20TRARE300TEA
R¥4.857 °

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the commercial properties,
ranging from RMB7.10 to RMB11.20
per square meter per day on lettable
area basis in Shanghai and from
RMB3.00 to RMB4.85 per square
meter per day on lettable areas basis
in Tianjin.

B RZIA o

An increase in the reversion
yield used would result in a
decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties, and
vice versa.

FRNEETSHESERLT &
SRENBHENDABELT
RZ IR

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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(b) RARABEFENTERR(E) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
FAEREHNEA
HRABENBR
REMFEIHE RERTREEEA BERTABAEH NG A Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value
FE5
ZRIGHE HHERERNEENERS
ZENENRE  mAmEFPE - DER
REBEFENNGETZREIHRA
RE27.09T R AR 16.007C °
Car parks
Daily market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties of RMB27.09 per
unit for car park spaces in Shanghai
and RMB16.00 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.
EEYE
XA BERRE  Electrical
2ELH Machinery ~ appliances BERE  HRIR
Freehold BT and and Miscellaneous Construction fazt
land  Buildings equipment equipment equipment in progress Total
ABRTE  AREFL  ARBTT  ARETZ  AREFL  AREFT  ARKTZ
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000
(fiita) (fiith)
(Note a) (Note b)
FEENR-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount -
2020E12831H year ended 31 December 2020
LLEE
REA At beginning of the year 12131 7945400 13217543 41508 1,202,198 486,109 23013991
hE Additions - 11,112 164,568 9921 613,632 1347937 2,147,170
RESEWHE) Impairment loss (Vote ¢/ - - (66,191) - - - (66,191)
EREER Transfer upon completion - 163236 1,027,940 4020 174434 (1,369,630) -
iif= Disposals - (24,562) (80,404) (2,548) (71,620) - (179,134)
HE-HERBAT  Disposals- disposal of subsidiaries - (43,578) (18,537) (11.477) (68,756) - (14234)
it Depreciation — (498,043)  (1,787,674) (11,803) (538,290) - (2835810)
ERER Exchange differences (2,028) (1,005) (53) 21 - — (3,107)
REER At end of the reporting period 9203 7552562 12457,192 29600 1,311,598 464416 21934571
E@EER 237
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EEYE
KA BEREE  Electrical
HELH Machinery ~ appliances BERE  HEIR
Freehold £ and and Miscellaneous Construction @t
land  Buildings equipment equipment equipment in progress Total
ABBTR AREFT  ARETR  AREFT  ARETT  ARETR  AREFR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(fiita) (fiith)
(Note a) (Note b)
FEENR-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount -
2021E12831H year ended 31 December 2021
LEE
RET At beginning of the year 119203 7552562 12,457,192 29600 1,311,598 464,416 21,934,571
hE Additions - 39,145 215,207 6,648 1023563 1,681,531 2,966,094
RE-WE-EHELT  Additions - acquisition of a subsidiary - 57,148 20,775 3 31N 13 81,830
R EER Transfer upon completion — 84183 1128171 3,083 236300 (1,652,137) -
HeE Disposals - (54,837) (94,175) (1473) (56,034) - (206,519)
HE-HEMBAT  Disposals- disposal of subsidiaries
(Hiza1) (Note 41) - (160,948) (248,543) (197) (18,365) (11,532) (439,585)
it Depreciation —  (498373)  (1793,141) (9.9%)  (525,845) - (28213%)
EREE Exchange differences 715 358 )] (14) ) (19 992
REER At end of the reporting period 119918 7219198 11,685,439 28074 1,975,027 4823712 21,510,028
R2021E1A18 At 1 January 2021
RE Cost 119,203 12,381,380 32,537,228 169,961 5,021,638 464,416 50,693,826
ZEMTEMAESE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (4,828818) (20,080,036) (140,361) (3,710,040 —  (28,759,255)
BERE Net carrying amount 119203 7552562 12,457,192 29600 1,311,598 464416 21,934,571
R2021%12318 At 31 December 2021
RE Cost 119918 12,340,115 32,649,807 162,350 5,762,384 4823712 51,516,946
ZTEMAESE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (5120917) (20,964,368)  (134,276)  (3,787,357) (30,006,918)
RERE Net carrying amount 119918 7219198 11,685,439 28074 1,975,027 4823712 21,510,028
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THRRA R B AN KA F A
bz

REER  2£EETHRENEE
BEREFANTIEHBEEER T
THABRE TS AES - REFE
#2858 A A R 138,893,000 75(2020
140,915,000 A R¥ L) EF
RE - AEBEXEEURERE
L EEY) o

FRN - AEERELTEARRSD
EXBEREAEELE  AEEB
BEEEES B BLER Y
MRABRRGREERRN - AEE Y
RREEHEEMBMBRE  £EX
EREEEMYE B REEE
ITRERET o B ARTEE 3£ RE
RS EIN - AFEREEME
R o Bt - ANFERBRHRRE
A #(20204F : AR 66,191,000
7T e

The land represents the freehold land located outside Hong Kong.

At the end of the reporting period, the building ownership
certificates of the Group’s certain buildings with aggregate net
carrying amount of RMB38,893,000 (2020: RMB40,915,000) have
not been obtained due to application for the changes of granted
land use purpose is still in process. In the opinion of directors, the
Group validly occupies and uses these buildings.

During the year, the Group continued to implement a rationalisation
plan for both the instant noodle and beverage segments under
which the Group had devoted more efforts on promoting asset-
light through the optimisation of capacity allocation so as to
improve operational efficiency and reduce operational costs. The
Group carried out the impairment review on the property, plant
and equipment which have been idled for a prolonged period of
time and technical obsolescence with comparably low production
efficiency. Except for those machineries and equipments that was
impaired in previous years, no impairment indicator has been
identified during the year. Accordingly, no provision for impairment
was made in current year (2020: RMB66,191,000).
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ERAEEE Right-of-use assets
BRURF
HELHZ
T EARE
Land use HER
right in HAiti% 5
respect of Machinery
leasehold B and other FCkC]
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total
ARETFRT AREFT AREFT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
FEELHER-8Z Recondiliation of carrying
202012 A31H amount - year ended
LFE 31 December 2020
REY] At beginning of the year 3,512,502 502,399 10,223 4,025,124
INE Additions 87,961 178,709 5,780 272,450
MEET Lease modification — (24,866) (1,147) (26,013)
HE Disposals (5,957) — — (5,957)
HE-HENBERAT  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries (32,851) (121,605) (873) (155,329)
e Depreciation (100,704) (200,440) (4,675) (305,819)
NEEH At the end of the reporting period 3,460,951 334,197 9,308 3,804,456
REEHE-8Z Reconciliation of carrying
202112 A31H amount - year ended
LEE 31 December 2021
READ At beginning of the year 3,460,951 334,197 9,308 3,804,456
NE Additions 14,482 273,242 9,231 296,955
HEEET Lease modification — (19,766) (316) (20,082)
HE Disposals (18,786) — — (18,786)
HE—HEMBAR  Disposals - disposal of
(Kigtar) subsidiaries (Note 41) (53,976) (9.896) (122) (63,994)
e Depreciation (99,436) (201,104) (6,268) (306,808)
REEH At the end of
the reporting period 3,303,235 376,673 11,833 3,691,741
M2021F1A1H At 1 January 2021
DN Cost 4,327,388 614,400 16,162 4,957,950
2EinE Accumulated depreciation (866,437) (280,203) (6,854)  (1,153,494)
IREDFE Net carrying amount 3,460,951 334,197 9,308 3,804,456
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FEREEE(E) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
BREURAT
HELHZ
T fE AR
Land use HEER
right in Hthsk s
respect of Machinery
leasehold EF and other k]
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total
ARETFRT AREFT AREFT AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
720215128318 At 31 December 2021
DN Cost 4,260,555 678,903 22,562 4,962,020
ZEITE Accumulated depreciation (957,320) (302,230) (10,729)  (1,270,279)
RREFRE Net carrying amount 3,303,235 376,673 11,833 3,691,741

AEBAHEEEMMHESR TE
FoERREMEE - BENT1E
AZE304 -

PRI R E

BRI REH2HEE - &
FFELBALE BRIEREEE
ERHAKEER  MAKENE
HEREGHRBEE -

RMEHEMS - AKEEAKEH
MERBEZTHEARR  XRBEEE
m B A BB R AR AARR S

TEESER

TERE AR EZSHRE TR
RGN TREEEERRED
SEHRERENH -

ERRKILEER

AEENIOEFZ2HEAREE
REREIEEE - BERAER
EAREERBEIGITR Ui
FEE R -

W

H

The Group leases various buildings, machinery and other
equipment for its daily operations. Lease terms range from 1
month to 30 years.

Restrictions or covenants

Except for the land use right in respect of the leasehold land in the
PRC, most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless approval
is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use asset can only be used
by the Group and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging
the underlying assets.

For leases of properties, the Group is required to keep those
properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in
their original condition at the end of the lease.

Variable lease payments

Variable lease payments represent leases which contain variable
payment terms that are linked to the actual usage with no
minimum payments.

Extension and termination options

Some of the lease contracts of buildings contain an extension and
termination option, respectively. The extension and termination
option of the leases of office premises is not normally exercised in
order to keep the flexibility of operations.

B EER
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HEER Lease liabilities
2021 2020
ARHFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEAE Lease liabilities
MENE D Current portion 159,520 101,191
IEREE D Non-current portion 195,519 215,609
355,039 316,800
NEEREECERUTHIER : The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:
2021 2020
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MERK - Lease payments:
REEE Short-term leases 147,452 128,507
BEEEE Low-value assets 1,356 1,369
P8R 2 X Expenses recognised in profit or loss 148,808 129,876
WIEAR THE B FIE 2 A]#  Variable lease payments that do
MENRERAEAAN) not depend on an index or
MEE a rate (as lessee) under leases 58,497 37,237
MRERRTER 2 BRE Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 207,305 167,113
BREEEA IR Mm% Total cash outflow for leases 413,978 365,853
HERE Commitments under leases
B2021F 12 8318 AEEB & At 31 December 2021, the Group was committed to lease
EHARBzBEBERBRENE contracts in relation to properties, machinery and other equipment
¥CHESH - mAZMAEMAKR that have not yet commenced. The related lease payments that
MREEEERCEEREN R A were not paid and not reflected in the measurement of lease
A R #22,029,0007T(20204F = A liabilities were RMB22,029,000 (2020: RMB38,102,000).
[ 38,102,0007T) °
R2021F 12 A31H - AEBE B & At 31 December 2021, the Group was committed to
= A R #33,922,0007C(2020 4F - RMB33,922,000 for short-term leases (2020: RMB30,949,000).

AFE#30,949,000T) 7 FMEAFAE o
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KXERFAE
BTk R Water
Concession resource st
right licenses Total
AR¥TFR ARKTFT AR¥TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REEHER - Reconciliation of carrying
HZE2020F12831H amount — Year ended
HFE 31 December 2020
REA At beginning of the year 165,080 18,329 183,409
NE Additions — 1,118 1,118
B Amortisation (5,194) (1,209) (6,403)
fE A% Exchange realignment (12,456) — (12,456)
REEH At end of the reporting period 147,430 18,238 165,668
AREEH IR Reconciliation of carrying
-EZ2021%12H31H amount - Year ended
LHFE 31 December 2021
REY] At beginning of the year 147,430 18,238 165,668
RE Additions — 17,086 17,086
A Amortisation (4,853) (2,660) (7,513)
HE - HERBAF Disposals — disposal of subsidiaries
(KizF41) (Note 41) — (17,159) (17,159)
b 5 3R Exchange realignment (2,112) — (2,112)
N&EER At end of the reporting period 140,465 15,505 155,970
202161 A1 H At 1 January 2021
B AR Cost 191,561 25,143 216,704
RETEESH Accumulated amortisation (44,131) (6,905) (51,036)
147,430 18,238 165,668
A 2021%12H31H At 31 December 2021
PR Cost 187,296 17,086 204,382
RETEEE Accumulated amortisation (46,831) (1,581) (48,412)
140,465 15,505 155,970
EMmEER 243
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SIS EERIEN2012F3 A X
GHFRFRTEA ZFETEEE - Fir
KERERTAEEURE - £
BE  DEKHEEEERERRK
EBRERBER UARERFEK
B B9 5 TE PR I U ER MR R - PSR
RIZAHINRBAZHZ9FE - BELE
JERTIREESE -

KERTAFERZEERRHRERARN
EERBERNBERKOER - %
ERMIEI0E20F (20204 : 204F )
WA B AR A 8 -

BVEERBRAEAGTELER
BIERHRETRENHR -

Concession right represents the concession right acquired as a
result of a business combination taken place in March 2012.
The concession right granted to the Group for manufacturing,
bottling, packaging, distributing and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated
soft drink and Gatorade branded products on a royalty fee basis
under a specific trademark in the Mainland China is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the contract period of approximately
39 years.

Water resource licenses represent rights to extract mineral water
for the production of beverage products in the PRC, which are
amortised on a straight-line basis over 10 to 20 years (2020: 20
years).

Intangible assets are measured using cost model and are tested
for impairment where an indicator of impairment appears.

2021 2020
AR¥ T ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PR 7R & BRE{E Cost and carrying amount
202012 A31 B K At 31 December 2020 and
202112 A31H 31 December 2021 97,910 97,910

BEEANRER REEBMNHH
REERLBETHRBALR K
KB RERMEEEEROAR S
BRI - EEMETERE
BoRAER BAEfMTTa A #
MENEENERZRE - Bt MA
BB A EAEH o

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the acquisition
effectively included amount in relation to the benefits originated
from revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of the acquired business. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.
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The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the Group’s
CGU identified according to the nature of business as follows for
impairment test:

2021 2020

AR¥ T ABREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R Beverages 97,910 97,910

HEBEFEECNEE((RARS
EAEMDIER 2017 FWERMNE
ER R AR AR(HINE S
% 1)25% AR #E - 72021412 A 31
B AEBEZEMMNEFATLHE
SRE - BAFHRNBESELSE
A El ¢8R  STEHAERE
FEHAEANTFHUBEENRS
TETER - BBASFHNESREDK
LA2% (20204F : 2% )M R HIIE R =X
HEHR  EEEREILERIEH
MITERETED - WA BBHEBET
EMFHRFIEREK o

KmReELEMREEMREE
HwrlEeRBBEEREE
S ERBORE -

ARFTEFEREENEZEREZMNE
AR :

Goodwill arising from the beverages business (the “Beverages
CGU") represented the acquisition of 25% equity interests in
Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Ltd. (“HZPS") in 2017.
At 31 December 2021, the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of the Beverages CGU with reference to the cash flow
projection of HZPS. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the board of directors
covering a 5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period
have been extrapolated using a 2% (2020: 2%) long-term growth
rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry.

The recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU based on the value
in use calculation exceeded its carrying amount. Accordingly,
goodwill was not impaired.

Key assumptions and inputs used for the value in use calculation
are as follows:

2021 2020
EViES Gross profit margin 36% 37%
R R Average growth rate 9% 8%
RAEIE R = Long-term growth rate 2% 2%
FrRE Discount rate 9% 9%

EEERBAEARBENEE TS E
ENEHETREEMNE - FER
MHTIR KB THAT - R BR E AR 3R
SELABEVERNEERR -

BraEERAReELEM A
CEBBERIN ARBEEEL
TRMEBEMEMAIERFEE R E

THERLED -

Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin based
on past performance and its expectation of market development.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
to the Beverages CGU.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU, the Company's
management is not aware of any other probable changes that
would necessitate changes in the key assumptions.
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R2021F 12 A3 BEEE R 7 Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 are shown in
BRI R A I SRR M FE 47 - note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.
REEAHERARAFEERALE None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
HARFAES - during the year or at the end of the reporting period.
BEARHEAER Significant judgements and assumptions

B2017F  RARFEZERBR In 2017, Master Kong PBB Investment Limited (“MKPI"), a
FIEMBEEHRIEERR AR A non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
EDBEEP—ZMMASAI4n the sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA”) with one of the
ER(TEFDITVEEHH(ES shareholders (the “Vendor”) of HZPS to acquire 25% equity
Wik l)  MBE A WERIN G E A% interest in HZPS from the Vendor. In addition, the Vendor also
25% R HE o kAN B INA B BRIR issued an authorisation letter (the ”Authorisation Letter”) to MKPI
BRHEEE((REEZ]) BEZ under which MKPI shall be entitled irrevocably to all the rights and
BREZ AFKREENREZREE benefits of the aforesaid 25% equity interest in HZPS currently
E(IREEE D)=LK BB held by the Vendor for a period up to the completion date of the
HRATA BEZEE R BAF registration of the equity transfer (the “Equity Transfer”). At the
BH A 25% N B & a] 0% 1 5 end of the reporting period, the management estimated that the
— R EAZE e RIRERR & registration of the Equity Transfer with the relevant government
IR [Z 14 51 B2 A8 B8 I T 30 P 3% 32 A9 % authority will be completed not later than the end of 2022.

B EE DR TER 2022 FERI

T °

R TESHENEREE K& Through the execution of the SPA and Authorisation Letter, the
EEES50% MM B SR E - B Group holds 50% equity interest in HZPS and has more than a
REEZHMNE S 0] 240 % 8% majority of the voting rights of HZPS. Since the relevant activities
ZE o AR EMIN B S 40 ®RE which significantly affect HZPS's return are determined by the
BERFENEATHANMMNEEA board of directors of HZPS based on a simple majority vote, the
LEESUHELHERTE Bt management concluded that the Group has control over HZPS
ERERRAEEHMME A4 and HZPS is treated as a subsidiary of the Group.

BEEIE At MIMNBEEATLE
ERBAREENOMBELRF o
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material non-controlling interest (“"NCI")

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

The following table shows the information relating to KSF
Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. ("KSF Beverage”), the only subsidiary
of the Group which has material NCI. The summarised
financial information represents amounts before inter-company

AR ERI 2 &5 - eliminations.

n2021 5 72020 4F

12A31H 12 A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

DEMERIR 2 AL Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 22.09% 22.09%
DB R I ZERE L] Proportion of NCI's voting rights 27% 27%
n2021 45 720204

12A31H 12 A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

AR¥FoT AEETFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

RBEE Current assets 16,462,352 14,196,877
EMBNEE Non-current assets 19,491,174 17,988,008
mEAE Current liabilities (17,848,960) (15,598,717)
FEREEE Non-current liabilities (2,480,529) (1,385,685)
FEE Net assets 15,624,037 15,200,483
DERE IR R EE Carrying amount of NC| 3,695,634 3,578,274
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SENEXRVBRREZ ZHELTH Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
BBER(E) material NCI (Continued)
HZE2021 % HZE20207F
12A31H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
AR¥ T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Wezs Revenue 44,801,936 37,279,923
IR [ A Profit for the year 2,418,652 2,105,463
H 2 E W R Other comprehensive income 87,992 140,876
FHEWNEEEE Total comprehensive income 2,506,644 2,246,339
D BIUR R 7 FE A Profit attributable to NCI 581,185 511,420
DR R ERIENS Total comprehensive income
P HEUW R attributable to NC| 600,626 542,544
B HREREERE Dividends paid to NCI (466,244) (297,235)
g (F)IReREFEE Net cash flows from (used in):
KRS Operating activities 3,440,271 5,104,607
BEEE Investing activities (2,764,733) (1,792,237)
BEEE Financing activities (160,982) (882,456)
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FEEREZHBARRRREZEIES
]

MR2021F7H - R&E B M@ — %
BUE=ZFAUREREARE
24,174,000 TIBREB B ATLER
BERARI(TRER S AL ])EN
B6.38% M ER#EZ  FAEER
REBEAENERERHG67.63%
WAZE74.01% - RIRER - K&A
SR 638N MERERBKEEA
A AN R# 14,993,000 ° Atk 0
R FEEZR T AR 14,993,000
T MAPEBRREENRmERD
cHREYNNReREBELHNERE
AANRY9,181,000 TE i ALZAR
BA RS A E D ER R
RoFEHEIF  -REA - RERED
EH I

Major changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries

In July 2021, the Group acquired additional 6.38% of effective
equity interest of Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.
("CCBL") from an independent third party at a cash consideration
of RMB24,174,000, resulting in an increase in the Group’s
effective equity interests in CCBL from 67.63% to 74.01%. On the
acquisition date, the total carrying amount of the 6.38% effective
equity interest in CCBL was amounted to RMB14,993,000. As at
the result, the NCI was decreased by RMB14,993,000 and the
difference of RMB9,181,000 between the amount by which the
carrying amount of NCI have decreased and the consideration
paid were recorded in “Transactions with non-controlling interests
reserve” within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The cash consideration was fully settled during the year.

2021 2020

AR¥TFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

LMD - A Unlisted shares, at cost 70,678 70,678
JEML BB R A Share of post-acquisition results 110,632 90,572
B U B WA F Dividend received since acquisition (86,463) (66,448)
94,847 94,802

REERBERRZAMAFTIMT

Details of the associate at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:
TERE S
T2 AEEREEZ
Principal place EREEREESLH

of business A Proportion of effective
BeARaR and place of Registered  ownership interestheld ~ B
Name of associate incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2021 2020
ERBEUESHERAR hE US$16,000,000  38.96% 3896%  REREEHRR
Nanjing Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of

beverages
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LA LB & X B Th iR HE 25 0K DI BR A A7
BMBwRERT

ERFERBE DT 2HBER

TRIVRAKBIZER AR Z
RISEEABE QARIW BT REE M
REBREES -

the consolidated financial statements.

accounted for using the equity method.

The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in

Financial information of individually immaterial associate

The table below shows the carrying amount and the Group's
share of results of an associate that is not individually material and

R2021%F 20204
12A31H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEFEEE Carrying amount of interests 94,847 94,802
BZ2021 % B = 20204
12A31H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
ARMTFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEFELS - Group's share of:
REE i F Profit for the year 20,060 17,544
Hih 2 RS Other comprehensive income — —
2EW =R Total comprehensive income 20,060 17,544
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2021 2020
ARBFT AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FELETREG - BAAE Unlisted shares, at cost 363,679 452,832
BB R EE Share of post-acquisition results 997,992 819,026
B U iEZ /B W T Dividend received since acquisition (736,508) (644,827)
625,163 627,031
REEREGE QR ZAMFNT Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
IEEE/
it S rEEREZ
Principal place BREREERLA
of operation/ HMBRA Proportion of effective
BENTER Place of Registered  ownership interestheld ~FE#H%
Name of joint ventures incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2021 2020
RRKYRRERAT e US$11,000,000 31.82% | 31.82% MIREEERFEM
Fujian Weizhen Foods Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of
agricultural products
REENRRBRAD(RE ) (M) i US$24,000,000 — 60%  MIRKENEER
Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co., Ltd. (“Kangpu”) (note (a)) ~ PRC Process and sale of
meat products
FERETERHBRAR hE U5$28,120,000 3896%  3896% EEREESM
Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
ERAEUERHARAR(EREE]) HE RMB150,000,000 6233% = 6233% BEREESRR
Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. (“JNPS") PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
FTREAESERAT i RMB400,000 25% 5%  Ret RERAEES
Beijing Zhengben Advertising Ltd. PRC Design, production and
agency of advertising
LNEMB&E QA iR AT R All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
TR e i o method in the consolidated financial statements.
(@ M2021F3R8 @ REBWERL (@  In March 2021, the Group acquired additional 40% equity interest
REINAOY% IRHE - RERAAEE 2 in Kangpu and Kangpu became a wholly owned subsidiary of the
2EMBAF - Group.
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BEARNHE R RR Significant judgements and assumptions
AEBFEA—HEESAERA S The Group has 62.33% effective ownership interest in JNPS
0% ARG T EHBME R through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 80% direct
AlMB A EMASE62.33% 2 BR%E equity interests in JNPS. However, based on the contractual
BRERE - AT - BIBZIELEHE agreement between the non-wholly owned subsidiary and other
EWMBARIEHEMKEE NG investor of JNPS, the relevant activities which significantly affect
FEths HYRELQFREEATERN the JNPS's return require over 80% votes of the board of directors
R RS ER A= L9 of JNPS. By virtue of the Group's contractual right to appoint 4
ERAFBEEZGHIBI0% I EH# out of 5 directors to the board of directors of JNPS, the Group
KR — o BIBEASNEF  KEH has determined that it has no control but joint control over JNPS
EEMBENSREETAHEATm4 as the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
HEF BAPKHEEEAESZL economic activities of JNPS require the unanimous consent of the
BEKHBENV B RBMEERR non-wholly owned subsidiary and the other investor.

RAAEZIFZEREWE 2 F M
Hib R EEFERE —BORTE - AR
SERSERNEEOSLERAE
B TR LRI B -
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TRIURA K BIZ & % 2 {85 3F
ERBRERRAMAFREEERASE

EREES

Financial information of individually immaterial joint

ventures

The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the

Group's share of results of joint ventures that are not individually

material and accounted for using the equity method.

2021 % 72020
12831H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
ARMTF T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
T ARAE(E Carrying amount of interests 625,163 627,031
BZE2021%F EZE20204F
12H31H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
AR¥TFTT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEFEM Group's share of:
AEF & A Profit for the year 101,764 112,892
E 2w Other comprehensive income — —
PHEUN TR Total comprehensive income 101,764 112,892

0 o
.

B 3y

hu)

o

=

o

EEZRAR AEERAEMNEKRN
A)

In the opinion of the directors, no joint ventures are individually

material to the Group.
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2021 2020
HtaF ARMTFT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

RFVPLEEMWESMEE Financial assets at FVPL
—REHES® - Investment funds (a)(d) 626,707 1,329,281
— ETRAE S — Equity securities, listed (b) 194 198
626,901 1,329,479

EE FVodl Designated FVOCI

—FLTRAES — Equity securities, unlisted (o)(d) 137,317 140,444
764,218 1,469,923

Wit - Note:

REESRNETEEZRE
RN BB BB IO EREE
EREEURBNABREEARF
NEBRERAEEREE W RT
BEGHMEABEN REHER &
EEENAREBEESHAERESE
BEFEEIRARHA

EHRAFSFHRABERBERE
BHRHPTHT IS MERE

FELMRARENARBEEER
BEMRELBERS ARMGE-
FRREAABEZSTEALME
EWE (20204 © AR5 32,456,000
TERAREEHERBHTTE
[@)) e

SR AR EENEETERE
RBABERN G ST BREN
44 -

The investment funds represent investments in certain funds which
were set up as a limited partnership or companies with liability
limited by shares in Hong Kong or outside Hong Kong, aiming at
allocating idle funds reasonably and increasing return on asset. The
fair value of the investment funds were valued by the respective
investment managers or trust administrators at the end of the
reporting period.

The fair value of the listed equity securities is determined based on
a quoted market bid price in a relevant stock exchange.

The fair values of the unlisted equity investments were mainly valued
by the respective investment managers at the end of the reporting
period. No change in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income during the year (2020: RMB32,456,000 were credited to
investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling)).

The valuation technique and significant inputs used in the
measurement of the fair values of the investments are set out in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EI us$ 715,939 698,621
AR RMB 48,085 771,104
Hit Others 194 198
764,218 1,469,923
2021 2020
ARET T ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R4 # Raw materials 1,493,137 1,163,642
R Work in progress 97,433 80,018
2K Finished goods 3,080,907 2,104,016
4,671,477 3,347,676
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2021 2020
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE U AR X Trade receivables
—%5=5 — From third parties 1,881,100 1,551,301
—ARRBZEERHEZES -~ From companies controlled by
4L VNG a substantial shareholder
of the Company 35,890 32,683
—ARNREEN — From companies controlled by
REERL B RBBIE S the family members and relatives
S EAR VNG of the Company'’s directors 1,396 2,005
i /N — From an associate 32,471 1,300
—BENF — From joint ventures 92,887 73,100
2,043,744 1,660,389
REBZHEXRIBMD ALRNES The majority of the Group's sales are cash-before-delivery. The
BRTHEEZEENFER3I0ED remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from
X o 30 to 90 days.
EREEWKEDZ(BEREEE) NG The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss allowance),
BEAREEAMRH ZERE ST based on invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as
TREATT - follows:
2021 2020
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
0-90:k 0 - 90 days 1,920,716 1,579,741
90 KM E Over 90 days 123,028 80,648
2,043,744 1,660,389
BEAAEEENEREERRHNE Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks of trade
BIE R A BT I RRMI5E 43 © receivables is included in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.
JEW AR EZUARKTIE - The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.
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2021 2020
Htaz AR¥FT AREFoT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
TR ER Prepayments to suppliers for

purchase of goods 120,345 55,497
TEfT R AR Prepayments for purchase of equipment 9,335 18
TEHEE R Prepaid value-added taxes 308,982 254,483
B EERE Prepaid operating expenses 1,225,570 941,008
e E TR Loan receivables 25(a) 90,000 225,000
FE WA B, Interest receivables 25(b) 361,488 213,038
HE Deposits 127,018 108,242

ERHEREES R Other receivables from disposal of

FEETRAZ SN investment funds and unlisted

equity securities — 96,394
Hth Others 109,815 347,218
2,352,553 2,240,898

25(a) EWERK

25(a) Loan receivables

EWERTEAREEZHEBR
AERTESTEMBEER
RoBEHEEEERR 2N
o WERKERAEER
ARTZEAREELKFE
3.85% (2020 : 413.85% %
5.00%)MEFK -

ARmESAMULEETHR
mEBRT _EARZHEK
B WEEREZEAZAR
EHEEBRRREERRN -

25(b) FEYIRIE

FEY 7 B 2K B R B E B E R
RITHEER

Loan receivables represent the advances made by
subsidiaries of the Company to certain raw materials
suppliers and subcontractors of the Group for financing their
operations. The loan receivables are unsecured, repayable
within 12 months from the end of the reporting period
and bear interest at 3.85% (2020: ranging from 3.85% to
5.00%) per annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting
period approximates their corresponding carrying amount.

25(b) Interest receivables

Interest receivables arose from the long-term time deposits
and cash at bank.
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2021 2020
ARETFT AREFITT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REIFHER Long-term time deposits 6,101,900 2,435,000
RITHEBRNMRS Bank balances and cash 15,838,492 21,393,321
EIFRITER Pledged bank deposits 20,746 37,832
RITERRBRLEF Total cash at bank and on hand 21,961,138 23,866,153
RATHERBR A1 23F » WK The long-term time deposits are made for periods of one to three
BAE R E B RON R BREUH B - years and earn interest at the respective time deposits interest
B K B345% 2 4.18% 2 [E(2020 rate ranging from 3.45% to 4.18% (2020: 3.45% to 4.18%) per
F 1 3.45% F4.18% 2 F) annum.
WHETFERE TEE - (EARE The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
REE—RFETIRESRE (BIEE trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
ITIRITAEZIERE)MIETTREZIKA bills, granted to the Group by banks.
&-D o
MIRETEREOMES BT EFX A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and cash
KB4 RESEBE2HIRMOT ¢ equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statements is as follow:
2021 2020
ARMTFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RITFRERES Cash at bank and on hand 21,961,138 23,866,153
B REAIE TR Less: long-term time deposits (6,101,900) (2,435,000)
RehkReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 15,859,238 21,431,153
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EHZE2021F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

Total cash at bank and on hand are denominated in the following

g : currencies:
2021 2020
AR¥TFT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREE RMB 21,256,767 23,386,552
ETT us$ 640,164 439,022
Bt EUR 138
et NTD 38,461 21,867
Hi Others 25,620 18,574
21,961,138 23,866,153

ERALEEZINERB MEER
B4R E ISR M sE 43 5l -

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and credit risk

discussion are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial

statements.
2021 2020
RER RER
Equivalent to Equivalent to
kH"E FEn  AREFR EE FET  AEEFT
No. of shares Uss 000 RMB000 | No. of shares Us§ 000 RMB000
R Authorised:
B0.005FTzE@E  Ordinary shares of US§0.005 each 7,000,000,000 35,000 7,000,000,000 35,000
BETRAR : Issued and fully paid:
REY At the beginning of the year 5,624,386,360 28,123 235422 5,623,786,360 28,120 235,401
REBRHEZB{7 20 Shares issued under share option scheme 6,586,000 3 ik 600,000 3 "
RESH At the end of the reporting period 5,630,972,360 28,15 235633 | 5,624,386,360 28123 235422

AR E N 6,586,000 8 A% #E 1T
EL‘A@J%ZK/ 716,586,000 % 3@ %
K10 - BRE A AR 43,408,000
7T HﬂPAE%ZH,OOOmﬂxE%
TR AR - T 4% 87 A R85 43,197,000
Tt AR EER - B AR
13,693,000 T E R EFHERE
B EER - ZERERNSHEHE
RERNE=BERS#ER -

During the year, 6,586,000 options were exercised to subscribe

for 6,586,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
of RMB43,408,000, of which RMB211,000 was credited to issued
capital and the balance of RMB43,197,000 was credited to the
share premium account. In addition, RMB13,693,000 has been

transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the share

premium account. These shares rank pari passu with all existing

shares in all respects.
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2021 2020

ARHTFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

REH] At beginning of the year 730,075 724,384
RIEBE R AT 813577 Z %) Shares issued under share option scheme 56,890 5,691
REEER At the end of the reporting period 786,965 730,075

REMEERRIRL - ERF Ak
BRERIRNODE  THEURREHE
bR ET  ERTRODEMEH

RN EOEREERMGER

BhaERERERERNZHS

RNENRZHTE o

ENARAERREZB/AT &
RAZBDEEN DI TRE

HEAR QBN 2 IR & BIA BE
ERBEBHEBAN 2 ER
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Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.
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U
it 3o
X5k RAEf
Transactions e
with (TaEm) nx
hihBEGRE  ERERE non- ERERE  estment  ERERE BlkEER
Capital Remeasur- controling Exchange  revaluation Property —fREE  Share-based REEA
redemption ement interests translation reserve revaluation General payment Retained #8
resenve reserve resene reserve  (Non-recycling) resere resne Tesenve profits Total

NRETE  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETL  ARETE ARETT ARETT  ARETZ ARETR
RUBOOD  RMBOOO  AMBUOOD  RMBUDD  RMBOO  AMBOOD  RMBUDD  RMBOO  AUBUOOD  RMBUOD

R2020%1A818 At 1 January 2020 400 (102,963) (1,787,823) (653312) (5,005) 9,869 4,662,339 392,245 16,103,039 18,618,789
RERE Profitfor the year - - - - - - - — 40263 406083
Rb2EkE Other comprehensive income
RERHETZEE  Remeasurement of defined
benefits obligations - 815 - - - = - - - 815
BEENOCRAEEZES  Fairvalue changes
in Designated FVOCI - - - - 32456 - - - - 32456
EXZE Exchange difference on consolidation - - - 752,306 - - - - - 752,306
H2ANREE Total other comprehensive income - 815 - 752,306 3,456 - - - - 785,577
FEEREREAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - 815 - 752,306 32456 - - - 4,062,263 4,847,840
HANARRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REESE Contributions and distrbution
EREERNEAZHIE  Eouity setled share-
based transactions - - - - - - - 15,988 - 15,988
RIEBRIEB%TZRY  Shares issued under share
option scheme - - - - - - - (1323 - (1323)
BREEN Shares option lapsed - - - - - - - (75,556) 75,55 -
ERERIEE 20195 RER 2019 final and special final dividend
HRIRERE approved and paid - - - - - - - — (3330981 (33309%81)
ERRTER Transfer to retained profits - (3.904) - - - - - - 3904 -
ERARNET Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - 276431 - (276.437) -
- (3,904) - - - - 276,437 (60,891) (3,527,958) (3,316,316)
REEIRY Changes in ownershyp interests
EERYRTHEY Change in ownership interests
HELAREERRD in a subsidiary without change
in control - - (3,086) - - - - - - (3,086)
RANARRZRHBE  Total transactions with owners of
the Company - (3,904) (3,086) - - - 276,437 (60,891) (3,527,958) (3,319,402)
R2020E128318 At 31 December 2020 400 (106,052) (1,790,909) 98,994 27451 9,869 4938776 331,354 16,637,344 20,147,227
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HZE2021F12 A31 HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

UL |
BRER REEf
RA6EE e
Transactions (F78E)
with Investment nx
RfEERE  ERERRE non-  AMBERE  revaluation  EffERE BRERE
Capital ~ Remeasur- controlling Exchange reserve Property —MfE  Share-based REEH
redemption ement interests  translation (Non-  revaluation General payment Retained a5
reserve reserve reserve reserve recycling) reserve reserve reserve profits Total

ABRTE  ARETT  ARETR  AREFL  ARETL ARETT ARETR ARETZ AREFAL ARRTA
RMBO0  RMBUO)  RMBUA0  RMBYU00  RMBUO)  RMBOWO  RMBYU0O  RMBUS)  RMBUI0  RMBYO

BOUE1R1B At 1 January 2021 400 (106,052) (1,790,909) 98,994 21451 9,869 4,938,776 331,354 16,637,344 20,147,221
TERRA Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 3,802,482 3,802,482
Hb2EhE (5R) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RERHELL Remeasurement of defined
EffBHH3) benefits obligations (Hote 33) - (4,260) - - - - - - - (4,260)
EXZE Exchange difference on
consolidation - - - 27,991 - - - - - 211,991

Et2ENE(FR)EE  Total other comprehensive
income (loss) — (4,260) - 27,991 — - - — — 267,731

REE2ENH(HR)EE  Total comprehensive income

(loss) for the year - (4,260) - M9 - - - - 3,802,482 4,070,213
HENARRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REESEY Contributions and distribution
EREERNZHZ Equity settled share-based
HAME30) transactions (Note 30) - — - - - - - 5,075 - 5,075
REBREEETZ  Shares issued under share option
Rhniz2r) scheme (Note 27) - - - - - - - (13,693) - (13,693)
BlhEsn Shares option lapsed - - - - - - - (61,853) 61,853 -
BHERIEE2000RER 2020 final and specil final dividend
BAREREWEZ2)  approved and paid (Mote 12) - - - - - - - —  (4062263) (4,062,263
BHERIEE 2021558 2021 special interim dividend
PERE (1) approved and paid (Note 12) - - - - - - - - (2,500,000  (2,500,000)
ERERDER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - 368,700 - (368,700) -

368,700 (10471)  (6:869,110)  (6,570,881)

Changes in ownership interests
i Change in ownership interests
WEBLRARR in a subsidiary without change
2EHE19) in control (Note 19) - - (9,181) - - - - - - (9,181)

ARDAREZRHEE  Total transactions with owners of

the Company - - (181 - - - 368,700 (10471 (6869110)  (6580062)
HunENANE At31 December 2021 M0 (M0312)  (1800090) 370,985 27451 9869 5307476 60883 BSOMG 17631378
H2mEWKE(EE)SEAKRBER K No income tax effect arose from each component of other
20204 NM2021 R BB & comprehensive income (loss) in 2020 and 2021.

25,
2
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BHhBELOFEDIREREHEZA
ANEEBEE REHEARRRG Z

BT L -

EfhEME

EfEFEEDNRES ERBRF
ﬁE?Eﬂ,J,EZEfETE C HIBIIR
REF A M IEHRERM L)

BOBRRESERZRE

HOPRREEXIREEDRES
AHERBREAEBNE QR NE
SETEEHREEFIMRL - F
BIIRINR & B 15 R I AE 3(b)

HERERZE
SN E R 2 R R B TR IR
AARBBINEHRE 2 GFER -

FHBIIRNER S BRI ERMITE3(m) -

REEMERE

RESHFEBTIED) HREA
BRYBRELERNE ISR EAMELL
B EFVOCIA R EE R FEH
PIERME st BURERE - #1551
REF A M HRERMEE3() °

MREGERE

MESHEFRBHRELERTRE
EfEMMERURPEEE L Z
ii‘@ﬁﬁ%% CHRN A B RRM
FE3(d) R3NMEHBRREIERYE
&Tﬁﬁ%é%Ziﬁ%ﬁ%I}Z%ﬁ@ °

EHZE2021F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.

Remeasurement reserve

Remeasurement reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as set out in
note 3(s) to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in change in control as set out in
note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation as set out in note 3(m) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserves

The investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the cumulative net changes of the fair value of
Designated FVOCI as set out in note 3(j) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve was set up to deal with the
surplus or deficit arising from the revaluation of properties and
land use right in respect of leasehold land in PRC in accordance
with the accounting policies adopted for property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as set out in note 3(d) and 3(r)
to the consolidated financial statements.
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— Rk

RIEFEEEAD - HEKERQR
AR —ETNPREBRRE DM (RR
TEERMRRERETENEL
AIZEERBAZY)10% 2 HIE
BEE-RER - W REHEE R
HMEARTENEAREMERAZ
50% B - M B AR R HABIEE

{88 5 -

BRERE

BERERBEERTASEERRE
HMARITEZBRENFREARZA
REZHD  WRIEFSTERERE
VAR tD R ERE 2 R IR - #1575

RIRERE B MRMEE3() ©

General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
(as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3(t) to the
consolidated financial statements.

(a) 2008 FiE MR &2 (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme

BB R R AT A
([20085t &l ) 2 RERE#E
200843 H20H @ i@ - 3%
20085t EIZ B B2 EE
(FFARn T ) I W sR 4 P9 & 39 2K
SEEHMER o 5% 2008 51 &
M2019F 38198 B # & F
B2 BB IR N TT R BRI AT 1T

i o of the respective exercisable period.

The Company's share option scheme (the “2008 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 20 March 2008. The 2008 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group. The
2008 Share Option Scheme expired on 19 March 2019 and
the outstanding share options are exercisable until the end

EEGAREZEETUATA The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option

TREARHE - to:

() ANRAFHEEAHERR () any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
RER 2R REBES - officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
TBRAESHEBRIES

(i) ARFHEFEMH B (i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
AR EREE(BEIEHR independent non-executive directors) of the Company
TESERBIIENTE or any of its subsidiaries; and
B2): Rk

(i)  ARTHEMAMERF (i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and

W TRER - EE - ff
fEm - BERAE -

agents of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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B 4 N A IR S B E - 522008
FHEI R A AR R 2 H AR
B EIMR T2 ERES R 2
f& 7 8 B TS BB A A R ER
#9 1tk 2008 5+ & & H (B12008
FI3IA20B) 2B BITRHOK
10% °

REER ERTHEBRE
B LRFEIR#E B 143,726,500
B (20204 : 143,726,500
AR+ BIBAR A R ERA AR
T 2008 5T EIE B 2 TR
#12.57% (20204 : 2.57%) °

BHRLMEEZ 2008 5T Hk K
ERESES T ZENRS
BTRE(BEEITERKRITE
ZERE) EEAETHBAZ
1218 B AN S HBIBER T B
FEETIRMA 1% « 2R 1%
BRI T EERRREALL
A o

TEEHEETINERRE
miTEE /A DR ) R ERE
Pt T B OB S P 8L Y UL T
B () EBREET B
513 & % B R B AR Y UL
mE: RO EES Z

REEE -

ERENTEHAEESTER
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(a)

2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2008 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option Scheme
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 20
March 2008).

At the end of reporting period, the total number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted to its employees
and directors was 143,726,500 (2020: 143,726,500),
representing 2.57% (2020: 2.57%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested either after five
years from the date of grant or immediate upon attainment
of the retirement age as specified in the 2008 Share Option
Scheme. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is paid by each
option holder for each lot of share option granted. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.
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(a) 2008 FEEMRHEsE(£) (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
MN2008ztEI AR BT AL Details of share options granted by the Company to the
AMHENBRARIZEERES employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
ZHEREFIBENR2021F & pursuant to the 2008 Share Option Scheme and the share
2020F 12 AT HEERNZ X options outstanding as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are
ITEBAENT ¢ as follows:
B®F

BREHA

Number of  RITEMNBREZE
EFHH share options Number of share IEE TEH
Grant date granted options outstanding  Exercise price Exercisable period

2021 2020 HK$

200843 A20H 11,760,000 — — 928 20133 A21HZ
20 March 2008 201843 HA20H

21 March 2013 to
20 March 2018

20094 4 A22 H 26,688,000 — — 938 2014F4H23A%
22 April 2009 2019F 4 A22 H
23 April 2014 to
22 April 2019
2010F4 A 1R 15,044,000 — — 18.57 2015F4F1HE
1 April 2010 20203 HA31H

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2020

20115 4H12H8 17,702,000 — | 9,780,000 19.96 2016F4H12H=
12 April 2011 20214 A 11 H
12 April 2016 to
11 April 2021
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2008 FEERAERT S (&) (@) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
¥
BREHE
Number of  RITEMBRERE
®TFEH share options Number of share TEE 1TEH
Grant date granted  options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2021 2020 HK$
201294 A26H 9,700,000 ' 6,296,000 6,296,000 2054 2017F4R268=%
26 April 2012 2022 4 A25H
26 April 2017 to
25 April 2022
201345 H27H 11,492,000 7,766,000 7,766,000 20.16 20184F5H27H=
27 May 2013 20234 5H26H
27 May 2018 to
26 May 2023
2014F 4 A17H 12,718,500 8,961,000 8,961,000 2238 2019F4R178=%
17 April 2014 2024 4 A 16 H
17 April 2019 to
16 April 2024
201546 A5H 17,054,000 ' 13,534,000 13,534,000 16.22 20206 AS5HZE
5 June 2015 20256 H4H
5 June 2020 to
4 June 2025
20167 H4H 10,148,000 @ 2,206,000 7,672,000 754 2021F7H4HZE
4 July 2016 20267 H3H
4 July 2021 to
3 July 2026
2017F 4 A21H 11,420,000 9,450,000 10,570,000 1020 2022F4H21H=E
21 April 2017 2027 4 A20H
21 April 2022 to
20 April 2027
a5 143,726,500 48,213,000 64,579,000
Total
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(a) 2008 FEEMRMEE () (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
TE2008 518N M AT T(E 2 BB A% Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
EERENEESTEE & weighted average exercise prices under the 2008 Share
N Option Schemes are as follows:
2021 2020
InEF1g NS
TEE TEE
Weighted Weighted
average BREHE average MEMRESE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
REH] At beginning of the year 16.51 64,579 16.74 77,094
RERTTE Exercised during the year 7.99 (6,586) 7.54 (600)
RE AR Forfeited during the year — 9.20 (320)
MEREUY, 438 Cancelled/lapsed during
the year 19.96 (9,780) 18.68 (11,595)
REER At the end of
the reporting period 16.99 48,213 16.51 64,579
RITER - FRITE A ERRE The weighted average share price at the dates of
BT HRE R 14.888 T exercise of share options exercised during the year
(20204 : 14.7478 7T ) ° H 4% was HK$14.88 (2020: HK$14.74). The number of
HEHA - EREEBIRENE share options vested during the reporting period was
& 1 % 2 12,502,000 (2020 12,502,000 (2020: 7,564,000).

F 1 7,564,000) °

R2021F12A31H #H & The options outstanding at 31 December 2021 had
TEERENINETFORT S a weighted average remaining contractual life of
#HR A52.90F (20204 : 3.53 2.90 years (2020: 3.53 years). At the end of the
F)oe RNEER - AITTHFER reporting period, the number of exercisable options
T 1) I 212 43,913,000 (2020 was 43,913,000 (2020: 47,777,000) with weighted
F :47,777,000) - B & & average exercise price of HK$17.65 (2020: HK$19.15).

B - AT & B A MY hn A
B 17 E(E A17.657% 7L(2020
F :19.1587T) °
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EHZE2021F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

(b) 2018 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the new share option scheme (the
“2018 Share Option Scheme”) at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 26 April 2018, with a term of ten years
from the date of adoption. The 2018 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:-

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives
(including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors) or officers of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and
advisors of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
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(b)

2018 EEE R AERT 8l ()

BRAaC N BIRREALE - 220185
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M EE TEBAAR T RN
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H) 2B ETRMHEI10% °
o= E%%E@a&%%
) 48 H8 I 4 /458,104,000 % -
H BN R R AN I B AR SR A%
F 20185 818 A 2 EHITRNDA
0.14% °
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(b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 26 April
2018). At the end of reporting period, the total number
of shares in respect of which options had been granted to
its employees and directors under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 8,104,000, representing 0.14% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company'’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
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(b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested after three years
from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$1
is paid by each option holder for each lot of share option
granted. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share of the Company.

Details of share options granted by the Company to the
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme and the share
options outstanding as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are

HIERENT as follows:
BT
BREHE
Number of RITHENEREZE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE TFEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2021 2020 HK$
20184 4 A27H 2,478,000 2,478,000 2,478,000 16.18 202144 A30H=E
27 April 2018 2028F 4 A26H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2028
201854 A 27 H 5,626,000 @ 3,785,000 3,785,000 16.18 20214 A30HZ=E
27 April 2018 2024F 4 A 26 H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2024
| 8,104,000 = 6,263,000 6,263,000
Total
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(b) 2018 FEEMREE (&) (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
BB 20185 &M ARTTEZ AR Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
EERENEESTEE & weighted average exercise prices under the 2018 Share
N Option Scheme are as follows:
2021 2020
n#EFH NS
TEE 1T1E(E
Weighted Weighted
average BREHE average MEMRESE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
REH] At beginning of the year 16.18 6,263 16.18 6,263
RERNITE Exercised during the year — — — —
RERZ I Forfeited during the year — — — —
MEREUY, 438 Cancelled/lapsed during
the year — — — —
REER At the end of
the reporting period 16.18 6,263 16.18 6,263
TEEHARN DFTEEBK The number of share options veted during the reporting
14 & 8 A% 1 AR 2= 6,263,000 period was 6,263,000 (2020: Nil). None of the options are
(20204 : #7) « NERNLHE exercised during the year.

PAERATIE -

MR2021F12A31H W K The options outstanding at 31 December 2021 had a
TFEERENIEFSH% TS weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.90 years
#HY /B 3.90F (20204 - 4.90 (2020: 4.90 years). At the end of the reporting period, the
F)o RNEERH - A[ITFEEK number of exercisable options was 6,263,000 (2020. none)
7§ I &2 6,263,000(2020 with weighted average exercise price of HK$16.18 (2020:
FE) METFHITEE n/a).

/3161878 JL(20204F © T i@

HH) o
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2021 2020

AR¥FT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

EBASERE Contingent consideration payable 9,959 9,959

ZeBEBRENMING B ES
Bk BRE  FBEENGEE B W
xME19o- BB IOIREBEESR
HEPEENEERPAMIMNE S
AENETFANENE—BoEE
B BN BEREZAABERA
K% 9,959,000 7L(2020 % - A R
9,959,0007T) » FEFEF IR EE ZE T
B % B8 & B AR 8k i 1 FVPL R 38
memaBsmEEsy o

FR HEREREAALEEREZ
Bt AE25(20204 : BB AR
285,0007T) °

The contingent consideration payable arose from the acquisition
of HZPS as detailed in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements which was determined based on a certain portion of
projected net profits of HZPS for specified period as defined in the
SPA. The fair value of the contingent consideration payable was
RMB9,959,000 (2020: RMB9,959,000), which was expected to be
due on after the completion date of the registration of the Equity
Transfer and recorded in the current portion of financial liabilities
at FVPL.

During the year, no change in fair value of the contingent
consideration (2020: loss of RMB285,000) was recognised in profit
or loss.

2021 2020
ARBTFTT ABREFr
RMB’000 RMB’'000

RITER Bank loans:
Bty Secured — 157,638
I Unsecured 10,499,244 10,310,892
10,499,244 10,468,530
EIREE Unsecured notes 3,162,569 3,228,004
13,661,813 13,696,534
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BREERHA RREE R EM
AN 30 B HRE R SRR RO 0 A (I 72
BAERIREKANSEREGROTE)

The maturity of the interest-bearing borrowings and analysis of
the amount due based on scheduled payment dates set out in
the loan agreements (ignoring the effect of any repayment on

W demand clause) are as follows:
2021 2020
AR¥FT AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
1R Within one year 7,311,444 5,891,412
F2HF In the second year 2,135,826 2,655,588

FEIFEFESF In the third to fifth years, inclusive

(BIEERE2F) 4,214,543 5,065,216
FENE Over five years — 84,318
13,661,813 13,696,534
WoaBARSEBER D Portion classified as current liabilities (7,311,444) (5,891,412)
IEmENE o Non-current portion 6,350,369 7,805,122

EEBES ARKI372,584,000
TL(20204F - A E#1,172,080,000
T)BE—RIEERRGE TEEAE
MEREeEEmBEMK LR+ @A
BAHONBERT  ERKBERE-
BEEEUTEBAEEASTFEL
BANEREER HEBETEEER
BRBAE -

Interest-bearing borrowings of RMB1,372,584,000 (2020:
RMB1,172,080,000), with a clause in their terms that gives the
lender an overriding right to demand repayment without notice
or with notice period of less than 12 months at its sole discretion,
are classified as current liabilities even though the directors do
not expect that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand
repayment.

nEF Y F R EBE1.47% (2020
F:2.14%) -

The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-
bearing borrowings is 1.47% (2020: 2.14%,) per annum.

BEBERBEHEERATER -

Interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost.
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R2020F12 A31H - RTE\EE
RPN ERMBEREGEHE
ME - HERRBRERAREE -
SEED R AL AR 1,122,200,000
7T+ AR 559,398,000 7T K2 A R #E
1,460,861,000 7 ° K I SR 1T 5 3K
AERAREFLEERKBRTER
HZEAASEEB O RIXEREZH

NN R FR2020F 9 A24 8 B 17 K
% #8 % /500,000,000 % T 2 £ &
REBR(ETEE]D - ETEBER
#“H Bw IR B /496,043,000 3%
TR E R4 AR 3,162,569,000
7 )(20204F : 495,032,000% 7T
(M & K4 A R #3,228,004,000
TNIEFAABEEBE RE=ZF=
FRFINH(BEEEEMF) - £
Z I A2020F9A248 B F F|
E1.625%:HE - FIEEREF3 A
248 K% 9 A4 BB FLHIA
202143 H248 # Z=202549 A
24 BE|HES -

ENEERTIEESFRIMER
NALET - BEMISEWME - EXLE
B R2021F12A318 8 2 2 &
/492,190,000 JT(#8 & K & A
R #3,138,007,000 7T ) (20204 :
498,165,000 £ T (HHE R K AR
3,248,434,0007T)) c X T EETY
RAEBENEERES  WRAA
FEEEMEEXREEZERESH
(AR J: s bk SRR Y- 3

5

TRBBOBEERL P — L
RUTEEERAKEEINETHA
AR - IARAEEERR
o CEHAMBERSBENEZRKEE

yom

2o

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s secured bank loans were
pledged by certain investment properties, property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets with net carrying amount
of approximately RMB1,122,200,000, RMB559,398,000 and
RMB1,460,861,000 respectively. The unsecured bank loans are
not pledged and certain of the unsecured bank loans are covered
by several cross guarantee arrangements amongst the Group’s
entities.

On 24 September 2020, the Company issued unsecured notes
with an aggregate principal amount of US$500,000,000 (the “US$
Notes"”). The carrying amount of the US$ Notes at the end of
reporting period is US$496,043,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,162,569,000) (2020: US$495,032,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,228,004,000) and is included in the interest-
bearing borrowings with maturity in the third to fifth years,
inclusive. The US$ Notes bear interest from 24 September 2020
at the rate of 1.625% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrear
on 24 March and 24 September in each year, commencing on 24
March 2021 and will mature on 24 September 2025.

The US$ Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. The fair value of the US$ Notes
as at 31 December 2021, based on the quoted market
price, was US$492,190,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,138,007,000) (2020: US$498,165,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,248,434,000). The US$ Notes are the
unsecured obligations of the Company and they rank at least
equally with other present and future unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations.

Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the ratios of consolidated financial
position, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
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AEBTHEMHBETELIZERN The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants
BEANERHNEREBER IR and the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
BE NEFEEETELEZE $§ not consider it probable that the relevant banks will exercise
FRITZ ERIEEMNER - K& its discretion to demand for repayment so long as the Group
HRSERREENE— T \ﬁﬁ continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
DIRE A SRR T43 - Rl Group's financial management of liquidity risk are set out in note
R AEBLEEREEDAE 43 to the consolidated financial statements. Throughout the
BREMNIE (2020 F - ) o reporting period, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2020: None).
REEZERNE D ZATERER An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s total
BEZ2AHIRET borrowings by type is as follows:
2021 2020
ARMTFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
[&] 7 A1) & At fixed rates 4,535,153 4,914,044
e bl E At floating rates 9,126,660 8,782,490
13,661,813 13,696,534
BEREENATIERESIE The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies:
2021 2020
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#E RMB 480,000 1,567,638
=T Us$ 13,181,813 12,128,896
13,661,813 13,696,534
B £ [ SN R B K M) 2K L B #) E Details of the Group's foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
—HFHE - RSB mKMT43 discussion are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
FHA © statements.
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RERMKTE

AEBERMETE  BERBER
E2Mo5lmthE BEERAES
77 BT A A e SR L RET B o 3B
HASEFEAREEFIZER
FEBZETASLERHERK K
SER X LA E A HR - A
BEEXNTE BEMGEET
BRIRE R ER ZB/H o

RERRGE

ARETAMEAEIEBRERTE
BRI 8 - AREEARBEMH
BI8 B R SE PG BB R 2 3
B o 38332 DL R B AR5 4 B
BEEAANTHFEARR &
SRR B E R S
UREBEREE RN A RS AT
(XHESEDHE - BF 2
BT (R X R EE DR 2021
12 A31 B AR B4 [ AR A K
7

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees
respectively, whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the
PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees other than the monthly
contributions described above.

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for its Taiwan employees.
The Group does not maintain any plan assets and bears the full
cost of all the plan benefits. The benefits are calculated based
on the length of service and average monthly salary for the final
six months of employment. The Group's obligation in respect of
the defined benefit plan is calculated by an independent actuary,
Messrs. Willis Towers Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Willis Towers
Watson"”). The latest actuarial valuation was performed by Willis
Towers Watson as at 31 December 2021 using the projected unit
credit method.
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REBAE (E) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

REBHERTRMNFEREE Y The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial
EXVAZEPBRAEKR Z A position arising from the obligation of the Group in respect of its
MHIBEZE#EWMT : defined benefit plan and their movements in the present value of

defined benefit obligations are as follows:

2021 2020
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 122,166 157,066
RF [EARIE A AN Current service cost (3,735) (7,863)
B Interest expense 3,234 4,173
(501) (3,690)
EXEYERE Remeasurements:
M RERABEEEY Actuarial loss (gain) arising from
BEHE(RE) changes in financial assumptions 3,187 (2,135)
KERTARES ZHE K8 Actuarial loss arising from
experience adjustments 2,465 2,502
5,652 367
EANEEV Benefit payment (47,397) (31,577)
REEH At end of the reporting period 79,920 122,166
BEEENEERRE The significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were:
2021 2020
% %
PR = Discount rate 2.70 3.10
T8 B S BN -1 Expected rate of salary increases 3.00 3.00
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REBFE (E)

REER SEIEREREKNE
T_EEEJQE @J?f E RN B 2 SRk

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to reasonable
possible changes for each significant actuarial assumption as at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2021 2020
RERA FEBAM
BEENRIL BIENEL
Change in Change in
GE k24 defined  REHE(L defined
Change in benefit Change in benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
g = Discount rate +/-0.5% -2.93%/ +-0.5% -2.32%/
+3.10% +2.46%
TEEA S B0 Expected rate of +/-0.5% +2.04%/ +/-0.5% +1.46%/
salary increases -1.93% -1.38%

R ELSMERESEABER
BHMAEAEEREE - MHEMR
BRFAE - EMI5EBRR MDA EE
1B E o fRER Tk - B
AR EDITETA » TBEFERL4
A ERAREERERAEETHIR
18 % 48 8 10 3 H R 75 AR A A 3B 5 R
R (RER ) - A8 A EFE
HHRZXENERANREREATF XA

FEMPREDT ©

ATERANEMEHINEFHHEHRZ
6.10F (20204 : 4.90 %) -

g

REBHENE aE2REFENE
260 R = A RIREF o

The above sensitivity analysis is prepared based on a reasonable
possible change in each actuarial assumption used, with other
assumptions held constant. Other actuarial assumptions may
also change with the above assumptions. Such change is not
accounted for in the above analyses. The projected unit credit
method is used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligations and the related current service cost and where
applicable the past service cost. The same method and the type
of actuarial assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis for the current and previous years.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
is 6.10 years (2020: 4.90 years).

Under the plan, the Taiwan employees are entitled to retirement
benefits on the attainment of a retirement age of 60.
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REBFE (&)

ARAERMABRERFAIE
EARETEIMNESTHERT
EHMHZMAHER - BERITEME
RN IEABIHBE ST

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The Group has no funding arrangement and expects no
contribution to be paid in respect of the defined benefit plan as
the defined benefit plan does not maintain any plan assets. The
expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted pension benefits is
as follows:

2021 2020

AR#FT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

1FRN Within 1 year 15,924 35,667
HBE1TFER2FR More than 1 year but within 2 years 9,660 19,294
A2 FERSFR More than 2 years but within 5 years 10,582 20,134
BiB5F Over 5 years 77,266 102,816
113,432 177,911

7K 4 R HE B B AR 8

The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax

mr liabilities are as follows:
2021 2020
Bt AR¥TFT ABETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 1,148,083 784,251
it — EKEG Additions - business combination (746) —
HEHB QA Disposal of subsidiaries 41 4 (4,787)
MERRAMEDE 2 Withholding tax paid on distributions
B TEIERL of earnings by subsidiaries (333,538) (102,185)
FFAGRE RN Charge to consolidated
income statement 11 117,502 470,804
R&EER At end of the reporting period 931,305 1,148,083
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Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the

FefEmT reporting period represent the following:
2021 2020
BE afE BE a8’
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ARETFRT AR¥FT AEETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
MEBEITE Accelerated depreciation
allowance — (574,183) — (603,222)
MRS E Decelerated depreciation
allowance 2,052 — 2,052 —
RABERE Fair value adjustment on:
—(FREEE — Right-of-use assets and
ME - MR RER property, plant
and equipment — (42,859) — (50,861)
—-BVEE — Intangible asset — (39,677) — (39,677)
—REURHE — Investment properties — (30,117) — (21,292)
—¢@MITA — Financial instruments 152 — 7,061 —
BEEE Impairment losses 80,262 — 82,488 —
REGHERZERER  Un-invoiced accrual 241,424 — 236,551 —
HEME - HER Unrealised profit on property,
BEZARERAE plant and equipment 151,083 — 62,606 —
WA RRDE Withholding tax on undistributed
T2 B earnings of subsidiaries — (723,640) — (822,851)
HBER Tax losses 27,782 — 27,782 —
Hity Others 15,850 (39.434) 10,487 (39,207)
EEBBEEE(BME) Deferred tax assets (liabilities) 518,605  (1,449,910) 429,027  (1,577,110)

BRIBEFBECEMSHE  IEKRE
ERAURPEMOIIEREDERE
SHRBAZB10% M Rk TE
R ZBER2008F1A1B#E
AR AR 2007412 A3181%
5 R2FT R B o i BIBUF
HLRZ SNBI% B & T AR B 3R 5 i [ R
BEEEEFWRE - JEAREK
TR o

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
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AEEM A M E QB A E AR E
55% (20204 : 5%) - AEEIRE
EEBEAREHAEAN R B RPHF
Ay REMEmEHREENRELETR
HAE -

HEHBTFEMNETETFNED A
TERRM T E L A AKHK 183,811,000
TL(2020%F © A K # 183,811,000
) BESEREAHMNTIE - E
ERABBAALEZESR T FMNEA
BUESEEQARIvEEES W E
AR ERTED B - A i I 1
BINEIETR B -

REEHR AEBEHARKE
111,128,000 7L(2020%F : A B #
111,128,000 ) ¥t 7% E 1 W iR 2 i
EMIBEE - BB BERT
HZEBEBRELRBRHARAFHRAZ
Bz e REEH - KRERELT

For the Group's PRC subsidiaries, the applicable rate is 5%
(2020: 5%)). Deferred tax liability is provided on the basis that the
undistributed earnings of the Group's entities are expected to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

The estimated withholding tax effects on the undistributed
earnings (the “Remaining Net Earnings”) is approximately
RMB183,811,000 (2020: RMB183,811,000) which would become
payable when they are distributed. In the opinion of the directors,
the Remaining Net Earnings, at the present time, are required
for financing the continuing operations of these entities and no
distribution would be made in the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
no provisions for additional deferred taxation have been made.

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of RMB111,128,000
(2020: RMB111,128,000) were recognised as at the end of
reporting period. The tax losses can be carried forward for five
years from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against
future taxable income. The expiry years of tax losses with no
deferred tax assets recognised at the end of the reporting date are

MIREE 2 HEERINMFEOMT as follows:
2021 2020
REBEIBRN AREFT AR TFT
Tax loss expiring in: RMB’000 RMB’000
2021 — 275,783
2022 95,894 301,105
2023 66,382 155,343
2024 174,699 313,184
2025 286,318 250,166
2026 318,775 —
942,068 1,295,581
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2021 2020
AR¥TFTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEARRR Trade payables
E=F To third parties 7,420,951 6,733,515
BEB AL To related parties
—ARRARZEEW — A group of companies controlled by
KEERK B B the family members and relatives of
EHIR—AERE the Company'’s directors 1,617,147 1,399,649
NG To joint ventures 8,420 13,810
9,046,518 8,146,974
JENE=7H BEBAL BERQ The trade payables to third parties, related parties, an associate

ANRAERAZENERAEIE
# 2B NMA30EI0RERS -

ENERREEAREZAERRZ
FRECDOMTIAE -

and joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and with credit

period of 30 to 90 days.

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2021 2020
ARETFT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

0-90 H 0 - 90 days 8,364,033 7,243,120
90 BIAE Over 90 days 682,485 903,854
9,046,518 8,146,974
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JEMERFUATHIEETIE The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:
2021 2020
ARETFT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 8,825,620 8,144,649
ETT us$ 1,458 2,141
BT HK$ 219,440 184
9,046,518 8,146,974
2021 2020
ARETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Bl e Deposits received in advance 2,070,566 1,943,924
B SENMES Accruals for transportation,
BR R promoting and advertising expenses 4,912,027 5,184,310
THERRAEMEE Accruals for administrative expenses and
B A2 TEIR other operating expenses 650,254 684,131
BN T ENREHNE Salaries and welfare payables 947,298 1,220,365
FEAS RR A SR Payables for purchase of equipment 241,143 170,885
JEAT B AR R I8 Other tax payables 236,213 281,638
FEAT T2 Interest payable 29,950 21,707
& D BRR R AR Dividends payable to non-controlling interests 902 39
Hth Others 504,978 572,279
9,593,331 10,079,278
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2021 2020
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R B A Profit before taxation 5,808,643 6,531,912
FMEEMA Interest expenses 223,494 348,639
FEUEA Interest income (783,501) (667,617)
e Depreciation 3,134,163 3,141,629
LFVPLEREMN SR EE Dividend income from financial assets
Z BRI A at FVPL (2,522) (135)
BEEE 7 BH Amortisation of intangible assets 7,513 6,403
HEME - R kRE Loss on disposal of property, plant
REAEEEBE and equipment and right-of-use assets 29,527 77,332
Y - IR R ERERERETE  Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment — 66,191
RFVPLEREMNSRAE Change in fair value of financial liabilities
NABEZZEFE at FVPL, net — 285
KEHFHEANEEB Change in fair value of investment properties
kL) (35,400) (200)
LFVPLIRIEM S REE Change in fair value of financial assets
NABEZE at FVPL 21,239 40,905
Wi B W Gain on bargain purchase (7,967) —
HERB AR Z W Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (208,750) (118,069)
JEMREE AT KA E AR Share of results of an associate
E and joint ventures (121,824) (130,436)
fEREEH) 7 o & Effect on exchange rate changes 19,287 (80,564)
RINAEZEERM T Recognition of equity-settled
2 IE share-based payment 5,075 15,988
FEZ(EmMmmL (Increase) Decrease in inventories (1,341,002) 97,399
JFE BT BR 51 2 38 0 Increase in trade receivables (440,287) (13,442)
BNREREMEUFIE  (ncrease) Decrease in prepayments
2 (38hn)m and other receivables (609,702) 349,023
JE S AR 3R 2 38 00 Increase in trade payables 962,435 474,046
HibEMFRAEREWIFE  Decrease in other payables
2R and deposits received (208,459) (225,091)
=P IR RIE 2 AN Increase in advance payments from customers 982,036 551,019
IR ETEFEMEIRE  Decrease in present value of
s unfunded employee benefit obligations (47,898) (35,267)
KEEKFBEE Cash generated from operations 7,386,100 10,429,950
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37(a) MEEBELNARHER

TERFALAEERAMETS

R ERS

@%fﬁi&#ﬁ

ﬁyiﬁé\/ﬁgi*){fﬁ%mbﬁ ’

37(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities

are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows

BEREBGARESRERTP will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
SR AR EEHELENIRS R cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
2o
ERDE
&L
(Hiet36)
Dividend
HEEE [REARE payable
(Kt 16) (Hiit32) RITEXR to non-
Lease  Unsecured (#f#£32)  controlling
liabilities notes  Banks loans interests @t
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
RW2021E181A At 1 January 2021 316,800 3,228,004 10,468,530 39 14,013,373
FHREM Net cash flows
(B, (i), i) (Notes (1), (i), (i) (206,673) — 260,363 (463,040) (409,350)
Bt#5 - Other changes:
BHF B Amortised interest expenses 16,578 6,513 — — 23,091
MERE New leases 256,738 — — — 256,738
HEBIT 22 Effect on lease modification (18,735) — — — (18,735)
HENE AR Disposal of subsidiaires
(Biit41) (Note 41) (9,669) — — — (9,669)
Rl Dividend declared — — — 463,903 463,903
ERER Exchange realignment — (71,948) (229,649) — (301,597)
R2021%512831H At31December 2021 355,039 3,162,569 10,499,244 902 14,017,754
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37(a) METHELENABHE(Z) 37(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (Continued)

R OH

R AR A

(Hizt36)

Dividend

HERE ERERZEE payable

(Wat1e)  (Wit32) RITER to non-

lease  Unsecured (fi£32)  controlling
liabilities notes  Banks loans interests st
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total
ANEETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000

R2020F1 A1H At 1 January 2020 487,556 — 12,374,459 33,678 12,895,693
FREM Net cash flows
(K (), i), (i) (Notes (1), (i), (ii)) (198,740) 3,369,999  (1,074,329) (399,145) 1,697,785

g - Other changes:

BERIS T Amortised interest expenses 18,399 1,673 — — 20,072

e New leases 160,885 — — — 160,885

HEBIT 2 FE Effect on lease modification (26,132) — — — (26,132)

HEMBLA Disposal of subsidiaires (125,168) — — — (125,168)

BHEKA Dividend declared — — — 365,506 365,506

EHER Exchange realignment — (143,668) (831,600) — (975,268)

2020412 A31H At 31 December 2020 316,800 3,228,004 10,468,530 39 14,013,373

(i) THEBBENFRERRESF (i) The net cash flows from lease liabilities represent the
AL NEEgEZARE KF payment of capital element and interest of lease liabilities.
BEBS o

iy SBIOTERFAEHE  RTL (i) The net cash flows from unsecured notes and bank loans
HEMEREEZRE  E4E make up the net amount of proceeds from bank borrowings,
R FEE ) R BEITEK repayments of bank and other borrowings, net movement of
HERZEME  BRER other short-term borrowings and net proceeds from issuance
REBERBITERNER S of unsecured notes.
//\LE

(i) FERLHBREOHRERFR (i) The net cash flows from dividend payable to non-controlling
EREEFAIMNDERE interests represent dividends paid to non-controlling interests
RIS ° during the year.
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M ARGERE EMIMmIEE 22 In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
SRERELAIN ARy AREEERES the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
BB ATETZEALSHE « It following material related party transactions in the ordinary course
ERGTRAEB A B ERETE of the Group's business.
17 e
2021 2020
otz3 AREFT ANEEFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
() BEBALZRS (@)  Related party transactions
BTHARHEER Sales of goods to:
ADRZ EBR RS Companies controlled by a substantial
a4 VNS] shareholder of the Company () 142,813 151,540
NG An associate 29,306 36,855
BENT Joint ventures 859,768 544,303
BTRIARBEER Purchases of goods from:
ARREFYL A group of companies controlled by
REKE LB the family members and relatives
Z— 4R of the Company’s directors () 6,534,137 5,350,961
i YN An associate 32,928 54,981
ARERH Joint ventures 50,370 59,456
BRIARZFRHEER Promotional expenses paid to:
ARRZEFERFES 2 Companies controlled by a substantial
4PN shareholder of the Company (i) 32,566 44,758
BT 5 ARKRK R E Administrative expenses paid on
THER: behalf and received from:
BENTA Joint ventures 1,770 8,536
@ 52 B R & 1 Rental income from investment
EHERNE  #BER properties and property,
FE2HE plant and equipment
ARAZ FERRIEHZ Companies controlled by a substantial
C4VNG shareholder of the Company 42,254 42,156
RRRZEERY A company controlled by
REMKE RAB IR the family members and relatives of
VNG the Company's directors 3,087 3,189
B T 5 AR EHA Distribution costs paid to:
ARREEYL A group of companies controlled by
REKE RFBEEH the family members and relatives of
Z—H#RE the Company'’s directors () 1,819,826 670,322
Biat() BELETRBIE14AE  %EHE Note (i) These related party transactions also constitute continuing
BRAMAT 2 XS IR ERE connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
R e Rules.
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(b) BEREEBEAECHSE (b) Key management personnel remuneration
REBRRBEEAB ZHS Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
(BHREGEAMBHRERMT 100 including amounts paid to the Company’s directors, chief
WERAANTES  THEHR executive officer and certain of the highest paid employees
YNZZERADE TES5HE as disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial
Bz mT statements, is as follows:

2021 2020

AR¥TFTT ABEFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

=Yk Directors’ fees 3,512 4,345

e MEMNE Salaries and other emoluments 39,898 69,766

VAR 321+ 2 SR8 Share-based payments 2,813 14,469

TE4T Discretionary bonuses 17,250 23,039
RRE T RIETH  Retirement payments and

RIRE TR R contributions to pension scheme 7,470 —

70,943 111,619

ZEEER 2017 FREMIMNE EH The amount represents the remaining portion of the cash

IR RERSIR S W BRI I D - FEH consideration in acquiring HZPS's equity interest in 2017 as

REFEMIERRME19 - FBEER detailed in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements which

THEPR 2022 FHIELES - is expected to be settled not later than the end of 2022.
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FERNEEETENERE AR S 155 The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
NEFEADBE(TEIERNREF AL decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
MEBLEENES))INT : liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during

the year are as follows:

2021 2020

ARMTF T ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

REH] At beginning of the year 2,360,954 1,809,935
ERAMA Recognised as revenue (2,360,954) (1,809,935)
WBIR RN EWMHTERF Receipt of advances of undelivered goods 3,342,990 2,360,954
REER At end of the reporting period 3,342,990 2,360,954
R2021F12 A31H X2020%12 A At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the advance
318 BERBENREBEREER—FR payments from customers are expected to be recognised as

HRRBA - revenue within one year.

FA - AEBEEBEEREIEZ=FF During the year, the Group entered into several sales and
VHHhEEWHZE REEETH purchase agreements with certain independent third parties for
BRI IREREZHIRE - B the disposal of the partial and entire equity interests in several
EEZHEIRERNTK © T A EH subsidiaries. These disposals were completed during the year.
ER HENBARKREBEAR Upon the completion of the above disposals, total gain on the
# 208,750,000 TEFF AB=E & disposal of subsidiaries of RMB208,750,000 was recognised in
RERIRA R BEERES TR profit or loss, of which a gain of RMB69,732,000 was resulted
BRARIZAO%REBETMEEAR from recognition of 40% equity interests retained in several
#569,732,000 L 2 W5 - REB = former subsidiaries at their fair value at the date when control is
EEANTIRERGESAERARE loss from the partial disposal of these subsidiaries. The retained
FVWPLEEMeMEEYCAE BRI interests were recognised as financial assets at FVPL at the date
EEHHE  c ZEFLTHRAESD when control is lost and were fully disposed of before the end
RABEDZEZRBREAZLFNE of the reporting period. The fair value of these unlisted equity
EFHEERE - securities was determined with reference to the net assets value of

the underlying equity securities.
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BATS 8 4t Us BB AU (B S A & & B B The following summarises the aggregate consideration received
BE;MBEMNEREIDESR and the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at the
respective date of disposal:
s
Total
ABREFIT
RMB’000
FIEENFEE(AE) Net assets (liabilities) disposed of
M - HERRE Property, plant and equipment 439,585
PRAEEE Right-of-use assets 63,994
EBEEE Intangible assets 17,159
JrE LT AR SR Trade receivables 66,318
BLEHIBEE Deferred tax assets 4
FE Inventories 19,977
TE A5 R IE I E h FE UK IE Prepayments and other receivables 20,204
RITEHR MRS Bank balance and cash 25,531
IR Taxation (4,504)
HERE Lease liabilities (9,669)
FET AR X Trade payables (65,512)
HAb R HRIEREWIFE Other payables and deposit received (361,817)
211,770
S BB A R R MGG F 5 Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 208,750
REBER 2 AAEE Fair value on retained interests (96,000)
324,520
2R E Consideration received
HERE Cash consideration 276,520
el Deposits received in advance 48,000
324,520
HEHBARZRERAFE Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
RERE Cash consideration 276,520
BHEZREeRASEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (25,531)
ReRBREEENZRNTE Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents 250,989
HEHB QR WS ZHER ¢ Reconciliation of gain on disposal of subsidiaries:
REBMER 2 5 F Gain on retained interests 69,732
HEMBARF KR Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 139,018
HEMBRARWE(HLS8) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 8) 208,750
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AEBNEAEEREZESHEELRASE The Group's objectives on managing capital are to safeguard the
BEFELENR D ARERMED Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
WmEAEMEDERETZE - returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.
AREBFERABEFABHRIRAES R The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
HeEBYWhEHATHERNTE components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the basis
EE)GENFEGEHEE RN R(E of net debt (interest-bearing borrowings net of cash and cash
BARNTIRREGERAOLE) LB equivalents and long-term time deposits) as a ratio of the equity
REEN(BIEMAERED) o B attributable to owners of the Company. As at 31 December 2021,
2021F 128318 AEEFEF the Group takes into account of the long-term time deposits in
BEEHEARALEXFIERATEHER calculating the gearing ratio because the management believes
FAEERE AEBRERALE that this calculation basis reflect the capital structure of the Group
HEFEMRM B AER 2 B R more accurately. As a result of the above changes, comparative
oAU EEE . 27| 2R figures presented have also been restated to conform to current
BOENWNTRFAERNEES R T - year's presentation. The debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the
WEHRERERLL O T ¢ reporting period was as follows:
2021 2020
ARETFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(#EEZ)
(Restated)
BEEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 13,661,813 13,696,534
B BHekBEeSEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents and long-term
K R HIE B time deposits (21,961,138)  (23,866,153)
FHE Net cash (8,299,325) (10,169,619)
RREIRER L B Total equity attributable to owners
of the Company 18,659,976 21,112,724
FREEEARL R Gearing ratio -44.48% -48.17%
AEERREBCEBNERLEH The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
BREHBRAMEREEALE I structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity
BRELSBRRNDERABEE RS balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according
B O EBARERS EERERE to changes in economic conditions for achieving its objectives
%o BOHEBUALRRERN LM through payment of dividends, retire of existing debts, issue of
MPEMLE  ZEMHEENEX new debts and sales of lands and properties not in use. Changing
HE) > RREATEMEE K - of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and

investment opportunities are taken into consideration.

720214 - A& E 8K EL2020 During 2021, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
FHE BEMFEERESEZTN 2020, aims at keeping the net debt approximately to nil.
A o
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AEBAFANS R T ARYINE
R FERER - EERR RS
EeRR- AREAEES AR
g BEEIRARTHRRELY
R-BFERNLBABERAZAR
BEHRMT

SNERR

AEBHHMHBAREZAPBRK
g2 FTEUARBEZSEE - K
& B FrE # R SNE BB A BR AN A A
HEMBAR ZEEE B A - LA
EMEBEXINENERASL
RERTESR BEEE K
FVPLEZ IR )& B0 & 2 I B2 75 g B

THEREE o

ARBEITHABBETHEA
RARATHE M 2 5ME B B AR B &
- AREBEOKHBRARMNEEZE
BREMPININEERET  RE
AELLEININERRTESEX
RBEE REAARERBET
B REIE B DA R SNE R o

REBE R 2021 K& 2020412 A 31
HIUAINE(JEAREE ) ETER L FVPL
RENEREE BHaekBaSE
Y- BEBERENERFED R
BRERE B EMEE22, 26, 32 &
35

The Group's financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board
of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a
minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
interest-bearing borrowings, financial assets at FVPL and related
party balances that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from daily operating activities of the
subsidiaries because their main operations are conducted in their
functional currency. During the year, the Group has not entered
into significant hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to
foreign currency risk.

Details of the Group’s financial assets at FVPL, cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
denominated in currencies other than RMB as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 are set out in notes 22, 26, 32 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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SNERB(E)

ﬁé,ﬁiai WP E B BUR BT
B oMARBELBREL ARK
m@ﬁé%&)\ﬁ%ﬂﬁ@kmn al
FH1E 8 1E0.9%  0.7% K 2.5%
(2020%F : 7 B #2.1% * 0.3% &
3.4%) NEEEEEFRRE S
¥ 15 8 A A R ¥ 960,000 7T

(2020 F : AR#603,0007T) °

HREIMBRRINERLBERNEE
FHEREZEHTEARAEEMAR
EZEIHW_EZ%@IEE’UE%EL

P Al BB (R RIE A K )
1%%T“‘% Mz BEgRREEE
AHEINE R MERNBARNE T —FE
HMERZARRER 2B - oW

HAEH 2020 F4[R °

FEER

AEETIEMENNEARZRE
RUTEHRLRBEEESASERY
MR - ZEFRIRITER LT
PHNEXAERRESASERHRS
MEMNERR HRESMEE K
SENRBEEREEERELEE
REEEREEMNIREERERE

BE ) -
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Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of RMB/
US$, RMB/NTD and RMB/EUR had strengthened/weakened by
0.9%, 0.7% and 2.5% respectively (2020: 2.1%, 0.3% and
3.4% respectively) with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit for the year and retained profits would have been
RMB960,000 (2020:RMB603,000) higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to Group's exposure
to currency risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The stated changes in foreign currency represent
management'’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the next annual end
of the reporting period. The analysis was performed on the same
basis for 2020.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's bank balances and interest-
bearing borrowings. Bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. For interest-bearing borrowings, the
Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate exposure
and the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings in
consideration of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the
Group.
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FEER (E)

HR - REBEWRETEKREFE
B UEABRERERAABEN
MERR - NEEH AEEEE
JE Al & 2 & R B33% (2020 F -
36%) -

REER - WAIAEMEERET
g UETRARBHNEZRITE
HBEREEEBENESRAA AR
75(20204F - 25) . 40(20204F : 10)
HE AEEEEEMNRREE
B A 18 0 A R #8 3,029,000
TL(20204F : 1E 1 76 b A R
2,839,0005T) °

BRESMBRENNERFALIRE
BWEARAEERFANFE R
THBRBEEENFERR - L
EXRAREIBEZRITEHREE
EEEDRAALAEKIS(2020
F 25)2&40(2020f£ S10) H B
REEBEFGNERBARET —
FEAEAZAGELEZE8 - 1t
DHTEAEE 2020 FAEF ©
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Interest rate risk (Continued)

During the year, the Group has not entered into significant
hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group's borrowings at fixed rate of interest was 33% (2020:
36%).

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates of bank
balances and interest-bearing borrowings denominated in US$
and RMB had been 75 (2020: 25) and 40 (2020. 10) basis point
higher/lower respectively and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits
would decrease/increase by RMB3,029,000 (2020: increase/
decrease by RMB2,839,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the year and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for bank
balances and interest-bearing borrowings in existence during the
year. The 75 (2020: 25) and 40 (2020: 10) basis point increase or
decrease on the bank balances and interest-bearing borrowings
dominated in US$ and RMB respectively represent management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The
analysis was performed on the same basis for 2020.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to long-term
time deposits, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables. Substantially all of the Group’s long-term time
deposits and cash and cash equivalents were deposited in the
creditworthy global financial institutions and state-controlled
financial institutions in the PRC, which management considers
they are without significant credit risk. The carrying amount of
financial assets recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position, which is net of loss allowance, represents the
Group's exposure to credit risk without taking into account the
value of any collateral held or other credit enhancements.
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EERE (£) Credit risk (Continuea)
JEW AR Trade receivables
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The majority of the Group's sales are conducted on a cash-before-
delivery basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade
on credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject
to periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.

The Group's customer base consists of a wide range of clients
and the trade receivables are categorised by common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade
receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. The expected loss rate used in the Group's
estimation on ECL is calculated for each category based on actual
credit loss experience over the past three years and adjusted for
current and forward-looking factors to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's
estimate on future economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables. The management considered that these factors
do not indicate any significant credit risk and additional loss
allowance for provision for trade receivables as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 to be insignificant. There was no change in the
estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the
year.
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Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
trade receivables based on past due status as at 31 December

2021 and 2020 are summarised below.

As at 31 December 2021

BIREE FEEEHE
Gross carrying

amount Credit-impaired
AR¥FT

RMB’000
REH Not past due 1,554,166 No
SR ERERE Past due but not impaired
30 R Within 30 days 139,087 No
31-90 K 31 -90 days 235,284 No
#B38 90 X Over 90 days 115,207 No
2,043,744

7202012 A31H

As at 31 December 2020

MREREE FEEXE
Gross carrying
amount  Credit-impaired

ARETT

RMB'000
REIHA Not past due 1,480,720 No
SEEERERE Past due but not impaired
30 KA Within 30 days 76,515 No
31-90 kX 31 - 90 days 59,673 No
#8390 X Over 90 days 43,481 No
1,660,389
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EERE (£) Credit risk (Continuea)
JEW AR (42 ) Trade receivables (Continued)
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HIE AR ENEREERES T8
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The trade receivables as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 that were
past due but not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group. The
Group had not impaired these debtors as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the directors believed that
the amounts would be fully receivable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables as at
31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Amounts due from an associate, joint ventures and related parties

REBRABEWHE A NT 5%1D The Group considers that the amounts due from an associate,
ENMEBEEALRE EH2EH joint ventures and related parties, no matter it is trade receivable
FH&TAIEjzétff%fﬂﬂl C BN or non-trade receivable, have low credit risk based on the

SEFHBRKE]  UREHEAY

Bem RHEEBMNENRRER
MiEERREAE - UGS LRIBH
B 12MEAMECLETE » I ik
TRBARBEO - 20219412 A
318 RBEERZEATNEKRSE
HEMEINEER B TERN o

counterparties’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default. Impairment
on amounts due from these parties is measured on 12-month ECL
and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. At 31 December
2021, the additional loss allowance for provision for amounts due
from these parties was insignificant.
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FERR(Z)
JEWE L FIE ML JEW K

7N 5 [ 4 e W B A R B A W FkIE
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SHEHEE ©

EHETECLE - AEEEERIIER
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MR BENES - BREEE -
REERTEMERETARE  BBE
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BHABME  URESEBRTEN
BOEX AEEMNEREEZED
BMBRR - EREE  REHEFHM
BEMEEL - RAEAGLESHE
EMNECLETEARN - FALEHER
MR ERBERZE L -

REER  AEBECZEKRER+TE
EREREHEANEESTRRE
66.67% (2020 F - 73.33% ) & & UK
AREBANEESHERE 100%
(20204 : 100%) °

Credit risk (Continued)
Loan and other receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment on loan and other
receivables from various parties based on 12-month ECL. The
credit risk of the Group's loan and other receivables arises from
default of the counterparties, with maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these receivables. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessments of the credit quality.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience and the financial
position of the counterparties, past collection history, current
creditworthiness, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are
specific to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
industry in which the counterparties operate, in estimating the
probability of default of these financial assets, as well as the
loss upon default in each case. The management of the Group
considers the ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant
after taking into account the financial position, quality of the
counterparties and past settlement records. There was no change
in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration
of credit risk as 66.67% (2020: 73.33%) of loan receivables which
was due from the Group’s largest debtor, and 100% of loan
receivables (2020: 100%,) was due from the Group’s five largest
debtors.
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TEE S R Liquidity risk
TEEHERRBHESRREERE 2 The Group's objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
BZAEBECHRSHEBIUANER maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
T IZEREZEREREE - I credit facilities. Also, the Group's policy is to regularly monitor
B AEBTFTHERBAERTERE current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular those
REBEESER - tﬁﬁ;§$5ﬁ§& relating to capital expenditure and repayments of debts. At the
EEEEZEFENESEK- end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected that
HEHEABRMRK  BEEE Hﬂz!x the Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.

%.Iﬂm@]éfﬁﬂ PR

AEBEZ2REBEREEHEZESY The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
FEBE S THEESDOAITIRIR the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments
EREBVIRMAT ¢ is summarised below:

1€ L 2L

1515 BE2FR  BESFR

BEREHR  Morethan  More than

Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but SENL

1 year or within less than Over &t
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
ARBTFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

20215128318 At 31 December 2021

JETBRSR Trade payables 9,046,518 — — — 9,046,518

Hit R 5E Rk Other payables and
B deposits received 8,409,820 — — — 8,409,820
HEAR Lease liabilities 171,452 115,503 84,001 9,555 380,511
BEfEE Interest-bearing borrowings 7,452,251 2,221,916 4,324,734 — 13,998,901
Hivnsak Other current liabilities 40,000 — — — 40,000
FENSBRE Contingent consideration payable 9,959 — — — 9,959
25,130,000 2,337,419 4,408,735 9,555 31,885,709
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EHZE2021F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

Liquidity risk (Continued)

16U E 2FENE
TERs BmR2EFA BESFA
BRENEHR  Morethan  More than
Within Tyearbut 2 years but SEUE
1 year or within less than Over A&t
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
AREFT  AREFT AR+ AREFT AREFT
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

2020512 A318 At 31 December 2020

FEITEER Trade payables 8,146,974 — — — 8146974

HibENRER Other payables and
[REeEn deposits received 8,556,834 — — — 8,556,834
HEARE Lease liabilities 111,945 92,156 110,948 32,184 347,233
BEREE Interest-bearing borrowings 6,045,085 2,776,422 5,259,624 122,619 14,203,750
HithmEa g Other current liabilities 40,000 — — — 40,000
BT BHRE Contingent consideration payable 9,959 — — — 9,959
22,910,797 2,868,578 5,370,572 154,803 31,304,750

ERGEeEE —RETERALE
BHBERTEEAERERKEE
RGN - BB EeBEALE W
BREAMRERERIERN BEE
EWTEHEEASTEEAZRE
REEFR - AR ®1,372,584,000
TL(2020%F - A B #1,172,080,000
T)RBEERB R LA XEE - %
LEEENERERBRENFHE
LU

The amounts repayable under loan agreements that include a
clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the
loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” bracket.
In this regard, interest-bearing borrowings of RMB1,372,584,000
(2020: RMB1,172,080,000) as at the end of the financial period
have been so classified even though the directors do not expect
that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand repayment
and thus these borrowings would be repaid according to the
following schedule as set out in the loan agreements:

2021 2020
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEERRE Interest-bearing borrowings
1R Within 1 year 1,381,697 1,180,955
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(a) URABEIERNSREERERE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

T & 2 % R2021F12 A 31 The following table presents the financial assets and

A REAVERELENSE liabilities measured at fair value or required to disclose their

1BRIAABESE I MET fair value in these consolidated financial statements on a

NAREBESHRHEN=ZEE recurring basis at 31 December 2021 across the three levels

M AAREBEFTENEE of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value

R ERREEAEBED Measurement, with the fair value measurement categorised

tRMEEHAE  ANBES in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is

ENOREHTIENRE BT significant to the entire measurement. The levels are defined

EEEATEBZHANGRESE as follows:

W BEASHFFBHT

— WA (EEER) A& - Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
B it E B AR active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
TELLEREENEBED Group can access at the measurement date;
WMEBECRKERAE)

- BA2:BREEEE—R - Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
BIFR(ESN - ATEESEE within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
BREERBENH liability, either directly or indirectly;

A

- B3 (HEERR) - EBE —  Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
BR7EERBENER or liability.

Ao
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LAABHIEHNSHEERERE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
202 2020
HEIR #52 A3 CH iGN gah #513 Aif
Level1 Level2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMBU0O  RMBUOO  RMBU00  RMBUAO | AMBUOD — AMBUOOO  RMBUOO  AMBOOD
BE Assets
KRPLEEG2EEE  Financial assets at FUPL
-REES - Investment funds - - 626,707 626,707 711,104 - 558177 1,329,281
- LTREES - Equity securitie, lsted 194 - - 194 198 - - 198
EEROC Designated FVOC
-FLTRAES - Equity securites, unlited - SR £/ 1V VK - — 14044 140444
194 - 764,024 764,218 711,302 - 698,621 1469923
8 Liabilities
BRREESZEEE  Fnancal labilties at FUPL
~ERYERE - Contingent consideration payable - - 9,959 9,959 - - 9,959 9,959
- - 9,959 9,959 - - 9,959 9,959

R2021FE R2020FE R - R
BHEEAERANIELR2 2
% NS BHEEBREERT
SRR EL -

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value

measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair

value measurements.
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(a) HUAABEIENLREERERE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(%) (Continued)
R2021F K 2020 F N FH E H The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
ERAREBEFESEALTS measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
HEEME s T hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020

are shown as follows:

2021 2020
BE 8 BE &
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BFPLEE RFVPLER
MEmEE  EEFVOC MeREE  EEAOd
Designated Designated
FVPL Fvodl FVPL Fvodl
ktm FEft b et
REEs R&E S AERE REAS RAES FARE
Equity  Contingent Equity ~ Contingent
Investment securities,  consideration Investment securities,  consideration
funds unlisted payable funds unlisted payable

ARRTE  ARETR  AREFZ  ARETT  ARETT  ARETL
RMBOO)  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  AMBUOO  RMBOOD  AMBUOO

HER) At beginning of the year 558,177 140,444 (0959) 425698 115,614 (9,674)
BA/TE Purchases/additions 103,187 - - 428916 - -
HE Disposal (1,528) — — (202,779) - -
BSI2UEE (BB)  Total gains or (losses)
recognised:
-B& ~in profit or loss (20,747) — — (38,999) - (285)
-Ef2ENE - in other comprehensive
income — — — — 32,456 —
Bz Exchange difference (12,382) (3127) — (54,659) (7,626) -
REER At the end of
the reporting period 626,707 137,317 (9,959 558,177 140,444 (9,959)
REEEHAEZEER  Changein unrealised
REFARENES gains or (losses) for
AR (6 ) the year included in
288

profit or loss for
assets and liabilities
held at the end of
the reporting period

(21467)

12423

(285)
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(a) UAABEIENLREEREE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
FERERBIZZAABEFEZM Valuation techniques used in Level 3 fair value
EH A measurement
() FHFVPLEEH G EE (i) Financial assets at FVPL: Investment funds

FRZERSNAR(E
ERERNEERREAER
BERREERECREE
SEEFEREREZE
TR ENRBNRE
BRFfE - AR 2
BEREASHBRE EHREM
FLHRE - LHREW
NREEMEEZEMS
WE - MIFLTRENRD
nEERHERESEE
MR BIEATHEEER K
FEEBEEI/SENME
Bty EE 5 (20204 =
HER L FEEBEZX
F) - FHEFE LT ARIH
NI EERERE LR
ABREMIGEBRHL TS
RZBRE  BREMFE
BRERAILBARZF
TR o

The fair value of these investment funds in Level 3 is
mainly estimated either based on the net asset value
of the investment fund reported to the investors by
the investment manager or the fair values of the
companies invested by the funds as at the end of
the reporting period. All of the investment funds in
Level 3 included both listed investments and unlisted
investments. The fair values of listed investments are
estimated with reference to quoted market price, while
the fair values of unlisted investments are estimated
by the respective investment managers using valuation
techniques including mainly price-to-sales (P/S) ratio
model and net asset value approach (2020: price-to-
sales (P/S) ratio model and net asset value approach).
In determining the fair value of unlisted investments,
it includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates and comparable companies’
average price-to-sales (P/S) ratio.
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(@) HUAREEIIRNEREERER

(%)

ERERBIZZARBEFEZMA
EEM (&)

(ir)

(iff)
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques used in Level 3 fair value
measurement (Continued)

(ir)

(i)

Designated FVOCI: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in Level
3 are mainly determined by the investment manager
using price-to-sales (P/S) ratio model. In determining
the fair value of the unlisted equity securities, it
includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates and comparable companies’
average price-to-sales (P/S) ratio.

Financial liabilities at FVPL: Contingent consideration
payable

The fair value of contingent consideration payable in
Level 3 is determined by using the income approach
based on the expected payment amounts and their
associated probabilities. When appropriate, it is
discounted to present value. In the opinion of the
directors, changing one or more of the inputs to
reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not
change the fair value significantly.
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URABEIRNEREERAR ()

(%)

TETTEHEERARANELER
EBREZE2S

(a)

MABRABEFAEZETESD
ABRBAEANELESR

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Quantitative information of the significant
unobservable inputs used and sensitivity to changes in
significant unobservable inputs

The quantitative information of the significant unobservable
inputs and sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable

MRREZEHWMT inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
MEBERAEE
KEERE
haEEENTE
R E Impact on fair
1283182 value and
MEE the Group's total
Fair value T\E{E%M@%MME%ME comprehensive
at 31 December (BRRURERRTE) income for
wy  HERE Sensitvity of far value to changes AEHTREE the year
i JggFr  Valution  FAEEHA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NREET
Description AMBO00  techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AMB 000
BRPLRENSREE
Financial assets at FVPL
BEgs 626707 TREEE RHEEREY ERREERENR  ADAREME  R2AR: 45 % 42,286
Investment funds PIS ratio model  Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 0% the fair value and vice versa;
THBRA THHHE THEAR TTEEES  ARAREER +-50% 435,357
0652082 R
Average P/S ratio of comparable  The higher the average P/S ratio of comparable
companies ranging from companies, the higher the fair value and vice verss;
0.65100.82 times
FAEEEE MAEELAEBREAGE FEELIEAARESR  EFEOAREHE  BH1%E4- %% H4-432
(T#8E]) 41339
Net asset Fair value of individual assest less ~ The higher the estimated fair vlue of the Net Assets, the Ranging from Ranging from
vlue approach liablities (the “Net Assets”) ~ higher the estimated fai value 1% to 4 3% H43210
#1339
fEEROCl
Designated FVOCI
$ FRAEE 137317 WHERY  BEFERE0 ERREEREEE  ADABEHR R4 +-5% 4583
Equity securities, unlisted PIS ratio model ~ Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 0% the fair value and vice versa;
BRI % ApRAA HaT RS - ARAEEER 4-43% 471428

RO82G
Average P/S ratio of comparable
companies of 0.82 times

R
The higher the average P/S ratio of comparable
companies, the higher the fair value and vice versa;
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(a) UDABEIIENESREERER (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(%) (Continued)
FEFUBERAGHANELER Quantitative information of the significant
RERESEE (£Z) unobservable inputs used and sensitivity to changes in
significant unobservable inputs (Continued)
MEEREZE
KEERE
gt tolip 7
R2020E Impact on fair
1283182 value and
DB the Group’s total
Fair value TTRERANRBHDARENRRR comprehensive
at 31 December (BRRURERETE) income for
w0 HERE Sensitvity of fair value to changes RENTREE the year
i JggFr  Valuation  FTEEEA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NREET
Description ABO00  techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AMB000
BRPLRENSREE
Financial assets at FVPL
hEES 598177 WEERE  BEEERE-10% ERREMARENR  EDAREMS  R2AA: 45 % 42,624
Investment funds PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of -10% the fair value and vice versa;
PV PAREL 2 AyEAT HamEkES - ALAERER +-50% 423,849
BONEITE R
Average P/S ratio of comparable  The higher the average P/S ratio of comparable
companies ranging from companies, the higher the fair value and vice verss;
0.99 10 1.17 times
FAEEEE MAEELABREAGE FEEZTMLABEHER ERLABEHR  A+M%EH-S% B4-423F4H,58
([FEE))
Net asset Fair value of individual assest less ~ The higher the estimated fair value of the Net Assets, the Ranging from Ranging from
vlue approach liablities (the “Net Assets”) ~ higher the estimated fai value H1% o4 5% 44231041528
fEERvoCl
Designated FVOCI
§FrRAES 140444 THEEY  BEFERE-10% EREMIREME  ARRBEES  RMR- 4-5% 4620
Equity securities, unlisted PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of -10% the fair value and vice versa;
PV PAREL 2 TARAT T HEER  EAAEELR +-43% 447,698
1176 Rz
Average P/S ratio of comparable  The higher the average P/S ratio of comparable
companies of 1.17 times companies, the higher the fair value and vice versg;
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(a) UDABEIIENSREERER (@) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(%) (Continued)
RBI3DAEBEFENHERRE Valuation processes used in Level 3 fair value

measurement

NE B LB EEN ST In estimating the fair value of investment fund and unlisted
BREBGHAZEAHERTR 3 equity securities within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,
AR EE S NIEETIRAFE the Group uses market observable-data to the extent it is
HZRAREE BRA1EA available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
TRERSG  AEBREBAES obtains the valuations provided by the respective investment
KRR EAEEARNSGKRER managers or trust administrator for the investment funds.
©2fhE -
7N & [E /9 B 7S BB B HE — {8 B B The Group's finance department includes a team that
BERHEREESMIREFE reviews the valuations performed by the investment
HEAEEEBEAURBHREAR managers or trust administrator of the investment funds for
HETHEE - ZBE X EE R financial reporting purposes. The team reports directly to
EREEERSL MEERE - the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes
WEESHIRERKIESEEE and results are held between the management, investment
BAHRTGERENEReS managers or trust administrator of the investment funds at
TR VBT IR o MBI least once every year. At each financial year end, the finance
SESETBRFERIEEES department works closely with the investment managers or
HREREESEAERE AT trust administrator of the investment funds to establish the
Bl & AR & BEiAE Mg appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation
ARGHERE BEMEETE models, verifies all major unobservable inputs in the
MR ERE A - B FEFER valuations, assesses valuations movements when compared
BEREEH oM GBS IR to the prior year valuation report and holds discussions
KREESCHRELESETE with the investment managers or trust administrator of the
AR o investment funds.

(b) HUAABEUMIENSBIAERD (b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at

nEE

EERA ASELEAMS
BEERABBEMNEEEREELRN
202112 A3 HM AR EE
BERER -

other than fair value

In the opinion of the directors, no other financial assets
and liabilities of the Group are carried at amount materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2021.
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In addition to the commitments disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has the commitments

BRAGAETEREREMITMHIFE
ZHEYE  NEBBFTHEPE

as follow:
B HAE Capital expenditure commitments
2021 2020
AR®FT ARETFT
EHENEES T Contracted but not provided for: RMB’000 RMB’000
BEME  HER Expenditures on property,
B3 plant and equipment 990,797 672,014

REBEARDENRERE - ARAH
B R R EEEZZ2BIIRIAT

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the Company
and the movements in its reserves are set out below:

2021 2020
it ARETT ARBTF T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
M - B RS Property, plant and equipment 285 353
EREEE Right-of-use assets 2,465 3,349
YN Interest in subsidiaries 12,528,304 11,507,436
HFVPLEEMESREE Financial assets at FVPL 552,844 558,375
FETEIL FVOCI IR R Equity instruments designated
HmITHE as at FVOCl| 8,596 8,791
13,092,494 12,078,304
REBEE Current assets
TENFIEREMBEIGIE  Prepayments and other receivables 5,257 81,587
bt B~ B 2 FEUR kIR Amount due from a subsidiary 2,956,640 2,981,857
RITEHR MRS Bank balances and cash 385,439 187,692
3,347,336 3,251,136
WEE Total assets 16,439,830 15,329,440
BREEZRAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
RAR #E Capital and reserves
BATRR AR Issued capital 235,633 235,422
I 175 18 Share premium 786,965 730,075
s Reserves 46(a) 6,803,464 3,937,100
RERERAE Total equity 7,826,062 4,902,597
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2021 2020
i3 ARTFT ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
REBEEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 5,011,493 7,336,108
HERE Lease liabilities 488 1,634
5,011,981 7,337,742
i i=Ri= Current liabilities
Hfth FEAST R Other payables 29,459 76,900
BEEBE ZRAEE S Current portion of
interest-bearing borrowings 3,570,336 3,010,508
HEaE Lease liabilities 1,992 1,693
3,601,787 3,089,101
mEE Total liabilities 8,613,768 10,426,843
REREZAEREBEHEE  Total equity and liabilities 16,439,830 15,329,440
REA AR RN 2022 F3 A28 E The statement of financial position was approved and authorised
EEHERBEESE  WAHUTA for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2022 and signed
TREEZ on its behalf by
% & Wei Hong-Ming F H#i — BB Junichiro Ida
E HEDirector EFEDirector
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(a) HEE2EH (@) Movements of the reserves
k&
EffERE
RORERE NERERE (FTU8E) BRERE  REEA 2
Investment
revaluation
Capital  Exchange reserve  Share-hased
redemption  translation (Non- payment Retained
reserve reserve recycling) reserve Profits Total

ARRTL ARETR ARETT ARETZ ARETT ARRETZ
RMB'000  RMBO0O  RMBU00  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMB'000

#20205171H At 1 January 2020 400 216,339 (193) 392,245 5,072,816 5,681,607
RERRA Profit for the year - - - — 1273400 1273400
TEEAMZEYNR Other comprehensive income for the year - 296,550 1859 - — 298,409
EnfERNIN A Equity settled share-based transactions - - - 15,988 — 15,988
BEBRETEETIRD Shares issued under share option scheme - - - (1323) - (1323)
BRELH Shares option lapsed - — — (75,556) 75,556 —
BRERIRE 20195 KE 2019 final and special final dividend
REFRIRERS approved and paid - - - — (333091 (3,330,981
12020512 A31H At 31 December 2020 400 512,889 1,666 331,354 3,090,791 3,937,100
R2021£1818 At 1 January 2021 400 512,889 1,666 331,354 3,090,791 3,937,100
KERER Profit for the year - - - — 9335229 933529
REEEM2ERE Other comprehensive income for the year - 102,016 - - — 102,016
EnfERNTN A Equity settled share-based transactions - - - 5,075 - 5,075
BERRE BRI RR Shares issued under share option scheme — — — (13,693) — (13,693)
BREXN Shares option lapsed - - - (61,853) 61,853 -
BHERIRE 2020 F R E 2020 final and special final dividend
RERIRERS approved and paid - - - —  (4062,263)  (4,062,263)
ERERTE 2021 ERBIRHRE 2021 special interim dividend approved
and paid — — — —  (2,500,000)  (2,500,000)
®2021€12531R At 31 December 2021 400 614,905 1,666 260,883 5,925,610 6,803,464
7202112 A31H @ AARAI S At 31 December 2021, the Company's distributable reserves
TEHEEEE I EEND B LS including retained profits and share premium amounted to
%A ANR¥6,712,575,0007T(2020 RMB6,712,575,000 (2020: RMB3,820,866,000).

F : A3 .820,866,0007T) °
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Ty BIERAATIEELEEES The following included the principal subsidiaries directly or
JEIEMBAT  EERAEZEN indirectly held by the Company and, in the opinion of directors,
AYAFERmEERNER A are significant to the revenue for the year or form a substantial
KAEEEEENEELND =& portion of total assets of the Group. The directors consider that
RAEFENNEMIBATINER @ giving details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of
RiIgLEK ° excess length.
HRAL/
2 EEHY HMER/CRIRA FEAb LA TEER
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
EE Bk
Directly Indirectly
EMESERREVIBRLAF AERUHE Uss$2 100% —  REBR
Master Kong Instant Foods (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
REEHRAARAR FH U$$72,000,000 - 100% RERHENRE
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* INERRRERAT el US$151,500,000 - 100% HERBEHEE
* Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
EBERRAARLT P US§17,000,000 - 100% RERHEHEE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
REBRRMARAA el US$17,800,000 - 100% HEREEHEE
Wuhan TingYi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
BRERRRERAT el US$44,300,000 - 100% BERHEHRE
Xian Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
LEEESRRARLA Gl US$14,200,000 - 100% RERHEHEHE
Harbin Ting Yi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* AR EEREARAE G US$6,862,700 - 100% RERHEHER
* Nanjing Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
FOBEANERRERAR HE U5$32,500,000 - 100% HEREEHEE
Master Kong (Kunming) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. noodles
* REAB(ER) P ERRARL " US$6,000,000 - 100% REREESRHE
* Master Kong (Shenyang) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. noodles
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e/
£ EXuE ihER/ ERfTRE JEfE R gL ) TEXK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# A&
Directly Indirectly
TFRERRARLA PE US$29,000,000 - 100% BERHENRE
Jiangmen Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* RBRERBARAT P US$17,000,000 - 100% BERHELRE
* Cheng Du Tingyi Food Co, ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
ROBERNERRERAT HE US$5,000,000 - 100% BERHENLRE
Master Kong [Chongging] PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., LTD. noodles
* BEERRARAA hE US$50,000,000 - 100% BERHELRAE
* Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
ERREARARLA HE US$18,250,000 - 100% HELEE
CHONGQING TINGYIFOOD CO., LTD. PRC Sale of instant noodles
RYBERMARLA PE US$21,000,000 - 100% BERHENRE
Changsha Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
REGMRRERA HEl US$24,000,000 - 100% BERKEEARR
Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of meat
products
LEFRARERARLA G RMB15,000,000 - 100% REEERHE
Shanghai Kang Yi Corporate Management Limited #  PRC Provision of management service
REEHERRAGE)ARAR EF US$227,500,000 - 100% RABR
Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
RAEIERARATE)BRLA i US$98,900,000 - 100%  BARR
Master Kong Instant Foods Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
REEERMARAT HE RMB37,000,000 - 100% BEERHERH
Tianjin Tingyuan Food (o, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of bakery
products
RAESREVIERAR RERLES US$55,263 90.50% - RERR
Master Kong Beverages (BV) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
RABRGARERAT RERS US$10,527.37 30.40% 4751%  REER
KSF Beverage Ho\dmg (o, Ltd. Cayman lslands Investment holding
* RERRRARAD i US$60,840,000 - T191% BERHERR
* Tianjin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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Rl AN
£ EXHE ihER/ ERfTRE JEfk IR AELL IERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# A&
Directly Indirectly
BAERRqAN G US$20,000,000 7191% RERHEERR
Guangzhou ngjm Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RERRZRMARD PE US$73,500,000 7191% SERHEEAR
* Wuhan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EFEZRmAN G US$24,000,000 7191% RERHEERR
Chongging Tingjin Food Co., ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EEEEARARA G US$15,000,000 7191% BEREERS
Qingdao Tingjin Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EREZRMARD PE US$13,700,000 7191% SBERHEERR
Fujian Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REEERRGERAT e US$16,176,500 7191% BEREERS
* Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
aEERRRAN G US$10,000,000 7191% SERHEELR
Hefei Tingjin Food (o, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BRERRmAN G US$12,000,000 7191% RERHEEAR
* Kunming T\ngjm Food Co, Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BAERRAN G US$24,000,000 7191% RERHEERR
* Zhengzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BE2ARBRA e US$16,000,000 7191% BEREERS
* Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BiEERRRERAF HE US$41,000,000 7191% BEREERR
* Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* FIBERHHERAT G US$48,500,000 7191% BEREERR
* Master Kong (Xi'an) Beverage Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* FBRRHRERAT EP US$31,800,000 7191% BERHEERR
* Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* NERRRAN G US$36,500,000 7191% BEREERD
* Yangzhou ngjm Beverage Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BHERRRARAA G US$59,300,000 7191% RERHEERR
* Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REIE (REAE S mERAT i US$12,000,000 7191% BEREERS
* Master Kong (Wulumuqi) Beverage Co,, Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* By ERRRAN G US$28,500,000 71.91% RERHEERR
* Langfang Ting‘in Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* FME2RAN e US$41,500,000 7191% SERHEELR
* Suzhou Ting Jin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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AV
£ EXHE ihER/ ERfTRE JEft IR iELL IERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# A&
Directly Indirectly
* MERRMAD G US$38,100,000 - 7191% SERHEESR
* Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
ERRERMARLA G US$27,000,000 - 7191% BEREERD
Jinan Tingjin Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
LERERMARD e US$7,300,000 - 7191%  HERR
Shanghai Kong ng Food Co,, Ltd.# PRC Sale of beverages
FOBRRRE(FEERAR EF US$272,486,800 - 1191% RARK
Master Kong Beverage Investment (China) Co., Ltd.  PRC Investment holding
HEERLR (B ARA Bk US$129,736,518 - 191% RARK
China Bottlers (Hong Kong) L|m|ted Hong Kong Investment holding
RABRRRARRAT G US$358,216,517 - 7191%  RERR
Master Kong PBB Investment Co. Ltd. # PRC Investment holding
BEHH (BM) BRA HE US$197,800,000 - 7191% BEREERD
PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BNBZTRHAARAT i US$66,650,000 - 7191% BEREERR
Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* ERAEARFHERLA G US$14,119,449 - 50.64% BERHERM
* Beijing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RERSURHHARLA G US$20,000,000 - 7401% BERHELR
* Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REBEAHHARLA G RMB100,000,000 - 68.56% HERHESRR
* Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
AAESFHARLA G US$6,600,000 - 77191% BEREERD
CHENGDU PEPSICO BEVERAGES COMPANY LIMITED PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
B EERHARLA G US$1,350,000 - 7191% BEREERD
Lanzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BRASARHHARAA i US$17,845,000 - 1354% BEREERR
* CHONGQING PEPSI-TIANFUL BEVERAGE PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
COMPANY LIMITED
RBETERHERAT G US$12,250,000 - 7191% RERHEERM
Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited *  PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
ERAZTRHAARAT i US$14,694,778 - 7191% BEREERR
Kunming Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* A BRI RKRERAA G US$10,400,000 - 89%6% HERHESR
* Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RYBEIRARERAA G US$28,000,000 - 7191% SERHEESS
Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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Rl AN
£ EXHE ihER/ ERfTRE JEfk IR AELL IERK

Place of

incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity

E# A&
Directly Indirectly
R BEARIRARLA) G RMB19,764,000 - 7791% HERHEESR
Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BERH (B8) BRAF PE US$9,000,000 - 5454%  BEREERR
Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RZBEAEHHARLA i US$5,000,000 - T191% RERHEERD
Xi'an Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
I EERHARLA i US$21,000,000 - 7191% BEREERD
Zhengzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RRERETANHARLA G US$35,000,000 - 7191% BEREERD
Harbin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EEAZTERHARLA G US$57,600,000 - 7191% SERHEELR
Shenyang Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
E&EVIERERA RERLES US$50,000 100% —  REZR
Tingyi (BVI) Int'l Co,, Ltd. BVI Investment holding
JEAEVIERAT RERLES US$1,000 100% —  REZR
Tingtong (BVI) Limited BVI Investment holding
RAEESHEVIERAR RERLES Uss1 100% - RERR
Master Kong Bakery (BVI) Co., Ltd BVI Investment holding
EHRERRAA RRRAES US$147,232,000 - 100% KARR
Wealth City Investment Limited BVI Investment holding
HEERERARLA RERAEE Us$1 100% — REBR
China Dingya Holding Limited BVI Investment holding
LEERARLEERARAA G US$135,000,000 - 100% REDEEERS
Shanghai Jingiu Minghao Enterprise Elaboration ~ PRC Provision of properties management
Co, Ltd.* service
RREEHABRAA i US$200,000 100% —  RUEERH
Tianjin Tingyu Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC Provision of management services
* ZEMBRAREMATINGE A * These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
VEIRZE © companies.
# FCENRE QR # English translation for identification purposes only.

ik SN SR T Al b= VNGRS AV
NEMREEIIERE -

The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as wholly-

owned foreign enterprises.
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Mr. Wei Hong-Ming (Chairman)
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Mr. Wei Hong-Chen

Mr. Koji Shinohara

Mr. Yuko Takahashi

Ms. Tseng Chien
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AR FEIRTT Agricultural Bank of China

RFTIRTT ANZ Bank

PEERTT Bank of China

ZIMIRTT Bank of Communications

R IRTT Bank of Ningbo

B RRIRTT China Construction Bank

FEBERTT China Merchants Bank

B R A RTT China Minsheng Bank

BRI DBS Bank

EEERT Deutsche Bank

ARBE R ERTT Development Bank of Japan Inc.

T EiRTT Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

BHEBERTT Metrobank

HAIRiRERTT Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

HA=Z RBIRTT MUFG Bank

AEEERITAERAF Rabobank

HEIRTT SPD Bank

AAR=HERBITRHBRAAF] Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

REERTT United Overseas Bank

A ESRITRIZE N TR IEFHES The above banks are arranged in alphabetical order

RIEARAN ST Sidley Austin

i+ AR - PRC principal legal advisers:

BB BE AR BT Baker McKenzie

BB Haiwen & Partners

N R eI T ) AllBright Law Offices

FEHELE - as to Cayman Islands law:

BEIERMELSA(ER) Maples and Calder (Hong Kong) LLP
BREFEEER

PEDR(BE)GFTMEBMERA A Mazars CPA Limited

BB ELAD Certified Public Accountants
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